
                       

                Rochester City Council Public Hearing 

January 7, 2020 
Council Chambers 

7:00 PM 

 
1. Call to Order 

 
2. Resolution Changing Funding Source of Various Capital 

Improvement Project Appropriations from Borrowing to General 
Fund Unassigned Fund Balance in an amount not to exceed 

$2,051,373.08 P. 11 

 

3. Resolution Authorizing Supplemental Appropriation for Various 

2019-2020 Fund 1501 Capital Improvement Projects from General 
Fund Unassigned Fund Balance in the amount of $1,520,000.00      

P. 21  

 

4. Resolution for Supplemental Appropriation  and Authorizing 
Borrowing Authority Pursuant to RSA 33:9 to the Department of 

Public Works (DPW) Capital Improvements Plan (CIP) Fund, the 

Sewer CIP Fund, and the Water CIP Fund for the New DPW Facility 
Project in an amount not to exceed $4,000,000.00 P. 25  

 

5. Supplemental Appropriation to the Rochester School Department in 

the amount of $1,335,993 P. 33 

 

6. Amendment to Chapter 275 of the General Ordinances of the City 

of Rochester Regarding the Impact Fee Ordinance P. 39  

 

7. Amendment to Chapter 275 of the General Ordinances of the City 

of Rochester Regarding Conditional Uses Within the Downtown 
Commercial District P. 47 

 

8. Amendment to Chapter 275 of the General Ordinances of the City 

of Rochester Regarding Residential Uses Within the Downtown 
Commercial District P. 49  

 

9. Adjournment 
 

01/02/2020

Page 1 of 247



 

 

 
 

Intentionally 
left blank… 

City Clerk’s Office 

 

01/02/2020

Page 2 of 247



 

                                      Adjourned Regular City Council Meeting 

January 7, 2020 
Council Chambers 

Immediately following the Public Hearing  

 
1. Call to Order 

 
2. Opening Prayer 

 
3. Pledge of Allegiance  

  
4. Roll Call 

 
5. Acceptance of Minutes 

 
5.1 Regular City Council Meeting: December 3, 2019 

consideration for approval P. 53 
      

6. Communications from the City Manager 

 
6.1  Employee of the Month Award P. 83 

 
6.2  City Manager’s Report P. 85 

 
7.   Communications from the Mayor 

 
7.1. Information Only: Mayoral Appointments of Standing 

Committees and any other Mayoral Committees 
forthcoming P. 119 & 121 

 
8.   Presentation of Petitions and Council Correspondence 

 
9. Nominations, Appointments, Resignations, and Elections 

 

9.1. Resignation: Don Hamman, Planning Board 
 

9.2. Mayoral Nomination/Confirm by City Council: Arts and 
Culture (Government Representative) Term to Expire on 

1/2/2022 
 

9.2 Mayoral Nomination/Confirm by City Council: 
Conservation Commission (Chair)  Term to Expire on 

1/2/2023 

01/02/2020

Page 3 of 247



 

 

 
 

Intentionally 
left blank… 

City Clerk’s Office 

 

01/02/2020

Page 4 of 247



 
9.3 Mayoral Nomination/Confirm by City Council: Historic 

District Commission (City Council Representative) Term 
to Expire on 1/2/2022 

 

9.4 Mayoral Nomination/Confirm by City Council: Planning 

Board Regular Member (City Council Representative) 
Term to Expire on 01/02/2022 

 

9.5 Mayoral Nomination/Confirm by City Council: Planning 
Board Alternate Member (City Council Representative) 

 

 

  

  

 

  

 

   

  
 

  
  

 
10.     

 

  
 

 
   

 
 

   

 

 

  
 

   
 

      
 

 
   

01/02/2020

Page 5 of 247

10.6 Finance Committee (No Meeting in December)

P. 137
10.5 Fidelity  Committee  of  the  Task  Force  on  Homelessness            

10.4 CTE Joint Building Committee (No Meeting in December)

  Washington Street P. 129

10.3.1 Approval  of  new  COAST  bus  stops  along

10.3 Community Development Committee P. 127

  December)

10.2 Codes  &  Ordinances  Committee (No  Meeting in

  December)
10.1 Appointments  Review  Committee (No  Meeting  in

Reports of Committees

  01/02/2026 P. 125
9.7.2 Robin  Brown - Term  to  Expire  on

  01/02/2022 P. 123

9.7.1 Annette  Plaisted - Term  to  Expire  on

9.7 Election: Ward 3 Selectman:

  (Chair) Chair Term to Expire on 01/02/2021

9.6 Appointment: Rochester  Economic  Development

Term to Expire on 01/02/2022



 

 

 
 

Intentionally 
left blank… 

City Clerk’s Office 

 

01/02/2020

Page 6 of 247



 
10.7 Public Safety P. 169 

 
10.8 Public Works P. 175 

 

10.8.1 Resolution Authorizing Amendment to Lease 

Agreement between the City and the 
Department of Health and Human Services 

(DHHS) first reading, consideration for 

second reading and adoption P. 179 
 

11. Old Business 
 

11.1 Resolution Changing Funding Source of Various Capital 
Improvement Project Appropriations from Borrowing to 

General Fund Unassigned Fund Balance in an amount not 
to exceed $2,051,373.08 second reading and 

consideration for adoption (2/3 majority vote required)   
P. 11 

 
11.2 Resolution Authorizing Supplemental Appropriation for 

Various 2019-2020 Fund 1501 Capital Improvement 
Projects from General Fund Unassigned Fund Balance in 

the amount of $1,520,000.00 second reading and 

consideration for adoption (2/3 majority vote required)    
P. 21 

 

11.3 Resolution for Supplemental Appropriation  and 

Authorizing Borrowing Authority Pursuant to RSA 33:9 to 
the Department of Public Works (DPW) Capital 

Improvements Plan (CIP) Fund, the Sewer CIP Fund, and 

the Water CIP Fund for the New DPW Facility Project in an 
amount not to exceed $4,000,000.00 second reading and 

consideration for adoption (2/3 majority vote required)    
P. 25 

 

11.4 Amendment to Chapter 275 of the General Ordinances of 

the City of Rochester Regarding the Impact Fee Ordinance 
second reading and consideration for adoption P. 39 

 

11.5 Amendment to Chapter 275 of the General Ordinances of 
the City of Rochester Regarding Conditional Uses Within 

the Downtown Commercial District second reading and 

01/02/2020

Page 7 of 247



 

 

 
 

Intentionally 
left blank… 

City Clerk’s Office 

 

01/02/2020

Page 8 of 247



consideration for adoption P. 47 
 

11.6 Amendment to Chapter 275 of the General Ordinances of 
the City of Rochester Regarding Residential Uses Within 

the Downtown Commercial District second reading and 
consideration for adoption P. 49 

 

11.7 Supplemental Appropriation to the Rochester School 

Department in the amount of $1,335,993 second reading 

and consideration for adoption P. 33 
 

12. Consent Calendar 

 

13. New Business 
 

13.1 Resolution Granting Community Revitalization Tax 

Relief to the Property Located at 10 South Main Street 
Under the Provisions of RSA 79-E in Connection with a 

Proposed Rehabilitation Project first reading and refer 
to public hearing 1/21/20 P. 183 

 
13.2 Resolution Establishing Polling Places and Times for 

the February 11, 2020 Presidential Primary first 
reading, consideration for second reading and 

adoption P. 231  

 

13.3 Resolution Authorizing Certain Renumbering on Milton 

Road first reading, consideration for second reading 
and adoption P. 233 

 

13.4 Resolution Authorizing Acceptance of $1,250.00 from 

the State of New Hampshire Juvenile Court Diversion 

Network and Supplemental Appropriation in 
Connection Therewith first reading, consideration for 

second reading and adoption P. 241 

 

13.5 Resolution Confirming Results of the December 6, 2019 
Public Auction first reading, consideration for second 

reading and adoption P. 247 
 

14. Other 

 
15. Non-Public/Non-Meeting 

16.   Adjournment

01/02/2020

Page 9 of 247



 

 

 
 

Intentionally 
left blank… 

City Clerk’s Office 

 

01/02/2020

Page 10 of 247



Resolution Changing Funding Source of Various Capital Improvement Project 

Appropriations from Borrowing to General Fund Unassigned Fund Balance in an amount 

not to exceed $2,051,373.08 

 

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

ROCHESTER, AS FOLLOWS: 

 

I.  CIP FUND 1501 

 

WHEREAS, by virtue of various resolutions adopted by the Mayor and City Council of the City 

of Rochester, the Mayor and City Council appropriated the sum of One Million Six Hundred Forty 

Five Thousand Eight Hundred Seventy Five and 55/100 Dollars ($1,645,875.55) to various City 

and School Fund 1501 Capital Improvement Project budgets of the City of Rochester, all as more 

particularly set forth in Exhibit A annexed hereto; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Mayor and City Council of the City of Rochester have determined that the best 

interests of the City are served by changing the funding source for the projects referenced in 

Exhibit A annexed hereto from Borrowing, to General Fund unassigned fund balance; 

 

NOW THEREFORE, the Mayor and City Council of the City of Rochester, by adoption of this 

Resolution, hereby change the funding source for the projects referenced in Exhibit A from 

Borrowing to General Fund unassigned fund balance. 

 

FURTHER, in accordance with the provisions of RSA 33:9 and Section 45 of the Rochester City 

Charter, the Mayor and City Council of the City Rochester, hereby withdraw borrowing authority 

in the amount of One Million Six Hundred Eighty Three Thousand Three Hundred Thirty Four 

and 52/100 Dollars ($1,683,334.52). 

 

II.  WATER CIP FUND 5501 

 

WHEREAS, by virtue of various resolutions adopted by the Mayor and City Council of the City 

of Rochester, the Mayor and City Council appropriated the sum of Two Hundred Fifty Three 

Thousand Three Hundred Seventy Eight and 96/100 Dollars ($253,378.96) to various Water Fund 

5501 Capital Improvement Project budgets of the City of Rochester, all as more particularly set 

forth in Exhibit A annexed hereto; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Mayor and City Council of the City of Rochester have determined that the best 

interests of the City are served by changing the funding source for the projects referenced in 

Exhibit A annexed hereto from Borrowing, to General Fund unassigned fund balance; 

 

01/02/2020

Page 11 of 247



NOW THEREFORE, the Mayor and City Council of the City of Rochester, by adoption of this 

Resolution, hereby change the funding source for the projects referenced in Exhibit A from 

Borrowing to General Fund unassigned fund balance. 

 

FURTHER, in accordance with the provisions of RSA 33:9 and Section 45 of the Rochester City 

Charter, the Mayor and City Council of the City Rochester, hereby withdraw borrowing authority 

in the amount of Two Hundred Fifty Three Thousand Three Hundred Seventy Eight and 96/100 

Dollars ($253,378.96). 

 

III.  SEWER CIP FUND 5502 

 

WHEREAS, by virtue of various resolutions adopted by the Mayor and City Council of the City 

of Rochester, the Mayor and City Council appropriated the sum of One Hundred Fifty Two 

Thousand One Hundred Eighteen and 57/100 Dollars ($152,118.57) to various Sewer Fund 5502 

Capital Improvement Project budgets of the City of Rochester, all as more particularly set forth in 

Exhibit A annexed hereto; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Mayor and City Council of the City of Rochester have determined that the best 

interests of the City are served by changing the funding source for the projects referenced in 

Exhibit A annexed hereto from Borrowing, to General Fund unassigned fund balance; 

 

NOW THEREFORE, the Mayor and City Council of the City of Rochester, by adoption of this 

Resolution, hereby change the funding source for the projects referenced in Exhibit A from 

Borrowing to General Fund unassigned fund balance. 

 

FURTHER, in accordance with the provisions of RSA 33:9 and Section 45 of the Rochester City 

Charter, the Mayor and City Council of the City Rochester, hereby withdraw borrowing authority 

in the amount of One Hundred Fifty Two Thousand One Hundred Eighteen and 57/100 Dollars 

($152,118.57). 

 

To the extent not otherwise provided for in this Resolution, the Finance Director is hereby 

authorized to designate and/or establish such accounts and/or account numbers as necessary to 

implement the transactions contemplated by this Resolution.  

 

 

01/02/2020

Page 12 of 247



City of Rochester Formal Council Meeting  

AGENDA BILL 

NOTE: Agenda Bills are due by 10 AM on the Monday the week before the City Council Meeting.  

 

 

 

 

 
COMMITTEE SIGN-OFF 

COMMITTEE Finance Committee 

 

CHAIR PERSON 
 

Mayor McCarley 

DEPARTMENT APPROVALS 
DEPUTY CITY MANAGER  

 

CITY MANAGER  

FINANCE & BUDGET INFORMATION 
FINANCE DEPARTMENT APPROVAL  

 

SOURCE OF FUNDS 
 

General Fund Unassigned Fund Balance 

 

ACCOUNT NUMBER Fund 1501, 5501, & 5502  (Various Projects) 

 

AMOUNT $2,051,373.08 

 

APPROPRIATION REQUIRED     YES       NO   
 

Change of Funding Source 

 

LEGAL AUTHORITY 
City Council 
 

AGENDA SUBJECT   Change Funding Source of Various Capital Improvement Project Appropriations from 
Borrowing to General Fund Unassigned Fund Balance 
 

COUNCIL ACTION ITEM    
INFORMATION ONLY   

FUNDING REQUIRED?   YES    NO  

* IF YES ATTACH A FUNDING RESOLUTION FORM 

RESOLUTION REQUIRED?   YES    NO  
 

FUNDING RESOLUTION FORM?   YES    NO  
 

AGENDA DATE 
 

12/03/2019 

DEPT. HEAD SIGNATURE  

 

DATE SUBMITTED 
 

11/26/2019 

ATTACHMENTS         YES   NO   
  

* IF YES, ENTER THE  TOTAL NUMBER OF 

PAGES ATTACHED 

1 

S:i 7 '
_ miSoGHESTER1

Ci
rfJ -VSp?Vf3t - «5

01/02/2020

Page 13 of 247



 
 

SUMMARY STATEMENT 
 
The Rochester City Council appropriated $2,051,373.38 to various City, School, Water, and Sewer capital 
improvement plan projects.  These projects have been itemized in Exhibit A to the resolution. 
 

1) Change Funding to General Fund Unassigned Fund Balance = $2,051,373.08 
2) De-authorize and Withdraw Borrowing Authority = $2,088,832.05 

 
This request is to change the funding source to General Fund unassigned fund balance and withdraw 
borrowing authority in accordance with RSA 33:9 and Section 45 of the Rochester City Charter. 
 

 

RECOMMENDED ACTION 
 
Recommend Council approval 
 

 

01/02/2020

Page 14 of 247



Rank Entity Org Object Project Account Name Amount Note Est. Annual P&I Interest Saved

1 1 City 15011090 772000 16559 City Hall Annex Project 56,317.09            Partially Bonded - remaining  likely taxable

1 1 City 15011090 772000 17551 Community Center Facility Renovation 68,356.00            Amount not yet bonded - may be taxable

1 1 City 15013010 772000 16522 EPA MS4 Stormwater Permit 147,836.94          Amount not yet bonded - may be taxable

1 1 City 15011020 773800 16504 Employee Time and Attendance 50,000.00            Kronos software & implementation

1 1 City 15013010 771000 16533 Woodman Myrtle Area Reconstruction 22,466.48            Partially Bonded 

1 1 City 15013010 771000 17579 Dewey Street Pedestrian Bridge 29,713.48            Partially Bonded 

1 1 City 15013010 771000 18524 Corrective Drainage 33,644.53            Partially Bonded 

Sub-Total City-Rank 1 408,334.52         10 Year Amortization 3% Interest $62,834 $67,375

1 3 Water 55016010 771000 13523 Berry River Dam Construction 196,022.00          Partially Bonded 

1 3 Water 55016010 771000 13551 EDA Salmon Falls Rd NH Rte 125 105,519.36          Partially Bonded 

1 3 Water 55016010 771000 16533 Woodman Myrtle Area Reconstruction 21,523.00            Partially Bonded 

1 3 Water 55016010 771000 16536 Groundwater Development 35,834.26            Partially Bonded 

1 4 Sewer 55026020 772000 13551 EDA Salmon Falls Rd NH Rte 125 397,311.81          Partially Bonded 

1 4 Sewer 55026020 771000 16533 Woodman Myrtle Area Reconstruction 22,466.50            Partially Bonded 

1 4 Sewer 55026020 772000 14530 Wastewater Interceptor Upgrade 129,652.07          Partially Bonded 

Sub Total Water-Sewer-Rank 1 908,329.00         10 Year Amortization 3% Interest $120,470 $152,904

1 2 School 15019000 743000 16105 SHS Sprinkler Upgrades 427,545.19          Amount not yet bonded - may be taxable

1 2 School 15019000 743000 17105 SHS Sprinkler/Alarm Upgrades 642,401.42          Amount not yet bonded - may be taxable

1 2 School 15019000 743000 17104 Roof Upgrade 92,324.52            Amount not yet bonded 

1 2 School 15019000 743000 18101 Stage Rigging 27,301.39            Amount not yet bonded 

1 2 School 15019000 773500 18401 Café Tables 44,783.51            Amount not yet bonded 

Sub-Total School-Rank 1 1,234,356.03      10 Year Amortization 3% Interest $160,466 $203,669

ALL TOTALS RANK 1 2,551,019.55      10 Year Amortization 3% Interest $343,770 $423,948

NEW PROJECTS

1a City Dispatch Project 250,000               10 Year Amortization 3% Interest $32,500

1a City CTE Renovation-Additional Equipment 270,000               10 Year Amortization 3% Interest $65,000

1a City Pavement Rehabilitation 1,300,000            Cash $0

Sub-Total New Projects 1,820,000.00      $97,500 $85,800

Total Recommended $4,371,020 $441,270 $509,748

Projects Recommended for Change of Funding

01/02/2020

Page 15 of 247



RECAP-UNASSIGNED FUND BALANCE

A UNASSIGNED FUND BALANCE RECONCILIATION AMOUNT

Jun-18 MS-535-Unassigned Fund Bal 16,796,293          

FYE19 Unassigned Fund Bal-Est. Increase 4,734,317            

MS-535 Est. Unassigned Fund Balance-Total 21,530,610          

FYE19 Unassigned Fund Balance Percentage 21.50%

Maximum Per  Ordinance 17.00%

Unassigned Balance Amount Exceeding 17% $4,509,334

B FY20 COUNCIL COMMITTED 

FY20 Council Committted ($2,959,966)

11-6-19 Supplemental Downtown Revitalization ($300,000)

Unassigned Balance  Exceeding 17%-Bal $1,249,368 Unassigned from less already committed

C FY20 ANTICIPATED OTHER REVENUE ADDITIONS

Add-WM Host Fees-School $878,127 FY20 Amount School will not need

Add-Municipal Aid $686,077 Municipal Aid to City 

FY20 Anticipated Other Revenue Additions $1,564,204

D Unassigned Balance  Exceeding 17%-Bal (B+C) $2,813,572

E Additional FB  to meet recommendations $1,557,448

F REVISED UNASSIGNED FUND BALANCE RECONCILIATION

Estimated FYE19 Unassigned Fund Balance $21,530,609

FY20 Council Committted/Assigned ($3,259,966)

FY20 Recommended Use of Unassigned Fund Bal ($4,371,020)

FY20 -ADD WM Host Fees-School $878,127

FY20-ADD Municipal Aid $686,077

Revised Est. Unassigned Fund Balance $15,463,827

Estimated percentage 15.50%

01/02/2020

Page 16 of 247



De-authorize General Fund 

Department Org Object Project Source Account Name Amount Note Bonding Unassigned F/B

Public Bldgs 15011090 772000 16559 Bond City Hall Annex Project 56,317.09        Bond to G/F F/B 56,317.09        56,317.09            

Public Bldgs 15011090 772000 17551 Bond Community Center Facility Renovation 68,356.00        Bond to G/F F/B 68,356.00        68,356.00            

Public Works 15013010 771000 16522 Bond EPA MS4 Stormwater Permit 147,836.94      Bond to G/F F/B 147,836.94      147,836.94         

IT Services 15011020 773800 16504 Bond Employee Time and Attendance 50,000.00        Bond to G/F F/B 50,000.00        50,000.00            

Public Works 15013010 771000 16533 Bond Woodman Myrtle Area Reconstruction 22,466.48        Bond to G/F F/B 22,466.48        22,466.48            

Public Works 15013010 771000 17579 Bond Dewey Street Pedestrian Bridge 29,713.48        Bond to G/F F/B 29,713.48        29,713.48            

Public Works 15013010 771000 18524 Bond Corrective Drainage 33,644.53        Bond to G/F F/B 33,644.53        33,644.53            

Subtotal City 408,334.52      408,334.52      408,334.52         

School 15019000 743000 16105 Bond SHS Sprinkler Upgrades 427,545.19      Bond to G/F F/B 435,000.00      427,545.19         

School 15019000 743000 17105 Bond SHS Sprinkler/Alarm Upgrades 642,401.42      Bond to G/F F/B 665,000.00      642,401.42         

School 15019000 743000 17104 Bond Roof Upgrade 95,509.52        Bond to G/F F/B 100,000.00      95,509.52            

School 15019000 743000 18101 Bond Stage Rigging 27,301.39        Bond to G/F F/B 30,000.00        27,301.39            

School 15019000 773500 18401 Bond Café Tables 44,783.51        Bond to G/F F/B 45,000.00        44,783.51            

Subtotal School 1,237,541.03  1,275,000.00  1,237,541.03      

Water 55016010 771000 13523 Bond Berry River Dam Construction 196,021.70      Bond to G/F F/B 196,021.70      196,021.70         

Water 55016010 771000 16533 Bond Woodman Myrtle Area Reconstruction 21,523.00        Bond to G/F F/B 21,523.00        21,523.00            

Water 55016010 771000 16536 Bond Groundwater Development 35,834.26        Bond to G/F F/B 35,834.26        35,834.26            

Subtotal Water 253,378.96      253,378.96      253,378.96         

Sewer 55026020 771000 16533 Bond Woodman Myrtle Area Reconstruction 22,466.50        Bond to G/F F/B 22,466.50        22,466.50            

Sewer 55026020 772000 14530 Bond Wastewater Interceptor Upgrade 129,652.07      Bond to G/F F/B 129,652.07      129,652.07         

Subtotal Sewer 152,118.57      152,118.57      152,118.57         

Totals 2,051,373.08  2,088,832.05  2,051,373.08      

Exhibit A - Resolution Changing Fund Source of Various CIP Projects  2019-12-03.xlsx 11/26/2019 2:16 PM

Exhibit A - Resolution Changing Funding Source of Various CIP Appropriations

01/02/2020

Page 17 of 247



 

 

 
 

Intentionally 
left blank… 

City Clerk’s Office 

 

01/02/2020

Page 18 of 247



De-authorize General Fund 

Department Org Object Project Source Account Name Amount Note Bonding Unassigned F/B

Public Bldgs 15011090 772000 16559 Bond City Hall Annex Project 56,317.09        Bond to G/F F/B 56,317.09        56,317.09            

Public Bldgs 15011090 772000 17551 Bond Community Center Facility Renovation 68,356.00        Bond to G/F F/B 68,356.00        68,356.00            

Public Works 15013010 771000 16522 Bond EPA MS4 Stormwater Permit 147,836.94      Bond to G/F F/B 147,836.94      147,836.94         

IT Services 15011020 773800 16504 Bond Employee Time and Attendance 50,000.00        Bond to G/F F/B 50,000.00        50,000.00            

Public Works 15013010 771000 16533 Bond Woodman Myrtle Area Reconstruction 22,466.48        Bond to G/F F/B 22,466.48        22,466.48            

Public Works 15013010 771000 17579 Bond Dewey Street Pedestrian Bridge 29,713.48        Bond to G/F F/B 29,713.48        29,713.48            

Public Works 15013010 771000 18524 Bond Corrective Drainage 33,644.53        Bond to G/F F/B 33,644.53        33,644.53            

Subtotal City 408,334.52      408,334.52      408,334.52         

School 15019000 743000 16105 Bond SHS Sprinkler Upgrades 427,545.19      Bond to G/F F/B 435,000.00      427,545.19         

School 15019000 743000 17105 Bond SHS Sprinkler/Alarm Upgrades 642,401.42      Bond to G/F F/B 665,000.00      642,401.42         

School 15019000 743000 17104 Bond Roof Upgrade 95,509.52        Bond to G/F F/B 100,000.00      95,509.52            

School 15019000 743000 18101 Bond Stage Rigging 27,301.39        Bond to G/F F/B 30,000.00        27,301.39            

School 15019000 773500 18401 Bond Café Tables 44,783.51        Bond to G/F F/B 45,000.00        44,783.51            

Subtotal School 1,237,541.03  1,275,000.00  1,237,541.03      

Water 55016010 771000 13523 Bond Berry River Dam Construction 196,021.70      Bond to G/F F/B 196,021.70      196,021.70         

Water 55016010 771000 16533 Bond Woodman Myrtle Area Reconstruction 21,523.00        Bond to G/F F/B 21,523.00        21,523.00            

Water 55016010 771000 16536 Bond Groundwater Development 35,834.26        Bond to G/F F/B 35,834.26        35,834.26            

Subtotal Water 253,378.96      253,378.96      253,378.96         

Sewer 55026020 771000 16533 Bond Woodman Myrtle Area Reconstruction 22,466.50        Bond to G/F F/B 22,466.50        22,466.50            

Sewer 55026020 772000 14530 Bond Wastewater Interceptor Upgrade 129,652.07      Bond to G/F F/B 129,652.07      129,652.07         

Subtotal Sewer 152,118.57      152,118.57      152,118.57         

Totals 2,051,373.08  2,088,832.05  2,051,373.08      

Exhibit A - Resolution Changing Funding Source of Various CIP Appropriations

Exhibit A - Resolution Changing Fund Source of Various CIP Projects  2019-12-03.xlsx 11/26/2019 2:16 PM

01/02/2020

Page 19 of 247



 

 

 
 

Intentionally 
left blank… 

City Clerk’s Office 

 

01/02/2020

Page 20 of 247



Resolution Authorizing Supplemental Appropriation for Various 2019-2020 Fund 1501 

Capital Improvement Projects from General Fund Unassigned Fund Balance in the 

amount of $1,520,000.00  

 

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

ROCHESTER, AS FOLLOWS: 

 

That the sum of One Million Five Hundred Twenty Thousand Dollars ($1,520,000) be, and hereby 

is, appropriated as part of the City of Rochester 2019-2020 Fund 1501 Capital Improvements Plan 

budget of the City of Rochester for the following three projects; 

 

1. Dispatch Center – Radio Improvements Project $250,000.00 

2. Department of Public Works – Paving Rehabilitation $1,000,000.00 

3. School Department – CTE Renovation – Additional Equipment $270,000.00 

 

Further, that the sums necessary to fund such appropriation shall be derived from General Fund 

unassigned fund balance. 

 

To the extent not otherwise provided for in this Resolution, the Finance Director is hereby 

authorized to designate and/or establish such accounts and/or account numbers as necessary to 

implement the transactions contemplated by this Resolution.  

 

 

01/02/2020

Page 21 of 247



 

 

 
 

Intentionally 
left blank… 

City Clerk’s Office 

 

01/02/2020

Page 22 of 247



City of Rochester Formal Council Meeting  

AGENDA BILL 

NOTE: Agenda Bills are due by 10 AM on the Monday the week before the City Council Meeting.  

 

 

 

 

 
COMMITTEE SIGN-OFF 

COMMITTEE Finance Committee 

 

CHAIR PERSON 
 

Mayor McCarley 

DEPARTMENT APPROVALS 
DEPUTY CITY MANAGER  

 

CITY MANAGER  

FINANCE & BUDGET INFORMATION 
FINANCE DEPARTMENT APPROVAL  

 

SOURCE OF FUNDS 
 

General Fund Unassigned Fund Balance 

 

ACCOUNT NUMBER Fund 1501 (3 Projects) 

 

AMOUNT $1,520,000.00 

 

APPROPRIATION REQUIRED     YES       NO   
 

 

 

LEGAL AUTHORITY 
City Council 
 

AGENDA SUBJECT   Supplemental Appropriation to the 2019-2020 Fund 1501 Capital Improvement Plan 
for 3 Projects 
 

COUNCIL ACTION ITEM    
INFORMATION ONLY   

FUNDING REQUIRED?   YES    NO  

* IF YES ATTACH A FUNDING RESOLUTION FORM 

RESOLUTION REQUIRED?   YES    NO  
 

FUNDING RESOLUTION FORM?   YES    NO  
 

AGENDA DATE 
 

12/03/2019 

DEPT. HEAD SIGNATURE  

 

DATE SUBMITTED 
 

11/26/2019 

ATTACHMENTS         YES   NO   
  

* IF YES, ENTER THE  TOTAL NUMBER OF 

PAGES ATTACHED 

 

S:i 7 '
_ miSoGHESTER1

Ci
rfJ -VSp?Vf3t - «5

01/02/2020

Page 23 of 247



 
 

SUMMARY STATEMENT 
 
Requesting that the Rochester City Council appropriate $1,520,000.00 for the following 3 projects to the 
2019-2020 Capital Improvement Plan Fund 1501. 
 

1) Dispatch Center – Radio Improvements Project $250,000.00 
2) Department of Public Works – Paving Rehabilitation $1,000,000.00 
3) School Department – CTE Renovation – Additional Equipment $270,000.00 

 
The recommended funding source is General Fund unassigned fund balance. 
 

 

RECOMMENDED ACTION 
 
Recommend Council approval 
 

 

01/02/2020

Page 24 of 247



Resolution for Supplemental Appropriation and Authorizing Borrowing Authority 

Pursuant to RSA 33:9 to the Department of Public Works (DPW) Capital Improvements 

Plan (CIP) Fund, the Sewer CIP Fund, and the Water CIP Fund for the New DPW Facility 

Project in an amount not to exceed $4,000,000.00 

 

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

ROCHESTER, AS FOLLOWS: 

 

That the Mayor and City Council of the City of Rochester hereby appropriate an amount not to 

exceed Four Million Dollars ($4,000,000.00) for the purpose of paying the costs associated with 

the completion of the New DPW Facility Project and the appropriation shall be divided amongst 

three (3) funds as follows:  Two Million Dollars ($2,000,000.00) to the DPW CIP Fund, One 

Million Dollars ($1,000,000.00) to the Sewer CIP Fund, and One Million Dollars 

($1,000,000.00) to the Water CIP Fund. 

 

In accordance with the provisions of RSA 33:9, the City Treasurer, with the approval of the City 

Manager, be, and hereby are authorized to borrow the sum of Four Million Dollars 

($4,000,000.00) through the issuance of bonds and/or notes, and/or through other legal form(s), 

such borrowing to be on such terms and conditions as the said Treasurer and City Manager may 

deem to be in the best interest of the City of Rochester.  Such borrowing is authorized subject to 

compliance with the provisions of RSA 33:9 and Section 45 of the Rochester City Charter to the 

extent required, necessary and/or appropriate 

 

To the extent not otherwise provided for in this Resolution, the Finance Director is hereby 

authorized to designate and/or establish such accounts and/or account numbers as necessary to 

implement the transactions contemplated by this Resolution.  

 

 

01/02/2020

Page 25 of 247



 
 

Intentionally 
left blank… 

City Clerk’s Office 

 

01/02/2020

Page 26 of 247



 

 

City of Rochester, New Hampshire 
Finance Office 

31 Wakefield Street • Rochester, NH  03867-1917 

(603) 335-7609   Fax (603) 332-7589 

 

 

MEMO 

 

TO: City Council 

 

FROM: Katie Ambrose, Deputy City Manager/Director of Finance & Administration 

 

DATE: November 27, 2019 

 

RE: New DPW Facility Expense Allocations 

 

The Finance Office has reviewed expense allocations for the new DPW facility between 

the General Fund, Water Enterprise Fund and Sewer Enterprise Fund in response to 

questions raised at the November 12th Finance Committee meeting. 

 

In analyzing expense allocations by services received per parcel, it was determined that 

the percentages would be distributed as follows:   

General Fund                                            50% 

Water Fund                                               29% 

Sewer Fund                                               21% 

 

This analysis was based upon the assumption that all parcels benefit from services 

provided by the Department of Public Works, with Water and Sewer accounts classified 

as subsets of total service received:  

 
  

The results demonstrate a 4% shift in allocation between Water and Sewer funds from the 

existing percentages of 25% and 25%. However, the existing percentages are adequate 

considering that the data included only active utility billing accounts, did not account for 

pump stations, and water and sewer account numbers are anticipated to increase due to 

projects and development.  

 

Finance Office Recommendation: 

• Maintain expense allocation percentages for the new DPW facility at 50% 

General Fund, 25% Water Fund and 25% Sewer Fund and apply to the requested 

supplemental appropriation of $4,000,000.   

PARCELS-DPW -WATER-SEWER SERVICE ACTIVITY: TAX YEAR 2019 PROPERTY TAX BILLS & TAX EXEMPT: 13,907

Property Tax Parcels Parcel Count Percentage Notes

Public Works- Activity 13,907                   49.99% Assumption-DPW activities benefit all parcels

Water Accounts-Active 7,995                     28.74% Water Works infrastructure service - subset

Sewer Accounts-Active 5,918                     21.27% Sewer Works infrastructure service - subset

All Total Activities 27,820                  Subsets Added to Total Parcels to Allocate Activity

mm,a

^ROCHESTER
u
/• a&8̂ >

sfec>

01/02/2020

Page 27 of 247



 
 

Intentionally 
left blank… 

City Clerk’s Office 

 

01/02/2020

Page 28 of 247



City of Rochester Formal Council Meeting 

AGENDA BILL 

NOTE: Agenda Bills are due by 10 AM on the Monday the week before the City Council Meeting. 

COMMITTEE SIGN-OFF 
COMMITTEE 

CHAIR PERSON 

DEPARTMENT APPROVALS 
DEPUTY CITY MANAGER 

CITY MANAGER 

FINANCE & BUDGET INFORMATION 
FINANCE OFFICE APPROVAL 

SOURCE OF FUNDS 

ACCOUNT NUMBER 

AMOUNT 

APPROPRIATION REQUIRED     YES       NO  

LEGAL AUTHORITY 

AGENDA SUBJECT 

COUNCIL ACTION ITEM 
INFORMATION ONLY  

FUNDING REQUIRED?   YES    NO 
* IF YES ATTACH A FUNDING RESOLUTION FORM

RESOLUTION REQUIRED?   YES    NO FUNDING RESOLUTION FORM?   YES    NO 

AGENDA DATE 

DEPT. HEAD SIGNATURE 

DATE SUBMITTED 

ATTACHMENTS         YES   NO  * IF YES, ENTER THE  TOTAL NUMBER OF
PAGES ATTACHED 

AB Form - revised 8/17/2016

1iSoGHESTER £
L-/-" -V

- 7K

r

01/02/2020

Page 29 of 247



SUMMARY STATEMENT 

RECOMMENDED ACTION 

AB Form - revised 8/17/2016

01/02/2020

Page 30 of 247



Project Name:

Date:

Fiscal Year:

Fund (select):

GF Water Sewer Arena 

CIP Water CIP Sewer CIP Arena CIP 

Special Revenue 

Fund Type: Lapsing Non-Lapsing 

Deauthorization

Object #

1

2

3

4

Appropriation

Object #

1

2

3

4

Revenue

Object #

1

2

3

4

DUNS # CFDA # 

Grant # Grant Period: From 

To 

If de-authorizing Grant Funding appropriations: (select one)

Reimbursement Request will be reduced Funds will be returned 

- - - 

AGENDA BILL - FUNDING RESOLUTION

EXHIBIT

Fed State Local

- - - 

Org # Project # Amount $ Amount $ Amount $

Fed State Local

- - - 

- - - 

- - - 

- - - 

Org # Project # Amount $ Amount $ Amount $

Fed State Local

- - - 

- - - 

- - - 

- - - 

Org # Project # Amount $ Amount $ Amount $

- 

- - - 

- - 

01/02/2020

Page 31 of 247



 
 

Intentionally 
left blank… 

City Clerk’s Office 

 

01/02/2020

Page 32 of 247



Supplemental Appropriation to the  

Rochester School Department in the amount of $1,335,993.00  
 

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

ROCHESTER: 

 

That the amount of One Million Three Hundred Thirty Five Thousand Nine Hundred Ninety Three 

Dollars ($1,335,993.00) is hereby appropriated as a supplemental appropriation to the Rochester 

School Department for the purpose of paying costs associated with unanticipated special education 

costs. The funding for this supplemental appropriation shall be derived in its entirety from the 

General Fund Unassigned Fund Balance. 

 

To the extent not otherwise provided for in this Resolution, the Finance Director is hereby 

authorized to establish and/or designate such multi-year, non-lapsing accounts and or account 

numbers as are necessary to implement the transactions contemplated in this Resolution.  

 
 

01/02/2020

Page 33 of 247



 
 

Intentionally 
left blank… 

City Clerk’s Office 

 

01/02/2020

Page 34 of 247



V a
^ROCHESTER City of Rochester Formal Council Meeting—
/•

« AGENDA BILL

NOTE: Agenda Bills are due by 10 AM on the Monday the week before the City Council Meeting.

AGENDA SUBJECT
Supplemental Appropriation

FUNDING REQUIRED? YES £<J NO

* IF YES ATTACH A FUNDING RESOLUTION FORM
COUNCIL ACTION ITEM [x]
INFORMATION ONLY

RESOLUTION REQUIRED? YES [x] NO FUNDING RESOLUTION FORM? YES NO

AGENDA DATE
December 3, 2019

DEPT. HEAD SIGNATURE

November1)9, 2DATE SUBMITTED

YES Kl NOATTACHMENTS * IF YES, ENTER THE TOTAL NUMBER OF
PAGES ATTACHED

4

COMMITTEE SIGN-OFF
COMMITTEE

CHAIRPERSON

DEPARTMENT APPROVALS
DEPUTY CITY MANAGER

CITY MANAGER

FINANCE & BUDGET INFORMATION
FINANCE OFFICE APPROVAL

SOURCE OF FUNDS

ACCOUNT NUMBER

$1,335,993AMOUNT

APPROPRIATION REQUIRED YES NO

LEGAL AUTHORITY
City Council

01/02/2020

Page 35 of 247



SUMMARY STATEMENT
The Rochester School Department is requesting a supplemental appropriation in the amount of
$1,335,993 due to unanticipated Special Education costs beyond the budget.

RECOMMENDED ACTION
Council Approval Recommended

01/02/2020

Page 36 of 247



AGENDA BILL - FUNDING RESOLUTION

EXHIBIT

Project Name: Supplemental Appropriation

Date: 11/19/2019

Fiscal Year: 2020

Fund (select):

Arena | |Water [ Sewer [GF [_X

Arena CIP [Water CIPCIP Sewer CIP

Special Revenue [

Annual Lapsing | | Multi-year Non-Lapsing [Fund Type:

Deauthorization
State

Amount $
Local

Amount $
Fed

Amount $Org # Object # Project #
1
2
3
4

Appropriation
Local

Amount $
Fed State

Amount $Amount $Org # Project #Object #
1
2
3
4

Revenue
Fed

Amount $
State

Amount $
Local

Amount $Org # Object # Project #
1
2
3
4

DUNS # CFDA #

Grant # Grant Period: From
To

If de-authorizing Grant Funding appropriations: (select one)

Reimbursement Request will be reduced [ Funds will be returned

AB Funding Form-Supplemental Appropriation 11/19/2019 10:53 AM

01/02/2020

Page 37 of 247



City of Rochester School Department
Office of the Superintendent

150 Wakefield Street
Suite #8

Rochester, NH 03867-1348
(603) 332-3678

FAX: (603) 335-7367

Mr. Kyle M. Repucci
Superintendent of Schools
e-mail: repucci.k@rochesterschools.com
Dr. Sandie MacDonald
Assistant Superintendent of Schools
e-mail: macdonald.s@rochesterschools.com
Mrs. Linda Bartlett
Business Administrator
e-mail: bartlett.l@rochesterschools.com
Mrs. Christiane Allison
Director of Student Services
e-mail: allison.c@rochesterschools.com

%ff .
* ROCHESTER!si* N»m

&r

November 18, 2019

Mr. Blaine Cox, City Manager
and the Rochester City Council

Rochester City Hall
31 Wakefield Street
Rochester, NH 03867

Dear Mr. Cox and Council Members:

At its regular meeting of November 14, 2019 the Rochester School Board authorized me to request approval
of a Supplemental Appropriation in the amount of $1,335,993. This is due to unanticipated Special Education
expenses including tuition and transportation of out of district students.
Please let me know when the Council will consider this request, so that we can ensure that someone from the
School District is available to address any questions.

Sincerely,

Kyle M."Repucci
Superintendent of Schools

KMR/clm

cc Rochester School Board

~ ~ READ TO A CHILD 20 MINUTES ADAY ~ ~

01/02/2020

Page 38 of 247



Amendment to Chapter 275 of the General Ordinances of the City of Rochester Regarding the Impact 

Fee Ordinance 

THE CITY OF ROCHESTER ORDAINS: 

That Chapter 275 of the General Ordinances of the City of Rochester and currently before the Rochester City 

Council, be amended as follows 

Article 27  

Miscellaneous Provisions  

[Amended 7-7-2015]  

§ 275-27.1 Buffers for residential property.  

A. All nonresidential development, including any parking and storage areas, shall be screened/buffered 

from any adjacent residential property situated to the side or rear as stipulated by the Planning Board 

under site review. The Board may stipulate plantings and/or fencing, as reasonably appropriate. See 

Figure 27-A, Screening Between Commercial and Residential Uses, as an example.  

B. All multifamily development, consisting of three units of more, including parking areas, shall be 

screened/buffered from any adjacent single-family dwellings situated to the side or rear as required by 

the Planning Board under site review. The Board may stipulate plantings and/or fencing, as reasonably 

appropriate. This requirement does not apply in situations where multifamily development is 

specifically designed to integrate with single-family dwellings in mixed-use developments. 

 

 

Figure 27-A, Screening Between Commercial and Residential Uses 

§ 275-27.2 Cemeteries.  

Pursuant to RSA 289:3, III, there shall be no construction, excavation, or development, nor placement of any 

buildings, structures, signage, or parking, inside or within 25 feet of a known burial site or within 25 feet of 

the boundaries of an established burial ground or cemetery. For the purposes of this section, the term 

"excavation" shall include the disturbance to a depth of 12 inches or more of soil for activities such as 

landscaping, utility trenching, tree planting, etc. No healthy tree with a diameter at breast height of eight 

inches or more may be cut or removed within 25 feet of any established burial ground or cemetery except by 

special exception for good cause and with appropriate mitigation. No new chain-link fence shall be installed 

in or around any cemetery. 

§ 275-27.3 Impact fees.  

A. Purpose. This section is enacted pursuant to RSA 674:16 and 674:21. in order to: 

(1) Promote public health, safety, convenience, and welfare;  

(2) Ensure that adequate and appropriate public facilities are available;  

(3) Provide for the managed development of the municipality and its environs;  

(4) Mitigate the impact of development of land that would involve danger or injury to health, safety, or 

prosperity by reason of the lack of water supply, drainage, transportation, schools, fire protection, or 

other public services, or necessitate the excessive expenditure of public funds for the supply of such 

01/02/2020

Page 39 of 247



services; and  

(5) Ensure the proper arrangement and coordination of streets.  

(1) To assess new development for its proportionate share of the public capital facility costs. 

B. Authority. 

(1) Impact fees may be assessed to new development to compensate the City of Rochester and the School 

District Department for the proportional share of capital facilities generated by new development in the 

City of Rochester a proportionate share of the cost of the capital facility needs occasioned by new 

development. Any person who seeks a building permit for new development may be required to pay an 

impact fee in the manner set forth herein.  

(2) The Planning Board may, as a condition of approval of any subdivision or site plan, and when consistent 

with applicable Board regulations, require an applicant to pay an impact fee for the applicant's 

proportional share of off-site improvements to public facilities affected by the development.  

(3) Nothing in this section shall be construed to limit the existing authority of the Planning Board to 

disapprove proposed development which would require an excessive expenditure of public funds, or 

which would otherwise violate applicable ordinances and regulations. Nothing in this section shall be 

construed to limit the Planning Board's authority to require off-site work to be performed by the 

applicant, in lieu of paying an impact fee, or the Board's authority to impose other types of conditions of 

approval. Nothing in this section shall be construed to affect types of fees governed by other statutes, 

ordinances or regulations. Nothing in this section shall be construed to limit the authority of the 

Planning Board or the City to require exactions for off-site improvements, other conditions of 

approval, or to assess other fees governed by other statutes, ordinances, or regulations. 

C. Definitions. For the purposes of this section, the following terms shall have the meanings indicated: 

IMPACT FEE  

A fee or assessment imposed upon development, including subdivision or building construction, in order 

to help meet the needs occasioned by that development for the construction or improvement of capital 

facilities owned or operated by the City of Rochester or the Rochester School Department, including 

and limited to water treatment and distribution facilities; wastewater treatment and disposal facilities; 

sanitary sewers; stormwater, drainage and flood control facilities; public road systems and rights-of-

way; municipal office facilities; public school facilities; public safety facilities; solid waste collection, 

transfer, recycling, processing and disposal facilities; public library facilities; and public recreational 

facilities not including public open space. 

NEW DEVELOPMENT  

(1) An activity that results in any one of the following: 

(a) The creation of a new dwelling unit or units;  

(b) The conversion of a legally existing use, or additions thereto, which would result in a net increase in the 

number of dwelling units;  

01/02/2020

Page 40 of 247



(c) Construction resulting in a new nonresidential building or a net increase in the floor area of any 

nonresidential building; or  

(d) The conversion of an existing use to another use if such change results in an net increase in floor area 

and such change creates a net increase in the demand on public capital facilities that are the subject of 

impact fee assessments. unless waived by the Planning Board.  

(2) New development shall not include the replacement of an existing manufactured home or the 

reconstruction of a structure that has been destroyed by fire or natural disaster where there is no change 

in its size, density or type of use, and where there is no net increase in demand on public capital 

facilities.  

OFF-SITE IMPROVEMENTS  

Off-site improvements means highway, drainage, sewer, or water upgrades or improvements that 

are necessitated by a development but which are located outside the boundaries of the property, 

as determined by the Planning Board during the course of subdivision or site plan approval. 

D. Assessment methodology. 

(1) Proportionality. The amount of the impact fee shall be calculated by the Planning Board to be a 

proportional share of municipal capital improvement costs which is reasonably related to the capital 

needs created by the development, and to the benefits accruing to the development from the capital 

improvements financed by the fee. The Planning Board may prepare, adopt, or amend studies or reports 

that are consistent with the above standards, and which define a methodology for impact fee assessment 

for public capital facilities, and impact fee assessment schedules therefor.  

(2) Existing deficiencies. Upgrading of existing facilities and infrastructure, the need for which is not 

created by new development, shall not be paid for by impact fees.  

E. Administration. 

(1) Accounting. In accord with RSA 673:16, II, and 674:21, V(c), impact fees shall be accounted for 

separately, shall be segregated from the City's general fund, may be spent upon order of the City 

Council, and shall be used solely for the capital improvements for which they were collected, or to 

recoup the cost of capital improvements made in anticipation of the needs which the fees were collected 

to meet. In the event that bonds or similar debt instruments have been or will be issued by the City of 

Rochester or the Rochester School District for the funding of capital improvements that are the subject 

of impact fee assessment, impact fees from the appropriate related capital facility impact fee accounts 

may be applied to pay debt service on such bonds or similar debt instruments.  

(2) Assessment. All impact fees imposed pursuant to this section shall be assessed at the time of Planning 

Board approval of a subdivision plan or site plan. When Planning Board approval is not required, or has 

been made prior to the adoption or amendment of the impact fee ordinance, impact fees shall be 

assessed prior to, or as a condition for, the issuance of a building permit or other appropriate permission 

to proceed with development, as determined by the Building Inspector. Impact fees shall be intended to 

reflect the effect of development upon municipal and/or school facilities at the time of the issuance of 

the building permit. In determining the amount of the impact fee, when the net increase in floor area has 

01/02/2020

Page 41 of 247



triggered the fee, the calculations shall use only the net increase in floor area.  

(3) Security. In the interim between assessment and collection, the Building Inspector may require 

developers to post bonds, issue letters of credit, accept liens, or otherwise provide suitable measures of 

security so as to guarantee future payment of assessed impact fees.  

(4) Collection. Impact fees shall be collected as a condition for the issuance of a certificate of occupancy; 

provided, however, that in projects where off-site improvements are to be constructed simultaneously 

with a project's development, and where the City has appropriated the necessary funds to cover such 

portions of the work for which it will be responsible, the City may advance the time of collection of the 

impact fee to the issuance of a building permit. If no certificate of occupancy is required, impact fees 

shall be collected when the development is ready for its intended use. Nothing in this section shall 

prevent the Building Inspector, with the approval of the Planning Board, and the assessed party from 

establishing an alternate, mutually acceptable schedule of payment.  

(5) Refund of fees paid. The current owner of record of property for which an impact fee has been paid 

shall be entitled to a refund of that fee, plus accrued interest, under the following circumstances: 

(a) When either the full or partial portion of the impact fee, whichever is applicable, has not been 

encumbered or legally bound to be spent for the purpose for which it was collected within a period of 

six years from the date of the full and final payment of the fee; or  

(b) When the City of Rochester or, in the case of school impact fees, the Rochester School District has 

failed, within the period of six years from the date of the full and final payment of such fee, to 

appropriate its proportionate non-impact fee share of related capital improvement costs.  

F. Appeals. 

(1) A party aggrieved by a decision made by the Building Inspector regarding the assessment or collection 

of impact fees authorized by this section may appeal such decision to the Planning Board.  

(2) In accord with RSA 676:5, III, appeals of the decision of the Planning Board in administering this 

section may be made to Superior Court, as provided in RSA 676:5, III, and 677:15.  

G. Waivers. The Planning Board may grant full or partial waivers of impact fees where the Board finds that 

one or more of the following criteria are met with respect to the particular public capital facilities for 

which impact fees are normally assessed: 

(1) An applicant may request a full or partial waiver of school impact fees for those residential units that are 

lawfully restricted to occupancy by senior citizens age 62 55 or over in a development that is also 

maintained in compliance with the provisions of RSA 354-A:15, Housing for Older Persons. The 

Planning Board may waive school impact fee assessments on such age-restricted units where it finds 

that the property will be bound by lawful deeded restrictions on occupancy by senior citizens age 62 or 

over for a period of at least 20 years.  

(2) A person may request a full or partial waiver of impact fees for construction within a subdivision or site 

plan approved by the Planning Board prior to the effective date of this section. Prior to granting such a 

01/02/2020

Page 42 of 247



waiver, the Planning Board must find that the proposed construction is entitled to the five-year 

exemption provided by RSA 674:39, pursuant to that statute. This waiver shall not be applicable to 

phases of a phased development project where active and substantial development, building and 

construction has not yet occurred in the phase in which construction is proposed. [Amended at time of 

adoption of Code (see Ch. 1, General Provisions, Art. II)]  

(3) The Planning Board may agree to waive all or part of an impact fee assessment and accept in lieu of a 

cash payment a proposed contribution of real property or facility improvements of equivalent value and 

utility to the public. Prior to acting on a request for a waiver of impact fees under this provision that 

would involve a contribution of real property or the construction of capital facilities, the Planning Board 

shall submit a copy of the waiver request to the City Council for its review and consent prior to its 

acceptance of the proposed contribution. The value of contributions or improvements shall be credited 

only toward facilities of like kind and may not be credited to other categories of impact fee assessment. 

The applicant shall pay all costs incurred by the City for the review of such proposal, including 

consultant and counsel fees.  

(4) The Planning Board is responsible, when there is a change in use, for determining the net increase on 

public capital facilities and may agree to waive the entire fee if it determines that its collection and 

administration will exceed its value to the City.  

(4) The Planning Board shall waive all of an impact fee assessment for properties located in the 

Downtown Commercial District, with the district boundaries defined as the boundaries that exist 

at the time of the approval of this amendment.  

(5) The impact fee assessment for accessory dwelling units shall be waived with the stipulation that 

this waiver is reviewed every two (2) years. 

§ 275-27.4 Lots split by municipal boundaries.  

For lots split by municipal boundaries the provisions of RSA 674:53 shall apply. In applying dimensional 

controls to that portion of the lot within Rochester, the dimensions of the entire lot shall be considered 

without reference to the City line. 

§ 275-27.5 Rivers and shoreland protection.  

(Note that listed rivers are subject to change.) 

A. Shoreland protection. Provisions of the New Hampshire Comprehensive Shoreland Protection Act, RSA 

483-B, apply to bodies of water included under that Act.  

B. Rivers management. The Isinglass River and the Cocheco River are protected under the New Hampshire 

Rivers Management and Protection Program, RSA 483.  

§ 275-27.6 Lots split by zoning district boundaries.  

Where the boundary line of a zoning district divides a lot in single or joint ownership at the time of passage 

of the ordinance establishing the boundary line, the following provisions shall apply: 

A. The uses and other standards for either district may, at the option of the owner, extend beyond the 

zoning boundary line up to a maximum distance of 100 feet from that zoning boundary line. For any 

area in which this allowance is used, for any period of time in which this allowance is used, that area 

shall be treated as if its zoning designation were the zone that is being extended.  

01/02/2020

Page 43 of 247



B. The provisions of Subsection A of this section shall not apply to a lot divided by the Recycling 

Industrial Zoning District boundary line. In the case of a lot divided by the Recycling Industrial Zoning 

District boundary line, the uses and regulations permitted and/or applicable to the Recycling Industrial 

Zoning District shall not be extended into the adjoining zoning district.  

C. Overlay districts. The provisions of this section shall not apply to overlay districts.  

§ 275-27.7 Temporary noncompliance.  

The Director of Building, Zoning, and Licensing Services is authorized to approve a temporary 

permit/approval for a noncomplying structure or a noncomplying use incidental to a development where it is 

reasonably required for that development on a temporary basis. The permit/approval may be issued where the 

Director of Building, Zoning, and Licensing Services reasonably determines that: 

A. The temporary structure or use will not be counter to the public interest.  

B. The temporary structure or use will not harm any abutter.  

C. The temporary structure or use will not be counter to the spirit of this chapter.  

D. Proper safeguards are taken.  

E. A reasonable time frame has been established.  

F. No reasonable alternative is available.  

G. Appropriate surety has been provided to ensure compliance with the conditions above.  

§ 275-27.8 Planned unit developments.  

Four planned unit developments (PUDs) were approved by the City of Rochester under a City ordinance 

which is no longer in effect, Section 42.32, Planned Unit Developments, adopted December 5, 2001, and 

amended December 7, 2004. The creation of new planned unit developments is not permitted under this 

chapter. The four approved PUDs, including Secretariat Estates, Highfield Commons, the Homemakers, and 

the Villages at Clark Brook (the original names), may be built in accordance with the provisions of Section 

42.32 of the former Zoning Ordinance and the approved master plans for each of those PUDs. 

 

These changes shall be effective upon passage. 

01/02/2020

Page 44 of 247



City of Rochester Formal Council Meeting  

AGENDA BILL 

NOTE: Agenda Bills are due by 10 AM on the Monday the week before the City Council Meeting.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

COMMITTEE SIGN-OFF 
COMMITTEE  

 
CHAIR PERSON 
 

 

DEPARTMENT APPROVALS 
DEPUTY CITY MANAGER  

 
CITY MANAGER  

FINANCE & BUDGET INFORMATION 
FINANCE OFFICE APPROVAL  

 
SOURCE OF FUNDS 
 

 

ACCOUNT NUMBER  
 

AMOUNT  
 

APPROPRIATION REQUIRED     YES       NO   
 

 

 
LEGAL AUTHORITY 

 
 

 

AGENDA SUBJECT   
 

COUNCIL ACTION ITEM    
INFORMATION ONLY   

FUNDING REQUIRED?   YES    NO  
* IF YES ATTACH A FUNDING RESOLUTION FORM 

RESOLUTION REQUIRED?   YES    NO  
 

FUNDING RESOLUTION FORM?   YES    NO  
 

AGENDA DATE 
 

 

DEPT. HEAD SIGNATURE  
 

DATE SUBMITTED 
 

 

ATTACHMENTS         YES   NO   
  

* IF YES, ENTER THE  TOTAL NUMBER OF 
PAGES ATTACHED 

 

1iSoGHESTER £
L-/-" -V

- 7K

r

01/02/2020

Page 45 of 247



 
SUMMARY STATEMENT 

 
 

 

 RECOMMENDED ACTION 
 
 

01/02/2020

Page 46 of 247



Amendment to Chapter 275 of the General Ordinances of the City of Rochester Regarding 

Conditional Uses Within the Downtown Commercial District 

THE CITY OF ROCHESTER ORDAINS: 

That Chapter 275, Section 21.4.I of the General Ordinances of the City of Rochester and 

currently before the Rochester City Council, be amended as follows: 

I. Multifamily dwellings/developments in Downtown Commercial District as referenced in 

Chapter 275-20.2 (K)(4) shall: 

 

1) Have a sprinkler system installed as required by building and fire codes. 

 

2) Shall reserve a space to allow for a duct system as required by building codes. 

These amendments shall take effect upon passage. 

 

 

01/02/2020

Page 47 of 247



 
 

Intentionally 
left blank… 

City Clerk’s Office 

 

01/02/2020

Page 48 of 247



Amendment to Chapter 275 of the General Ordinances of the City of Rochester Regarding 

Residential Uses Within the Downtown Commercial District 

THE CITY OF ROCHESTER ORDAINS: 

That Chapter 275, Section 20.2.K. (4) of the General Ordinances of the City of Rochester and 

currently before the Rochester City Council, be amended as follows: 

4) Downtown Commercial District. Within the Downtown Commercial (DC) District, 

multifamily is allowed with the following restrictions:  

 

(a) For parcels fronting on the streets noted below, ground floor space of 30’ multiplied by 

the building frontage, or (700 sq. ft.) (800 sq. ft.)*, whichever is greater, shall be reserved for 

non-residential uses as permitted in the DC District, unless otherwise required to comply with 

state building code and/or fire code.  Any area excluded due to building code and/or fire code 

shall not count toward the minimum.  This applies to the entire portion of the building fronting 

on the street.  The remaining area of the first floor may contain residential units as  a conditional 

use.  

viii. Union Street  

ix. North Main Street south of North Main Street Bridge  

x. South Main Street  

xi. Wakefield Street south of Columbus Avenue  

xii. Hanson Street  

xiii. Museum Way 

xiv. Columbus Avenue (from Summer Street to South Main Street) 

 

(b) The first floor commercial space may be split into different commercial uses totaling the 

required square footage. 

(c) DC Zone District parcels not fronting on the above streets may contain multifamily use and 

units on all floors without restrictions. 

 

These amendments shall take effect upon passage. 

 

01/02/2020

Page 49 of 247



 
 

Intentionally 
left blank… 

City Clerk’s Office 

 

01/02/2020

Page 50 of 247



City of Rochester Formal Council Meeting  

AGENDA BILL 

NOTE: Agenda Bills are due by 10 AM on the Monday the week before the City Council Meeting.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

COMMITTEE SIGN-OFF 
COMMITTEE  

 
CHAIR PERSON 
 

 

DEPARTMENT APPROVALS 
DEPUTY CITY MANAGER  

 
CITY MANAGER  

FINANCE & BUDGET INFORMATION 
FINANCE OFFICE APPROVAL  

 
SOURCE OF FUNDS 
 

 

ACCOUNT NUMBER  
 

AMOUNT  
 

APPROPRIATION REQUIRED     YES       NO   
 

 

 
LEGAL AUTHORITY 

 
 

 

AGENDA SUBJECT   
 

COUNCIL ACTION ITEM    
INFORMATION ONLY   

FUNDING REQUIRED?   YES    NO  
* IF YES ATTACH A FUNDING RESOLUTION FORM 

RESOLUTION REQUIRED?   YES    NO  
 

FUNDING RESOLUTION FORM?   YES    NO  
 

AGENDA DATE 
 

 

DEPT. HEAD SIGNATURE  
 

DATE SUBMITTED 
 

 

ATTACHMENTS         YES   NO   
  

* IF YES, ENTER THE  TOTAL NUMBER OF 
PAGES ATTACHED 

 

1iSoGHESTER £
L-/-" -V

- 7K

r

01/02/2020

Page 51 of 247



 
SUMMARY STATEMENT 

 
 

 

 RECOMMENDED ACTION 
 
 

01/02/2020

Page 52 of 247



City of Rochester  Regular City Council Meeting 
Draft  December 3, 2019 

1 
 

Regular City Council Meeting 
December 3, 2019 

Council Chambers 
                                                      7:02 PM 

 

MINUTES 

 
1. Call to Order 

 
Mayor McCarley called the meeting to order at 7:02 PM.  

 
2. Opening Prayer 

 
Mayor McCarley requested a brief moment of silence.  

 
3. Pledge of Allegiance  

 
Mayor McCarley led the Pledge of Allegiance.  

  

4. Roll Call 
 

Kelly Walters, City Clerk, called the roll. All Councilors were present 
except for Councilor Lauterborn who had been excused and *Councilor 

Lachapelle who arrived at 7:19 PM.  
 

COUNCILORS PRESENT OTHERS PRESENT  
Councilor Abbott  Blaine Cox, City Manager 

Councilor Bogan 

Councilor Gates 

Katie Ambrose, Deputy City Manager 

Terence O’Rourke, City Attorney 
Councilor Gray  

Councilor Hamman 
Councilor Hutchinson   

Councilor Keans 

 Peter Nourse, Director of City Services 

 Gregory L. Bakos, Principal, PE at VHB 
 

*Councilor Lachapelle 

Councilor Torr 
Councilor Walker 

Deputy Mayor Varney 
Mayor McCarley 

 

 

COUNCILORS EXCUSED 

Councilor Lauterborn 
 

 

 

 

01/02/2020

Page 53 of 247



City of Rochester  Regular City Council Meeting 
Draft  December 3, 2019 

2 
 

5. Acceptance of Minutes 
 

5.1 Regular City Council Meeting: November 6, 2019 
consideration for approval  

 
Councilor Walker MOVED to ACCEPT the Regular City Council meeting 

minutes of November 6, 2019. Councilor Bogan seconded the motion. The 
MOTION CARRIED by a unanimous voice vote.  

 
6. Communications from the City Manager 

 
6.1  Employee of the Month Award 

 
City Manager Cox invited Julian Long, Economic Development 

Department to accept the Award. City Manager Cox announced that Mr. Long 

has been awarded the Employee of the Month Award for December, 2019. Mr. 
Cox read the nomination letter submitted by the Riverwalk Committee 

members.  
 

6.2  City Manager’s Report  
 

The City Manager’s Report is as follows: 
 

Contracts and Documents: 
 

 

 Department of Public Works 

o Apex Construction – Notice of Award- River Street Sewer Pump 
Station Upgrade Project – Bid #20-11 

o Brown & Caldwell Engineer Construction Admin Contract – 

River Street Sewer Pump Station Upgrade Project 
o Weston & Sampson Engineers – Cocheco Well Redevelopment 

Contract  
o Hoyle, Tanner & Associates Task Order #11 CIP Assist – 

Intersection Projects 
o Wright Pierce – Rt. 202A Water Main Exension & Water Storage 

Tank Design Contract – Amendment #1 
o SUR Construction – Sidewalk Installations 

o Tree City USA Recertification 
o Upper Sheepboro Road Maintenance Plan – Access for WTP 

Source Water Watershed parcels  
o Weston & Sampson – Tara Estates Pump Station Conceptual 

Design 
o WTP Project – Keymont Construction/Allegheny Insurance IFIC 

- Change Orders and Final Close-Out 

01/02/2020

Page 54 of 247



City of Rochester  Regular City Council Meeting 
Draft  December 3, 2019 

3 
 

 Economic Development Department 
o CDBG – HDC Façade Program 

o CDBG CAP Weatherization Program – environmental review 
– furnace replacement and air sealing work for 

manufactured home 
o Homeless Center of Strafford County – Addendum  

 Finance Department 
o Revision Energy – Letter of Intent 

 Information Technology 
o Bogan – consulting contract 

 Legal Department 
o Waterstone - Acceptance of Warranty Deed 

 Recreation & Arena Department 
o Free Comic Book Day MOU 

 

Computer Lease/Purchase or Tuition Reimbursement Requests: 
 

 Computer Purchase – Young, R – Police 
 

Standard Reports:  
 

 Monthly Overnight Travel Summary  
 Permission & Permits Issued  

 Personnel Action Report Summary  
 

City Manager Cox said the Tax Rate has been set at $24.90 per $1,000 
of property value, which is less than what had been projected during the 

budget season ($28.06). The tax bills shall be sent out around December 16, 
2019. 

 

 City Manager Cox gave a brief overview of the recent storm. He stated 
that the Department of Public Works reported that there were no major events 

or breakdown in equipment. The Police Department received 30 calls that 
could be directly contributed to the storm, at least 12 accidents and one roll-

over accident. The Fire Department dealt with eleven incidents; however, 
there were no structural fires or major incidents during the storm.  

 
 Councilor Gray requested an explanation about the property re-

assessments which have not yet been posted to the website.  
 

 Deputy City Manager Ambrose said as of today that Patriot Properties 
has not been able to update the webpro portion of the website with the 

updated assessed values; however, property owners may view the assessed 
values on the GIS portion of the website, or by viewing the online bill pay. 

She added that the Assessing Kiosk located in the Assessing Department has 

01/02/2020

Page 55 of 247



City of Rochester  Regular City Council Meeting 
Draft  December 3, 2019 

4 
 

been updated as well.   
 

 Councilor Varney asked about the Route 202 Water Main Extension & 
Water Storage Tank Design. He questioned if there had been a final agreement 

now that the design phase has begun. City Attorney O’Rourke confirmed that 
the City has made a proposal; however, no agreement has been reached as 

of yet. Commissioner Nourse said it seems that the property owner is open to 
committing some property in that area for the water tank and confirmed there 

is no final agreement. Commissioner Nourse said in the meantime the design 
work is continuing. Councilor Varney hoped that the project would not need 

to be reengineered to another location if the agreement is not reached.  
 

 Councilor Varney asked if the Tara Estates Pump Station is just a rebuild 
with the same capacity or is the capacity being expanded. If the capacity is 

being expanded is the development across the street assisting with this 

project? Commissioner Nourse said there is funding in this year’s budget to 
conduct an initial evaluation of the pump station. This will be followed up in 

the next fiscal year with a design and construction will begin the following 
fiscal year. At this point, it is just in the evaluation stage and no contributions 

have been discussed as of yet.  Councilor Varney asked if there had been an 
exaction when the subdivision had been approved.  Jim Campbell, Director of 

Planning and Development, agreed to get more information to the City 
Council.  

 
 Councilor Varney asked about the Waterstone deed and if the City is 

now responsible for plowing and road maintenance on this property that the 
City has been deeded. City Manager Cox replied yes.  

 
 Councilor Torr asked about the water tank anticipated to be built on 

Hussey Hill; he stated, it seems that the area is full of mud and has become 

un-drivable and it seems the soil in that area could not hold a water tank. 
Commissioner Nourse said the condition of the mud and unfinished road is 

being reviewed by the Planning Department and it is being addressed with the 
developer; however, the actual site for the water tank is on the backside of 

that hill. There was soil testing completed which resulted in finding good 
material.  

 
 Councilor Keans asked about the PR Specialist/IT Admin position which 

increased by 4 hours. City Manager Cox replied that this was the additional 4 
hours approved in the Fiscal Year 2019 budget for the IT Department.  A 

current employee working part-time in the Human Resources Department 
picked up 4 additional hours in the IT Department.          

 
7.   Communications from the Mayor 

 

01/02/2020

Page 56 of 247



City of Rochester  Regular City Council Meeting 
Draft  December 3, 2019 

5 
 

7.1 Inauguration to be held on Thursday January 2, 2020  
 

7.1.1 Suspend Section 1.1 of the Rules of Order  
 

7.1.2 Motion to Approve the January 2, 2020 
Inaugural Date  

 
  Mayor McCarley stated that the Rules of Order dictate when the 

Inauguration can be held; however, the Opera House is not available on 
Tuesday January 7, 2020. The City Council may suspend the Council Rules of 

Order and hold the Inauguration on January 2, 2020, which would require a 
2/3rd majority vote.  

 
  Councilor Walker MOVED to suspend the Rules of Order (Section 1.1) 

and set the Inaugural date to January 2, 2020.  Councilor Bogan seconded the 

motion. The MOTION CARRIED by a unanimous voice vote.  
 

7.2 Non-Public Meeting Minutes Review Committee: Non-Public 
Minutes selected for release motion to unseal 

 
  Councilor Varney MOVED to unseal a number of Non-Public Meeting 

Minutes. Councilor Walker seconded the motion. The MOTION CARRIED by a 
unanimous voice vote. 

 
  Mayor McCarley stated that a few City Councilors will be departing the 

City Council at the end of the year and are normally granted the privilege to 
address the City Council and constituents. She requested that such 

commentaries be delayed until the December 17, 2020, City Council 
Workshop.   

 

  Mayor McCarley announced that the lighting of the Christmas Tree and 
events to follow will occur on this coming Friday and Saturday. The Annual 

Christmas Parade will be held on Sunday starting at 3 PM. This year there will 
be a banner for the Election Officials to stand behind and all newly elected 

officials are welcome to join.  
 

  Councilor Hamman wished to thank residents Ray and Cecile “Sis” 
Gagne of Rochester for donating the 25-foot blue spruce tree. Mayor McCarley 

thanked them too and said it was a beautiful tree.  
 

8.   Presentation of Petitions and Council Correspondence 
 

      No discussion. 
 

9. Nominations, Appointments, Resignations, and Elections 

01/02/2020

Page 57 of 247



City of Rochester  Regular City Council Meeting 
Draft  December 3, 2019 

6 
 

 
9.1. Resignation: Joyce Bruckner, Planning Board (alternate) 

 
 Mayor McCarley MOVED to ACCEPT the resignation of Joyce 

Bruckner, Planning Board, with regret. Councilor Walker seconded the 
motion. The MOTION CARRIED by a unanimous voice vote.  

 
10. Reports of Committees  

 
10.1 Appointments Review Committee 

 
10.1.1 Re-Appointment: Daniel Rines – Planning Board, 

elevation from alternate to Regular member, 
Term to expire 1/2/2023 

 

 Councilor Keans reviewed the Committee’s Recommendation to elevate 
Daniel Rines from an Alternate Member of the Planning Board to a Regular 

Member of the Planning Board. Mayor McCarley nominated Mr. Rines to serve 
as a Regular Member of the Planning Board with a term to expire on January 

2, 2023. Councilor Bogan seconded the nomination. Councilor Walker MOVED 
that nominations cease and the Clerk cast one ballot for Mr. Rines. Councilor 

Bogan seconded the motion. The MOTION CARRIED by a unanimous voice 
vote. Mr. Rines has been appointed as a Regular Member of the Planning Board 

with a unanimous voice vote.  
 

10.1.2 Appointment: Kristen Ebbeson – Arts & Culture 
Commission, term to expire 7/1/2020 

 
 Councilor Keans reviewed the Committee’s Recommendation to appoint 

Kristen Ebbeson as a Representative to the Arts and Culture Commission. 

Mayor McCarley nominated Ms. Ebbeson to serve on the Arts and Culture 
Commission with a term to expire on July 1, 2020. Councilor Walker seconded 

the nomination. Councilor Walker MOVED that nominations cease and the 
Clerk cast one ballot for Ms. Ebbeson. Councilor Bogan seconded the motion. 

The MOTION CARRIED by a unanimous voice vote. Ms. Ebbeson has been 
appointed to the Arts and Culture Commission by a unanimous voice vote.  

 
10.1.3 Re-Appointment: Susan “Candy” Bailey – Library 

Trustee Ward 3, term to expire 1/2/2023 
 

 Councilor Keans reviewed the Committee’s Recommendation to 
reappoint Susan “Candy” Bailey as the Ward Three Library Trustee. Mayor 

McCarley nominated Ms. Bailey to serve as the Ward Three Library Trustee 
with a term to expire on January 1, 2023. Councilor Bogan seconded the 

nomination. Councilor Walker MOVED that nominations cease and the Clerk 

01/02/2020

Page 58 of 247



City of Rochester  Regular City Council Meeting 
Draft  December 3, 2019 

7 
 

cast one ballot for Ms. Bailey. Councilor Bogan seconded the motion. The 
MOTION CARRIED by a unanimous voice vote. Ms. Bailey has been 

reappointed as the Ward Three Library Trustee by a unanimous voice vote. 
 

10.1.4 Appointment: A. Raymond Varney – Trustees of 
the Trust Fund, term to expire 1/2/2023 

 
 Councilor Keans reviewed the Committee’s Recommendation to appoint 

Ray Varney as a member of the Trustees of the Trust Fund. Mayor McCarley 
nominated Mr. Varney to serve as a member of the Trustees of the Trust Fund 

with a term to expire on January 1, 2023. Councilor Walker seconded the 
nomination. Councilor Walker MOVED that nominations cease and the Clerk 

cast one ballot for Mr. Varney. Councilor Bogan seconded the motion. The 
MOTION CARRIED by a unanimous voice vote. Ms. Varney has been 

appointed as a member of the Trustees to the Trust Fund by a unanimous 

voice vote. 
 

10.2 Codes & Ordinances Committee – Meeting Canceled  
 

 No discussion.  
 

10.3 Community Development Committee – Meeting Canceled  
 

 No discussion.  
 

10.4 CTE Joint Building Committee  
 

 Councilor Varney stated that the Committee met on November 25, 
2019. A packet of slides shows the construction progress which is near 

completion. The project should be completed by the end of the colander year 

with the exception of the playground equipment which has taken longer than 
anticipated to be delivered; it will likely be installed in the spring. The 

Committee approved some additional spending under the assumption that the 
$240,000 supplemental appropriation would be approved later on this agenda. 

He added that the contingency balance would be between $45,000 to $47,000. 
Mayor McCarley stated that the last meeting for the CTE Joint Building 

Committee is scheduled for December 16, 2019 and it is very likely that the 
contingency would remain the same.  

 
10.5 Finance Committee  

 
10.5.1 Use of General Fund Unassigned Fund Balance  

 
10.5.1.1 Resolution Changing Funding Source of 

Various Capital Improvement Project 

01/02/2020

Page 59 of 247



City of Rochester  Regular City Council Meeting 
Draft  December 3, 2019 

8 
 

Appropriations from Borrowing to General 
Fund Unassigned Fund Balance in an 

amount not to exceed $2,051,373.08 first 
reading and refer to public hearing 

12/17/19 
 

Mayor McCarley said the Finance Committee met and kept the 
discussions about the water and sewer rates in Committee at this time.  

 
Mayor McCarley said there was a lengthy discussion about the use of 

the General Fund Balance in order to pay down debt service; however, she 
explained why the proposed resolutions are slightly different from what the 

Committee originally voted upon.   
 

Councilor Lachapelle MOVED to read the resolution for the first time by 

title only.  Councilor Walker seconded the motion. The MOTION CARRIED by 
a unanimous voice vote. Mayor McCarley read the resolution for the first time 

as follows:  
 

Resolution Changing Funding Source of Various Capital Improvement 
Project Appropriations from Borrowing to General Fund Unassigned 

Fund Balance in an amount not to exceed $2,051,373.08 
 

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
ROCHESTER, AS FOLLOWS: 

 

I.  CIP FUND 1501 

 

WHEREAS, by virtue of various resolutions adopted by the Mayor and City 

Council of the City of Rochester, the Mayor and City Council appropriated the 

sum of One Million Six Hundred Forty Five Thousand Eight Hundred Seventy 

Five and 55/100 Dollars ($1,645,875.55) to various City and School Fund 

1501 Capital Improvement Project budgets of the City of Rochester, all as 

more particularly set forth in Exhibit A annexed hereto; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Mayor and City Council of the City of Rochester have 

determined that the best interests of the City are served by changing the 

funding source for the projects referenced in Exhibit A annexed hereto from 

Borrowing, to General Fund unassigned fund balance; 

 

NOW THEREFORE, the Mayor and City Council of the City of Rochester, by 

adoption of this Resolution, hereby change the funding source for the projects 

01/02/2020

Page 60 of 247



City of Rochester  Regular City Council Meeting 
Draft  December 3, 2019 

9 
 

referenced in Exhibit A from Borrowing to General Fund unassigned fund 

balance. 

 

FURTHER, in accordance with the provisions of RSA 33:9 and Section 45 of 

the Rochester City Charter, the Mayor and City Council of the City Rochester, 

hereby withdraw borrowing authority in the amount of One Million Six Hundred 

Eighty Three Thousand Three Hundred Thirty Four and 52/100 Dollars 

($1,683,334.52). 

 

II.  WATER CIP FUND 5501 

 

WHEREAS, by virtue of various resolutions adopted by the Mayor and City 

Council of the City of Rochester, the Mayor and City Council appropriated the 

sum of Two Hundred Fifty Three Thousand Three Hundred Seventy Eight and 

96/100 Dollars ($253,378.96) to various Water Fund 5501 Capital 

Improvement Project budgets of the City of Rochester, all as more particularly 

set forth in Exhibit A annexed hereto; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Mayor and City Council of the City of Rochester have 

determined that the best interests of the City are served by changing the 

funding source for the projects referenced in Exhibit A annexed hereto from 

Borrowing, to General Fund unassigned fund balance; 

 

NOW THEREFORE, the Mayor and City Council of the City of Rochester, by 

adoption of this Resolution, hereby change the funding source for the projects 

referenced in Exhibit A from Borrowing to General Fund unassigned fund 

balance. 

 

FURTHER, in accordance with the provisions of RSA 33:9 and Section 45 of 

the Rochester City Charter, the Mayor and City Council of the City Rochester, 

hereby withdraw borrowing authority in the amount of Two Hundred Fifty 

Three Thousand Three Hundred Seventy Eight and 96/100 Dollars 

($253,378.96). 

 

III.  SEWER CIP FUND 5502 

 

WHEREAS, by virtue of various resolutions adopted by the Mayor and City 

Council of the City of Rochester, the Mayor and City Council appropriated the 

01/02/2020

Page 61 of 247



City of Rochester  Regular City Council Meeting 
Draft  December 3, 2019 

10 
 

sum of One Hundred Fifty Two Thousand One Hundred Eighteen and 57/100 

Dollars ($152,118.57) to various Sewer Fund 5502 Capital Improvement 

Project budgets of the City of Rochester, all as more particularly set forth in 

Exhibit A annexed hereto; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Mayor and City Council of the City of Rochester have 

determined that the best interests of the City are served by changing the 

funding source for the projects referenced in Exhibit A annexed hereto from 

Borrowing, to General Fund unassigned fund balance; 

 

NOW THEREFORE, the Mayor and City Council of the City of Rochester, by 

adoption of this Resolution, hereby change the funding source for the projects 

referenced in Exhibit A from Borrowing to General Fund unassigned fund 

balance. 

 

FURTHER, in accordance with the provisions of RSA 33:9 and Section 45 of 

the Rochester City Charter, the Mayor and City Council of the City Rochester, 

hereby withdraw borrowing authority in the amount of One Hundred Fifty Two 

Thousand One Hundred Eighteen and 57/100 Dollars ($152,118.57). 

 

To the extent not otherwise provided for in this Resolution, the Finance 

Director is hereby authorized to designate and/or establish such accounts 

and/or account numbers as necessary to implement the transactions 

contemplated by this Resolution.  

 

 Councilor Lachapelle MOVED to refer the matter to a Public Hearing on 

December 17, 2019. Councilor Walker seconded the motion. The MOTION 

CARRIED by a unanimous voice vote.   

 
10.5.1.2 Resolution Authorizing Supplemental 

Appropriation for Various 2019-2020 Fund 
1501 Capital Improvement Projects from 

General Fund Unassigned Fund Balance in 

the amount of $1,520,000.00 first reading 
and refer to public hearing 12/17/19 

 
 Councilor Lachapelle MOVED to read the resolution for the first time by 

title only.  Councilor Walker seconded the motion. The MOTION CARRIED by 
a unanimous voice vote. Mayor McCarley read the resolution for the first time 

as follows:   

01/02/2020

Page 62 of 247



City of Rochester  Regular City Council Meeting 
Draft  December 3, 2019 

11 
 

 
Resolution Authorizing Supplemental Appropriation for Various 

2019-2020 Fund 1501 Capital Improvement Projects from General 
Fund Unassigned Fund Balance in the amount of $1,520,000.00  

 
BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

ROCHESTER, AS FOLLOWS: 
 

That the sum of One Million Five Hundred Twenty Thousand Dollars 

($1,520,000) be, and hereby is, appropriated as part of the City of Rochester 

2019-2020 Fund 1501 Capital Improvements Plan budget of the City of 

Rochester for the following three projects; 

 

1. Dispatch Center – Radio Improvements Project $250,000.00 
2. Department of Public Works – Paving Rehabilitation $1,000,000.00 

3. School Department – CTE Renovation – Additional Equipment 
$270,000.00 

 

Further, that the sums necessary to fund such appropriation shall be derived 

from General Fund unassigned fund balance. 

 

To the extent not otherwise provided for in this Resolution, the Finance 

Director is hereby authorized to designate and/or establish such accounts 

and/or account numbers as necessary to implement the transactions 

contemplated by this Resolution.  

 
 Councilor Lachapelle MOVED to refer the matter to a Public Hearing on 

December 17, 2019. Councilor Walker seconded the motion. The MOTION 
CARRIED by a unanimous voice vote. 

 

10.6 Public Safety  
 

10.6.1 Committee Recommendation: To change the 
traffic flow on Myrtle Street from woodman Street 

to Charles Street  to One-Way consideration for 
approval  

 
 Councilor Walker MOVED to APPROVE the Committee’s 

Recommendation to change the traffic flow on Myrtle Street from Woodman 
Street to Charles Street to one-way. Councilor Hamman seconded the motion. 

Councilor Keans referred to the map in the City Council packet which shows 
two-way traffic. Councilor Walker clarified that these are two-way streets and 

the motion is to change those streets to one-way traffic. The MOTION 

01/02/2020

Page 63 of 247



City of Rochester  Regular City Council Meeting 
Draft  December 3, 2019 

12 
 

CARRIED by a unanimous voice vote. 
 

10.6.2 Committee Recommendation: To change the 
traffic flow on Congress Street from Charles 

Street to Myrtle Street to One-Way consideration 
for approval 

 
  Councilor Walker MOVED to APPROVE the Committee’s 

Recommendation to change the traffic flow on Congress Street from Charles 
Street to Myrtle Street to one-way. Councilor Lachapelle seconded the motion. 

The MOTION CARRIED by a unanimous voice vote.   
 

 Councilor Keans asked if the residents and parents of the students 
attending school were informed of the proposed change of traffic on 

Woodman, Congress, and Myrtle Streets. Councilor Walker replied yes, and 

that a public hearing was held.  
 

10.6.3 Committee Recommendation: To deny the 
request for “No Thru Trucks” signs on Quail Drive 

consideration for approval 
 

 Councilor Walker MOVED to APPROVE the Committee’s 
Recommendation to: Deny the request for “No Thru Trucks” signs on Quail 

Drive. Councilor Hamman seconded the motion. The MOTION CARRIED by 
a unanimous voice vote.  

 
 Councilor Lachapelle requested one correction to the Public Safety 

Meeting minutes under “other”. The minutes indicate the following: “Councilor 
Lachapelle asked if the trees and bushes could be cut back coming from Dover 

to Rochester on Tebbetts Road.” The minutes should reflect just the opposite 

that DPW should take a look at cutting back the trees and bushes on the side 
of the road, traveling from Gonic on Pickering Road towards Dover just prior 

to hitting Tebbetts Road.   
 

10.7 Public Works  

 

10.7.1 Resolution for Supplemental Appropriation  
and Authorizing Borrowing Authority Pursuant 

to RSA 33:9 to the Department of Public Works 

(DPW) Capital Improvements Plan (CIP) Fund, 
the Sewer CIP Fund, and the Water CIP Fund 

for the New DPW Facility Project in an amount 
not to exceed $4,000,000.00 first reading and 

refer to public hearing on 12/17/19  

01/02/2020

Page 64 of 247



City of Rochester  Regular City Council Meeting 
Draft  December 3, 2019 

13 
 

 
  

 
 Mayor McCarley said the Public Works Committee had not taken an 

actual vote to send this resolution to full the City Council; however, it had 
been discussed at prior Committee meetings and therefore has been placed 

under the Committee Report for discussion. She invited Commissioner 
Nourse to come forward and address the City Council about the proposed 

resolution.  
 

 Commissioner Nourse gave a brief overview of the request for 
additional funding and the bidding process. The bid did not include 

approximately $2,500,000 of soft-cost which will be done in-house. The 
bid also did not set funding aside for a healthy contingency fund. The 

adjusted low bid is $19,982,000. He summarized that construction costs 

are increasing every year and postponing this project is likely to result in 
a more expensive project. He gave reasons why there is a short fall of 

$3,926,066 from the original estimate. He said the short fall was rounded 
up to $4,000,000 and includes a healthy contingency fund of $1,400,000. 

This is a new building project and most of the contingency is not likely to 
be needed.  

 
 Councilor Lachapelle MOVED to read the resolution for the first time 

by title only.  Councilor Walker seconded the motion. The MOTION 
CARRIED by a unanimous voice vote. Mayor McCarley read the resolution 

for the first time as follows:   
 

Resolution for Supplemental Appropriation and Authorizing 
Borrowing Authority Pursuant to RSA 33:9 to the Department of 

Public Works (DPW) Capital Improvements Plan (CIP) Fund, the 

Sewer CIP Fund, and the Water CIP Fund for the New DPW Facility 
Project in an amount not to exceed $4,000,000.00 

 
BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

ROCHESTER, AS FOLLOWS: 
 

That the Mayor and City Council of the City of Rochester hereby appropriate 

an amount not to exceed Four Million Dollars ($4,000,000.00) for the purpose 

of paying the costs associated with the completion of the New DPW Facility 

Project and the appropriation shall be divided amongst three (3) funds as 

follows:  Two Million Dollars ($2,000,000.00) to the DPW CIP Fund, One Million 

Dollars ($1,000,000.00) to the Sewer CIP Fund, and One Million Dollars 

($1,000,000.00) to the Water CIP Fund. 

 

01/02/2020

Page 65 of 247



City of Rochester  Regular City Council Meeting 
Draft  December 3, 2019 

14 
 

In accordance with the provisions of RSA 33:9, the City Treasurer, with the 

approval of the City Manager, be, and hereby are authorized to borrow the 

sum of Four Million Dollars ($4,000,000.00) through the issuance of bonds 

and/or notes, and/or through other legal form(s), such borrowing to be on 

such terms and conditions as the said Treasurer and City Manager may deem 

to be in the best interest of the City of Rochester.  Such borrowing is 

authorized subject to compliance with the provisions of RSA 33:9 and Section 

45 of the Rochester City Charter to the extent required, necessary and/or 

appropriate 

 

To the extent not otherwise provided for in this Resolution, the Finance 

Director is hereby authorized to designate and/or establish such accounts 

and/or account numbers as necessary to implement the transactions 

contemplated by this Resolution.  

 

 Councilor Lachapelle MOVED to refer the matter to a Public Hearing on 
December 17, 2019. Councilor Walker seconded the motion. Councilor Walker 

requested that a typo on the Agenda be corrected. The MOTION CARRIED 
by a unanimous voice vote.  

         
10.7.2 Committee Recommendation: Dedication of 

Community Center Basketball Court to Coach 
Tim Cronin consideration for approval  

 

 Councilor Torr MOVED to APPROVE the Committee’s Recommendation 
to dedicate the Community Center Basketball Court to Coach Tim Cronin. 

Councilor Walker seconded the motion. The MOTION CARRIED by a 
unanimous voice vote.   

 
10.7.3 Committee recommendation: To approve the 

new paving list as presented: Jonathan and 
Huckins Lane, Columbus Ave from Lowell to 

Knight Street, Cross Road from Milton Road to 
Stacy Drive and Salmon Falls from Stonewall to 

the town line.  motion to approve  
 

 Councilor Torr MOVED to APPROVE the Committee’s Recommendation 
to: Approve the new paving list as presented: Jonathan and Huckins Lane, 

Columbus Avenue from Lowell to Knight Street, Cross Road from Milton Road 

to Stacy Drive and Salmon Fall from Stonewall to the *Somersworth town line. 
Councilor Walker seconded the motion. *Councilor Keans requested that the 

recommendation clarify that it is the “Somersworth’ town line to which the 

01/02/2020

Page 66 of 247



City of Rochester  Regular City Council Meeting 
Draft  December 3, 2019 

15 
 

recommendation refers. Councilor Torr and Councilor Walker concurred and 
the motion reflects the change. The MOTION CARRIED by a unanimous voice 

vote.   
 

 Councilor Gray asked if the City Council should formally accept 
Marketplace Blvd as a City street located at the Granite Ridge Development. 

City Attorney O’Rourke replied that the City accepted the property as part of 
the development agreement and the developer issued a warranty deed and it 

is filed with the Registry of Deeds. He said Marketplace Blvd is now an 
accepted City street.  

 
11. Old Business 

 
No discussion.  

 

12. Consent Calendar 
 

 No discussion.  

 

13. New Business 
 

13.1 Resolution to Amend the Community Development 
Block Grant (CDBG) Funds for Fiscal Year 2020 

regarding the Opera House Chairlift first reading, 

consideration for second reading and adoption 
 

 Councilor Lachapelle MOVED to read the resolution for the first time 
by title only.  Councilor Walker seconded the motion. The MOTION 

CARRIED by a unanimous voice vote. Mayor McCarley read the resolution 
for the first time as follows:   

 

DRAFT – CITY OF ROCHESTER FY 20 CDBG ACTION PLAN 

AMENDMENT – ROCHESTER OPERA HOUSE CHAIRLIFT 

Resolution to Amend the Community Development Block Grant 

(CDBG) Funds for Fiscal Year 2020 

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

ROCHESTER, AS FOLLOWS: 

WHEREAS, the City of Rochester has received a bid on the approved Rochester 

Opera House Chairlift project in excess of the allocated FY 2020 Community 

Development Block Grant (CDBG) allocated funds; 

01/02/2020

Page 67 of 247



City of Rochester  Regular City Council Meeting 
Draft  December 3, 2019 

16 
 

WHEREAS, the City of Rochester has unexpended FY 2019 CDBG funds 

available to be reallocated to present CDBG projects; 

THEREFORE, the Mayor and City Council of the City of Rochester, by adoption 

of this resolution, hereby appropriate Nine Thousand Three Hundred Forty-

Eight Dollars ($9,348.00) in unexpended prior year CDBG funds for the 

Rochester Opera House Chairlift project.  

FURTHER, that the funds necessary to fund the above appropriation shall be 

drawn in their entirety from the above-mentioned FY 2019 CDBG grant funds 

that the City of Rochester has received from the federal government.  

FURTHER STILL, to the extent not otherwise provided for in this Resolution, 

the Finance Director is hereby authorized to designate and/or establish such 

accounts and/or account numbers as necessary to implement the transactions 

contemplated by this Resolution and to establish special revenue, non-lapsing, 

multi-year fund accounts(s) as necessary to which said sums shall be 

recorded. 

 Councilor Lachapelle MOVED to suspend the rules and read the 

resolution for a second time by title only. Councilor Walker seconded the 

motion. The MOTION CARRIED by a majority voice vote. Mayor McCarley 

read the resolution by title only for a second time.  

 Councilor Lachapelle MOVED to ADOPT the resolution. Councilor 

Walker seconded the motion. Mayor McCarley supported the motion and 

mentioned that this project is utilizing unused CDBG funds. The MOTION 

CARRIED by a unanimous voice vote.  

13.2 Presentation: Updated Transportation Master Plan 

(Planning Board Public Hearing 12/16/19) Full 
Transportation Master Plan – Click Here 

 
  Jim Campbell, Director of Planning and Development, addressed the 

City Council. He said the City has not updated the Transportaion Master plan 
since 2001. He thanked the City Council for providing funding to hire a 

consultant and invited Gregory L. Bakos, Principal, PE at VHB, to give a 
presentation of the updated Transportation Master Plan.  

 
 Mr. Bakos gave a lengthy Powerpoint Presentation and opened up for 

questions. To view the full Transportation Master Plan see the above link.  
 

 Councilor Keans asked about the financial component involved with 

01/02/2020

Page 68 of 247

https://www.rochesternh.net/sites/rochesternh/files/uploads/transportation_master_plan_draft_11-27-19.pdf
https://www.rochesternh.net/sites/rochesternh/files/uploads/transportation_master_plan_draft_11-27-19.pdf


City of Rochester  Regular City Council Meeting 
Draft  December 3, 2019 

17 
 

these items. She indicated that some of the items mentioned have been on 
prior Transportation Master Plans for the City of Rochester. Mr. Bakos said it 

is difficult to enter an associated costs to individual items without knowing 
which direction the City will seek to resolve some of the issues. In the 

meantime, an estimated cost is identified as low, medium, or high. Mayor 
McCarley wished to clarify that the Planning Board would hold a Public hearing 

to take place in Council Chambers on December 16, 2019.  
 

13.3 Amendment to Chapter 275 of the General Ordinances of 
the City of Rochester Regarding the Impact Fee Ordinance 

first reading and refer to public hearing  
 

 Councilor Lachapelle MOVED to read the Amendment for the first time 
by title only.  Councilor Walker seconded the motion. The MOTION CARRIED 

by a unanimous voice vote. Mayor McCarley clarified that this Amendment is 

not changing the Impact Fees; however, it is changing the language within 
the Ordinance regarding the Impact Fees. Mayor McCarley read the 

Amendment for the first time by title only as follows:  
 

Amendment to Chapter 275 of the General Ordinances of the City of 
Rochester Regarding the Impact Fee Ordinance 

 
THE CITY OF ROCHESTER ORDAINS: 

 
That Chapter 275 of the General Ordinances of the City of Rochester 

and currently before the Rochester City Council, be amended as 
follows: 

Article 27  
Miscellaneous Provisions  

[Amended 7-7-2015] 

  
§ 275-27.1 Buffers for residential property.  
 

A. All nonresidential development, including any parking and storage areas, 
shall be screened/buffered from any adjacent residential property situated 

to the side or rear as stipulated by the Planning Board under site review. 
The Board may stipulate plantings and/or fencing, as reasonably 

appropriate. See Figure 27-A, Screening Between Commercial and 
Residential Uses, as an example.  

B. All multifamily development, consisting of three units of more, including 
parking areas, shall be screened/buffered from any adjacent single-family 

dwellings situated to the side or rear as required by the Planning Board 
under site review. The Board may stipulate plantings and/or fencing, as 

reasonably appropriate. This requirement does not apply in situations 

01/02/2020

Page 69 of 247



City of Rochester  Regular City Council Meeting 
Draft  December 3, 2019 

18 
 

where multifamily development is specifically designed to integrate with 
single-family dwellings in mixed-use developments. 

 

Figure 27-A, Screening Between Commercial and Residential Uses 

§ 275-27.2 Cemeteries.  

 
Pursuant to RSA 289:3, III, there shall be no construction, excavation, or 

development, nor placement of any buildings, structures, signage, or parking, 
inside or within 25 feet of a known burial site or within 25 feet of the 

boundaries of an established burial ground or cemetery. For the purposes of 
this section, the term "excavation" shall include the disturbance to a depth of 

12 inches or more of soil for activities such as landscaping, utility trenching, 
tree planting, etc. No healthy tree with a diameter at breast height of eight 

inches or more may be cut or removed within 25 feet of any established burial 
ground or cemetery except by special exception for good cause and with 

appropriate mitigation. No new chain-link fence shall be installed in or around 
any cemetery. 

 
§ 275-27.3 Impact fees. 

  

A. Purpose. This section is enacted pursuant to RSA 674:16 and 674:21. in 
order to: 

 
(1) Promote public health, safety, convenience, and welfare;  

(2) Ensure that adequate and appropriate public facilities are available;  
(3) Provide for the managed development of the municipality and its environs;  

(4) Mitigate the impact of development of land that would involve danger or 
injury to health, safety, or prosperity by reason of the lack of water supply, 

drainage, transportation, schools, fire protection, or other public services, 
or necessitate the excessive expenditure of public funds for the supply of 

such services; and  
(5) Ensure the proper arrangement and coordination of streets.  

 
(1) To assess new development for its proportionate share of the 

public capital facility costs. 

 
B. Authority. 

 
(1) Impact fees may be assessed to new development to compensate the City 

of Rochester and the School District Department for the proportional 
share of capital facilities generated by new development in the City of 

Rochester a proportionate share of the cost of the capital facility 
needs occasioned by new development. Any person who seeks a 

building permit for new development may be required to pay an impact 

01/02/2020

Page 70 of 247



City of Rochester  Regular City Council Meeting 
Draft  December 3, 2019 

19 
 

fee in the manner set forth herein.  
(2) The Planning Board may, as a condition of approval of any subdivision or 

site plan, and when consistent with applicable Board regulations, require 
an applicant to pay an impact fee for the applicant's proportional share of 

off-site improvements to public facilities affected by the development.  
(3) Nothing in this section shall be construed to limit the existing authority of 

the Planning Board to disapprove proposed development which would 
require an excessive expenditure of public funds, or which would 

otherwise violate applicable ordinances and regulations. Nothing in this 
section shall be construed to limit the Planning Board's authority to require 

off-site work to be performed by the applicant, in lieu of paying an impact 
fee, or the Board's authority to impose other types of conditions of 

approval. Nothing in this section shall be construed to affect types of fees 
governed by other statutes, ordinances or regulations. Nothing in this 

section shall be construed to limit the authority of the Planning 

Board or the City to require exactions for off-site improvements, 
other conditions of approval, or to assess other fees governed by 

other statutes, ordinances, or regulations. 
 

C. Definitions. For the purposes of this section, the following terms shall have 
the meanings indicated: 

 
IMPACT FEE  

 
A fee or assessment imposed upon development, including subdivision or 

building construction, in order to help meet the needs occasioned by that 
development for the construction or improvement of capital facilities 

owned or operated by the City of Rochester or the Rochester School 
Department, including and limited to water treatment and distribution 

facilities; wastewater treatment and disposal facilities; sanitary sewers; 

stormwater, drainage and flood control facilities; public road systems and 
rights-of-way; municipal office facilities; public school facilities; public 

safety facilities; solid waste collection, transfer, recycling, processing and 
disposal facilities; public library facilities; and public recreational facilities 

not including public open space. 
 

NEW DEVELOPMENT  
 

(1) An activity that results in any one of the following: 
(a) The creation of a new dwelling unit or units;  

(b) The conversion of a legally existing use, or additions thereto, which would 
result in a net increase in the number of dwelling units;  

(c) Construction resulting in a new nonresidential building or a net increase 
in the floor area of any nonresidential building; or  

(d) The conversion of an existing use to another use if such change results in 

01/02/2020

Page 71 of 247



City of Rochester  Regular City Council Meeting 
Draft  December 3, 2019 

20 
 

an net increase in floor area and such change creates a net increase in 
the demand on public capital facilities that are the subject of impact fee 

assessments. unless waived by the Planning Board.  
(2) New development shall not include the replacement of an existing 

manufactured home or the reconstruction of a structure that has been 
destroyed by fire or natural disaster where there is no change in its size, 

density or type of use, and where there is no net increase in demand on 
public capital facilities.  

 
OFF-SITE IMPROVEMENTS  

 
Off-site improvements means highway, drainage, sewer, or water 

upgrades or improvements that are necessitated by a 
development but which are located outside the boundaries of the 

property, as determined by the Planning Board during the course 

of subdivision or site plan approval. 
 

D. Assessment methodology. 
 

(1) Proportionality. The amount of the impact fee shall be calculated by the 
Planning Board to be a proportional share of municipal capital 

improvement costs which is reasonably related to the capital needs 
created by the development, and to the benefits accruing to the 

development from the capital improvements financed by the fee. The 
Planning Board may prepare, adopt, or amend studies or reports that are 

consistent with the above standards, and which define a methodology for 
impact fee assessment for public capital facilities, and impact fee 

assessment schedules therefor.  
(2) Existing deficiencies. Upgrading of existing facilities and infrastructure, the 

need for which is not created by new development, shall not be paid for 

by impact fees.  
 

E. Administration. 
 

(1) Accounting. In accord with RSA 673:16, II, and 674:21, V(c), impact fees 
shall be accounted for separately, shall be segregated from the City's 

general fund, may be spent upon order of the City Council, and shall be 
used solely for the capital improvements for which they were collected, or 

to recoup the cost of capital improvements made in anticipation of the 
needs which the fees were collected to meet. In the event that bonds or 

similar debt instruments have been or will be issued by the City of 
Rochester or the Rochester School District for the funding of capital 

improvements that are the subject of impact fee assessment, impact fees 
from the appropriate related capital facility impact fee accounts may be 

applied to pay debt service on such bonds or similar debt instruments.  

01/02/2020

Page 72 of 247



City of Rochester  Regular City Council Meeting 
Draft  December 3, 2019 

21 
 

(2) Assessment. All impact fees imposed pursuant to this section shall be 
assessed at the time of Planning Board approval of a subdivision plan or 

site plan. When Planning Board approval is not required, or has been made 
prior to the adoption or amendment of the impact fee ordinance, impact 

fees shall be assessed prior to, or as a condition for, the issuance of a 
building permit or other appropriate permission to proceed with 

development, as determined by the Building Inspector. Impact fees shall 
be intended to reflect the effect of development upon municipal and/or 

school facilities at the time of the issuance of the building permit. In 
determining the amount of the impact fee, when the net increase in floor 

area has triggered the fee, the calculations shall use only the net increase 
in floor area.  

(3) Security. In the interim between assessment and collection, the Building 
Inspector may require developers to post bonds, issue letters of credit, 

accept liens, or otherwise provide suitable measures of security so as to 

guarantee future payment of assessed impact fees.  
(4) Collection. Impact fees shall be collected as a condition for the issuance 

of a certificate of occupancy; provided, however, that in projects where 
off-site improvements are to be constructed simultaneously with a 

project's development, and where the City has appropriated the necessary 
funds to cover such portions of the work for which it will be responsible, 

the City may advance the time of collection of the impact fee to the 
issuance of a building permit. If no certificate of occupancy is required, 

impact fees shall be collected when the development is ready for its 
intended use. Nothing in this section shall prevent the Building Inspector, 

with the approval of the Planning Board, and the assessed party from 
establishing an alternate, mutually acceptable schedule of payment.  

(5) Refund of fees paid. The current owner of record of property for which an 
impact fee has been paid shall be entitled to a refund of that fee, plus 

accrued interest, under the following circumstances: 

(a) When either the full or partial portion of the impact fee, whichever is 
applicable, has not been encumbered or legally bound to be spent for the 

purpose for which it was collected within a period of six years from the 
date of the full and final payment of the fee; or  

(b) When the City of Rochester or, in the case of school impact fees, the 
Rochester School District has failed, within the period of six years from 

the date of the full and final payment of such fee, to appropriate its 
proportionate non-impact fee share of related capital improvement costs.  

F. Appeals. 
(1) A party aggrieved by a decision made by the Building Inspector regarding 

the assessment or collection of impact fees authorized by this section may 
appeal such decision to the Planning Board.  

(2) In accord with RSA 676:5, III, appeals of the decision of the Planning 
Board in administering this section may be made to Superior Court, as 

provided in RSA 676:5, III, and 677:15.  

01/02/2020

Page 73 of 247



City of Rochester  Regular City Council Meeting 
Draft  December 3, 2019 

22 
 

G. Waivers. The Planning Board may grant full or partial waivers of impact 
fees where the Board finds that one or more of the following criteria are 

met with respect to the particular public capital facilities for which impact 
fees are normally assessed: 

(1) An applicant may request a full or partial waiver of school impact fees for 
those residential units that are lawfully restricted to occupancy by senior 

citizens age 62 55 or over in a development that is also maintained in 
compliance with the provisions of RSA 354-A:15, Housing for Older 

Persons. The Planning Board may waive school impact fee assessments 
on such age-restricted units where it finds that the property will be bound 

by lawful deeded restrictions on occupancy by senior citizens age 62 or 
over for a period of at least 20 years.  

(2) A person may request a full or partial waiver of impact fees for 
construction within a subdivision or site plan approved by the Planning 

Board prior to the effective date of this section. Prior to granting such a 

waiver, the Planning Board must find that the proposed construction is 
entitled to the five-year exemption provided by RSA 674:39, pursuant to 

that statute. This waiver shall not be applicable to phases of a phased 
development project where active and substantial development, building 

and construction has not yet occurred in the phase in which construction 
is proposed. [Amended at time of adoption of Code (see Ch. 1, 

General Provisions, Art. II)]  
(3) The Planning Board may agree to waive all or part of an impact fee 

assessment and accept in lieu of a cash payment a proposed contribution 
of real property or facility improvements of equivalent value and utility to 

the public. Prior to acting on a request for a waiver of impact fees under 
this provision that would involve a contribution of real property or the 

construction of capital facilities, the Planning Board shall submit a copy of 
the waiver request to the City Council for its review and consent prior to 

its acceptance of the proposed contribution. The value of contributions or 

improvements shall be credited only toward facilities of like kind and may 
not be credited to other categories of impact fee assessment. The 

applicant shall pay all costs incurred by the City for the review of such 
proposal, including consultant and counsel fees.  

(4) The Planning Board is responsible, when there is a change in use, for 
determining the net increase on public capital facilities and may agree to 

waive the entire fee if it determines that its collection and administration 
will exceed its value to the City.  

(4) The Planning Board shall waive all of an impact fee assessment for 
properties located in the Downtown Commercial District, with the 

district boundaries defined as the boundaries that exist at the time 
of the approval of this amendment.  

(5) The impact fee assessment for accessory dwelling units shall be 
waived with the stipulation that this waiver is reviewed every two 

(2) years. 

01/02/2020

Page 74 of 247



City of Rochester  Regular City Council Meeting 
Draft  December 3, 2019 

23 
 

 
§ 275-27.4 Lots split by municipal boundaries.  
 

For lots split by municipal boundaries the provisions of RSA 674:53 shall apply. 
In applying dimensional controls to that portion of the lot within Rochester, 

the dimensions of the entire lot shall be considered without reference to the 
City line. 

 
§ 275-27.5 Rivers and shoreland protection. 

  
(Note that listed rivers are subject to change.) 

A. Shoreland protection. Provisions of the New Hampshire Comprehensive 
Shoreland Protection Act, RSA 483-B, apply to bodies of water included 

under that Act.  
B. Rivers management. The Isinglass River and the Cocheco River are 

protected under the New Hampshire Rivers Management and Protection 
Program, RSA 483. 

  

§ 275-27.6 Lots split by zoning district boundaries.  
 

Where the boundary line of a zoning district divides a lot in single or joint 
ownership at the time of passage of the ordinance establishing the boundary 

line, the following provisions shall apply: 

A. The uses and other standards for either district may, at the option of the 
owner, extend beyond the zoning boundary line up to a maximum distance 

of 100 feet from that zoning boundary line. For any area in which this 
allowance is used, for any period of time in which this allowance is used, 

that area shall be treated as if its zoning designation were the zone that 
is being extended.  

B. The provisions of Subsection A of this section shall not apply to a lot 
divided by the Recycling Industrial Zoning District boundary line. In the 

case of a lot divided by the Recycling Industrial Zoning District boundary 
line, the uses and regulations permitted and/or applicable to the Recycling 

Industrial Zoning District shall not be extended into the adjoining zoning 
district.  

C. Overlay districts. The provisions of this section shall not apply to overlay 
districts.  

 

§ 275-27.7 Temporary noncompliance.  
 

The Director of Building, Zoning, and Licensing Services is authorized to 

approve a temporary permit/approval for a noncomplying structure or a 

01/02/2020

Page 75 of 247



City of Rochester  Regular City Council Meeting 
Draft  December 3, 2019 

24 
 

noncomplying use incidental to a development where it is reasonably required 
for that development on a temporary basis. The permit/approval may be 

issued where the Director of Building, Zoning, and Licensing Services 
reasonably determines that: 

 
A. The temporary structure or use will not be counter to the public interest.  

B. The temporary structure or use will not harm any abutter.  
C. The temporary structure or use will not be counter to the spirit of this 

chapter.  
D. Proper safeguards are taken.  

E. A reasonable time frame has been established.  
F. No reasonable alternative is available.  

G. Appropriate surety has been provided to ensure compliance with the 
conditions above.  

§ 275-27.8 Planned unit developments.  
 

Four planned unit developments (PUDs) were approved by the City of 

Rochester under a City ordinance which is no longer in effect, Section 42.32, 

Planned Unit Developments, adopted December 5, 2001, and amended 
December 7, 2004. The creation of new planned unit developments is not 

permitted under this chapter. The four approved PUDs, including Secretariat 
Estates, Highfield Commons, the Homemakers, and the Villages at Clark Brook 

(the original names), may be built in accordance with the provisions of Section 
42.32 of the former Zoning Ordinance and the approved master plans for each 

of those PUDs. 
 

These changes shall be effective upon passage. 
 

 Councilor Lachapelle MOVED to refer the matter to a Public Hearing on 
December 17, 2019. Councilor Walker seconded the motion. The City Council 

briefly discussed the matter. The MOTION CARRIED by a unanimous voice 
vote.  

 

13.4 Amendments to Chapter 275 Regarding the Downtown 
Commercial District 

 

13.4.1 Amendment to Chapter 275 of the General 

Ordinances of the City of Rochester 
Regarding Conditional Uses Within the 

Downtown Commercial District first reading 
and refer to public hearing 

 

 Councilor Lachapelle MOVED to read the resolution for the first time 

01/02/2020

Page 76 of 247



City of Rochester  Regular City Council Meeting 
Draft  December 3, 2019 

25 
 

by title only.  Councilor Walker seconded the reading. The MOTION 
CARRIED by a unanimous voice vote. Mayor McCarley read the resolution 

for the first time as follows:  
 

Amendment to Chapter 275 of the General Ordinances of the City of 
Rochester Regarding Conditional Uses Within the Downtown 

Commercial District 
 

THE CITY OF ROCHESTER ORDAINS: 
 

That Chapter 275, Section 21.4.I of the General Ordinances of the City of 
Rochester and currently before the Rochester City Council, be amended as 

follows: 
 

I. Multifamily dwellings/developments in Downtown Commercial District 

as referenced in Chapter 275-20.2 (K)(4) shall: 
 

1) Have a sprinkler system installed as required by building and fire codes. 
 

2) Shall reserve a space to allow for a duct system as required by building 
codes. 

 
These amendments shall take effect upon passage. 

 
 Councilor Lachapelle MOVED to refer the matter to a Public Hearing 

which will occur on December 17, 2019. Councilor Walker seconded the 
motion. The MOTION CARRIED by a unanimous voice vote.  

 
13.4.2 Amendment to Chapter 275 of the General 

Ordinances of the City of Rochester 

Regarding Residential Uses Within the 
Downtown Commercial District first reading 

and refer to public hearing  
 

 Councilor Lachapelle MOVED to read the resolution for the first time by 
title only.  Councilor Walker seconded the motion. The MOTION CARRIED by 

a unanimous voice vote. Mayor McCarley read the resolution for the first time 
by title only as follows:  

 
Amendment to Chapter 275 of the General Ordinances of the City of 

Rochester Regarding Residential Uses Within the Downtown 
Commercial District 

 
THE CITY OF ROCHESTER ORDAINS: 

 

01/02/2020

Page 77 of 247



City of Rochester  Regular City Council Meeting 
Draft  December 3, 2019 

26 
 

That Chapter 275, Section 20.2.K. (4) of the General Ordinances of the City 
of Rochester and currently before the Rochester City Council, be amended as 

follows: 
 

4) Downtown Commercial District. Within the Downtown Commercial (DC) 
District, multifamily is allowed with the following restrictions:  

 
(a) For parcels fronting on the streets noted below, ground floor space of 

30’ multiplied by the building frontage, or (700 sq. ft.) (800 sq. ft.)*, 
whichever is greater, shall be reserved for non-residential uses as permitted 

in the DC District, unless otherwise required to comply with state building code 
and/or fire code.  Any area excluded due to building code and/or fire code 

shall not count toward the minimum.  This applies to the entire portion of the 
building fronting on the street.  The remaining area of the first floor may 

contain residential units as a conditional use.  

 
viii. Union Street  

ix. North Main Street south of North Main Street Bridge  
x. South Main Street  

xi. Wakefield Street south of Columbus Avenue  
xii. Hanson Street  

xiii. Museum Way 
xiv. Columbus Avenue (from Summer Street to South Main Street) 

 
(b) The first floor commercial space may be split into different commercial 

uses totaling the required square footage. 
 

(c) DC Zone District parcels not fronting on the above streets may contain 
multifamily use and units on all floors without restrictions. 

 

These amendments shall take effect upon passage. 
 

 Councilor Lachapelle MOVED to refer the matter to a Public Hearing 
which will occur on December 17, 2019.  Councilor Walker seconded the 

motion. The MOTION CARRIED by a unanimous voice vote.  
 

13.5 Resolution Authorizing Acceptance of $463.14 from the 
State of New Hampshire  first reading, consideration for 

second reading and adoption 
 

Councilor Lachapelle MOVED to read the resolution for the first time by 
title only.  Councilor Walker seconded the motion. The MOTION CARRIED by 

a unanimous voice vote. Mayor McCarley read the resolution for the first time 
by title only as follows:  

 

01/02/2020

Page 78 of 247



City of Rochester  Regular City Council Meeting 
Draft  December 3, 2019 

27 
 

Resolution Authorizing Acceptance of $463.14 from the  
State of New Hampshire 

 
BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

ROCHESTER: 
 

That Four Hundred Sixty Three and 14/100 Dollars ($463.14) is hereby 
accepted from the State of New Hampshire as part of State forfeiture funds 

due to the Rochester Police Department. 
 

To the extent not otherwise provided for in this Resolution, the Finance 
Director is hereby authorized to establish and/or designate such accounts and 

or account numbers as are necessary to implement the transactions 
contemplated in this Resolution.  

 

 Councilor Lachapelle MOVED to suspend the rules and read the 
resolution for a second time by title only. Councilor Bogan seconded the 

motion. The MOTION CARRIED by a majority voice vote. Mayor McCarley 
read the resolution by title only for a second time.  

 
 Councilor Lachapelle MOVED to ADOPT the resolution. Councilor 

Walker seconded the motion. Councilor Keans stated that the resolution does 
not indicate where the funds are being deposited. City Attorney O’Rourke said 

the resolutions indicates that the Finance Director is authorized to establish or 
designate such funds.  The MOTION CARRIED by a unanimous voice vote.   

 
13.6 Supplemental Appropriation to the Rochester School 

Department in the amount of $1,335,993 first reading and 
refer to public hearing  

 

 Councilor Lachapelle MOVED to read the resolution for the first time by 
title only.  Councilor Walker seconded the motion. The MOTION CARRIED by 

a unanimous voice vote. Mayor McCarley read the resolution for the first time 
by title only as follows:  

  
Supplemental Appropriation to the  

Rochester School Department in the amount of $1,335,993.00  
 

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
ROCHESTER: 

 
That the amount of One Million Three Hundred Thirty Five Thousand Nine 

Hundred Ninety Three Dollars ($1,335,993.00) is hereby appropriated as a 
supplemental appropriation to the Rochester School Department for the 

purpose of paying costs associated with unanticipated special education costs. 

01/02/2020

Page 79 of 247



City of Rochester  Regular City Council Meeting 
Draft  December 3, 2019 

28 
 

The funding for this supplemental appropriation shall be derived in its entirety 
from the General Fund Unassigned Fund Balance. 

 
To the extent not otherwise provided for in this Resolution, the Finance 

Director is hereby authorized to establish and/or designate such multi-year, 
non-lapsing accounts and or account numbers as are necessary to implement 

the transactions contemplated in this Resolution.  
  

 Councilor Lachapelle MOVED to refer the matter to a Public Hearing, 
which will occur on December 17, 2019. Councilor Walker seconded the 

motion. The MOTION CARRIED by a unanimous voice vote.  

 

13.7 Resolution Authorizing Acceptance and Appropriation of 

Community of Action for Lead Safety Stipend first reading, 
consideration for second reading and adoption 

 

Councilor Lachapelle MOVED to read the resolution for the first time by 

title only.  Councilor Walker seconded the motion. The MOTION CARRIED by 

a unanimous voice vote. Mayor McCarley read the resolution for the first time 

by title only as follows:  

 
RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING ACCEPTANCE AND APPROPRIATION OF 

COMMUNITY OF ACTION FOR LEAD SAFETY STIPEND 
 

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
ROCHESTER, AS FOLLOWS: 

 
WHEREAS, that a Community of Action for Lead Safety program stipend in 

the amount of One Thousand Dollars ($1,000.00), for the promotion of lead 
safety education and the reduction of lead poisonings, is hereby accepted by 

the City of Rochester; 
 

WHEREAS, the City Council acknowledges that the total cost of this project 

will be One Thousand Dollars ($1,000.00), to be taken from the Economic 
Development Department operations budget and reimbursed through the 

stipend funds; 
 

THEREFORE, that the sum of One Thousand Dollars ($1,000.00) be, and 
hereby is, appropriated to the Economic Development Department budget 

for the purpose of carrying out the purposes of the Community of Action for 
Lead Safety program; 

 
FURTHER, to the extent not otherwise provided for in this Resolution, the 

Finance Director is hereby authorized to designate and/or establish such 

01/02/2020

Page 80 of 247



City of Rochester  Regular City Council Meeting 
Draft  December 3, 2019 

29 
 

accounts and/or account numbers as necessary to implement the 
transactions contemplated by this Resolution. 

 

Councilor Lachapelle MOVED to suspend the rules and read the 

resolution for a second time by title only. Councilor Walker seconded the 

motion. The MOTION CARRIED by a majority voice vote. Mayor McCarley 

read the resolution by title only for a second time.  

 

Councilor Lachapelle MOVED to ADOPT the resolution. Councilor 

Walker seconded the motion. Councilor Keans spoke against the motion. The 

MOTION CARRIED by a majority voice vote.  

 

13.8 Supplemental Appropriation to the Downtown 

Revitalization Fund of $300,000 second reading and 
consideration for adoption  

 
Councilor Lachapelle MOVED to read the resolution for the second time 

by title only.  Councilor Walker seconded the motion. The MOTION CARRIED 
by a unanimous voice vote. Mayor McCarley read the resolution for the second 

time by title only as follows:  
 

Supplemental Appropriation to the  

Downtown Revitalization Fund of $ 300,000  
 

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
ROCHESTER: 

 
That the amount of Three Hundred Thousand Dollars ($300,000) is hereby 

appropriated as a supplemental appropriation to the Downtown Revitalization 
Fund for the purpose of paying costs associated with improvements, and or 

repairs, to City owned properties, and other City owned infrastructures in the 
downtown district. The funding for this supplemental appropriation shall be 

derived in its entirety from the General Fund Unassigned Fund Balance. 
 

Initial expenditures shall be for the City owned Salinger 10 No. Main St., and 
Scenic Theater 12-14 No. Main St., which are in need of immediate repairs 

and maintenance. Any remaining appropriation balance after the 

aforementioned projects are completed can be presented for repurpose to 
other downtown projects upon review and authorization of Finance 

Committee. 
 

To the extent not otherwise provided for in this Resolution, the Finance 
Director is hereby authorized to establish and/or designate such multi-year, 

01/02/2020

Page 81 of 247



City of Rochester  Regular City Council Meeting 
Draft  December 3, 2019 

30 
 

non-lapsing accounts and or account numbers as are necessary to implement 
the transactions contemplated in this Resolution. All projects will be assigned 

a unique account number for tracking and reported purposes.  
 

 Councilor Lachapelle MOVED to ADOPT the resolution. Councilor Walker 
seconded the motion. The MOTION CARRIED by a unanimous roll call vote 

of 12 to 0. Councilors Torr, Abbott, Varney, Hutchinson, Lachapelle, Gray, 
Walker, Bogan, Hamann, Gates, Keans, and Mayor McCarley voted in favor of 

the motion.  
 

14. Other 
 

Councilor Lachapelle said there is an issue with the walk signal on 
Columbus Avenue/Hancock Street. Commissioner Nourse replied that the 

Department of Public Works is aware of the issue and is working to resolve 

the problem.  
 

15. Non-Public/Non-Meeting 
 

No discussion.  
 

16. Adjournment 
 

Councilor Lachapelle MOVED to ADJOURN the Regular City Council 
meeting at 8:11 PM. Councilor Walker seconded the motion. The MOTION 

CARRIED by a unanimous voice vote.   
 

Respectfully submitted,  
 

Kelly Walters, CMC 

City Clerk 

01/02/2020

Page 82 of 247



ROCHESTER
N E W H A M P S H I R E

City of Rochester, New Hampshire
Economic Development Department
33 Wakefield Street, Rochester,NH 03867
(603) 335-7522, www.RochesterEDC.com

INTEROFFICE MEMORANDUM
Samantha Kelley, EOM Chair
Jennifer Murphy Aubin, Executive Secretary

TO:
FROM:
DATE:
SUBJECT: Employee of the Month Nomination - Angie Gray

Thursday, November 14, 2019

CC:

November 14, 2019 - for future consideration

Angie Gray is an essential part of the business and finance staff, working tirelessly with
a keen eye to detail, with every project she takes on.

She consistently performs and takes great pride in her work. For example, Angie has
been the backup AP staff for practically every department in the City. The amount of
work she can power through is huge.
For example, Angie used to process all credit card batches for the City departments.
After taking over the batches and inputting it for the Economic Development
Department, I do not know how she could consistently do the multiple department
batches for all of past years, chasing down missing receipts and entering in granular
detail with precision.
She is currently helping the Economic Development Department transition during staff
turnover and is always ready to help another department during leaves. Because of her
consistency, it is easy to take these operations for granted, but we shouldn’t and they
deserve to be recognized.

The city has a skilled employee in Angie, and she is an asset with the institutional
knowledge of over thirty years and the unparalleled task-oriented energy she brings to
each day.

RECEIVED

NOV 14 2019
FINANCE OFFICE

CITY OF ROCHESTER

01/02/2020

Page 83 of 247



 
 

Intentionally 
left blank… 

City Clerk’s Office 

 

01/02/2020

Page 84 of 247



 
CITY MANAGER'S REPORT  

January 7, 2020 
 

The Employee of the Month is:  Angie Gray, Business & Finance Department P. 83 
 

Contracts and documents executed since last month: 
 

 Department of Public Works 

o Baseline Documentation – Conservation Easement – Watershed Parcels in 

Farmington P. 86 

o Colonial Pines Sewer Extension – Phase 2 – Change Order 3 P. 88 

o Colonial Pines – Phase 2 – Amendment 4 P. 89 

o Colonial Pines – Phase 3 – Design Engineering Contract P. 90 

o Colonial Pines – Security Agreement – Home Owners P. 91 

o CWSRF Loan Disbursement # 7 – Sewer & Drainage P. 92 

o Geosyntec Consulting – Technical Services 2-Year Contract P. 93 

o Wallace Street Ground Water Sampling & Reporting Contract P. 94 

o Water Pipe Agreement – Highfields Common P. 95 

 Economic Development Department 

o CDBG – Cap Weatherization – furnace installation P. 97 

o CDBG – Cap Weatherization – heater replacement P. 98 

o CDBG – Cap Weatherization – duct repair P. 99 

o CDBG - HDC Façade Program – 107 North Main St P. 100 

o CDBG – My Friends Place – Release of Funds P. 101 

o CDBG – Riverwalk Kayak Launch Grant Release of Funds P. 102 

o LDI Project Planning Application P. 103 

 Finance Department 

o NHDES – Biosolids Facility Amendment P. 104 

o NHDES Water Pump Station Supplemental Loan Agreement P. 105 

 Information Technology 

o Exactitude Arena Security Cameras P. 106 

o Systems Engineering – SE Microsoft Cloud Solution Provider P. 107 

 Legal Department 

o Sale of 0 Broadway St P. 108 

o Sale of 0 Dora Dr P. 109 

o Sale of 0 Old Wakefield Rd P. 110 

o Sale of 5 Lois St P. 111 

o Sale of 10 Lanai Dr P. 112 

o Sale of 12 Downfield Ln P. 113 

o Sale of 19 Main St East Rochester P. 114 

o Sale 04 24 D’Amours Ave P. 115 

o Sale of 35 Linden St P. 116 
 

The following standard reports have been enclosed: 
 

 Monthly Overnight Travel Summary - none 

 Permission & Permits Issued  P. 117 

 Personnel Action Report Summary P. 118 

City of Rochester, New Hampshire 
OFFICE OF THE CITY MANAGER 

31 Wakefield Street  Rochester, NH 03867 
(603) 332-1167 

www.RochesterNH.net 
 

 

01/02/2020

Page 85 of 247

http://www.rochesternh.net/


,

?gROCHESTER §
City of Rochester, New Hampshire

PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT
:<s

45 Old Dover Road • Rochester, NH 03867
Fax (603) 335-4352

CH-V'q*Rec*vea
52019

S' PM. (603) 332-4096iO
l -t- m. www.rochestemh.net'/ Dec7Sf

£HAKTtl £Manzger
CfYESl ?'

INTEROFFICE MEMORANDUM

TO: Blaine Cox, City Manager

Thru: Terrence O’Rourke, City Attorney

Peter C. Nourse, Director of City Services
5 December 2019

SUBJECT: Baseline Documentation Report; Re: Conservation Easement
of Rochester Owned Watershed Parcels in Farmington
Michael Bezanson, PE City Engineer

FROM:
DATE:

CC:

Please see attached Conservation Easement Baseline Documentation Report
produced by the Southeast Land Trust (SELT). Once signed by you SELT can
proceed with closing on the easement and completing this project. This process
places a conservation easement on 3 City owned parcels totaling 91.14 acres.
We anticipate an early 2020 closing.

The City partnered with SELT to conserve approximately 315 acres of property in
Farmington which is watershed property for Rochester’s drinking water supply.
Leveraging the State’s Drinking Water Trust Fund, SELT obtained fee title to two
previously privately held parcels, and the establishment of a conservation
easement on the City owned parcels. The process will be complete with the
conservation easement closing on the City’s 94.14 acres. Easement language for
the conservation easement has been reviewed by City staff.

BUILDINGS AND GROUNDS HIGHWAY WATER SEWER ENGINEERING

01/02/2020

Page 86 of 247



/r.SETTl^ City of Rochester, New Hampshire
PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT

45 Old Dover Road • Rochester, NH 03867
Fax (603) 335-4352

—-

ROCHESTER!
V9R SWfc-

X;Z» Ps." (603) 332-4096!m &

www.rochesternh.netsvfiT
P»S«QMRTEi

In summary, once the conservation easement has closed, approximately 215
acres of watershed land will have been conserved in perpetuity at a cost to the
City of $122,000. This equates to about $387/acre.

Further, the conservation easement may assist the City in reducing its recently
escalated tax burden on the property as Farmington had taken it out of current
use.

Enclosure: City of Rochester Conservation Easement
Farmington, NH
Baseline Documentation Report, December 2019

BUILDINGS AND GROUNDS HIGHWAY WATER SEWER ENGINEERING

01/02/2020

Page 87 of 247



SEI!S* City of Rochester, New Hampshire
PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT

$2
ROCHESTER!

Z9R

CITy

ec©/

ar. 45 Old Dover Road • Rochester, NH 03867
(603) 332-4096

Qc-z N'

Fax (603) 335-4352Ol •if /Ti

''t'ec/% www.rochestemh.net 45?V

Of
%JC s9eT^STÊ

INTEROFFICE MEMORANDUM

TO: Blaine Cox, City Manager
Katie Ambrose, Deputy City Manager/ Director of Finance &
Administration .
Michael Bezanson, PE, City Engineer
December 17, 2019
Colonial Pines Sewer Extension- Phase 2
Change Order No. 3
Peter Nourse, PE, Director of City Services

FROM:
DATE:
SUBJECT:

CC:

Attached are six (6) originals of Change Order No. 3 for the Colonial Pines Sewer
Extension - Phase 2 project. This change order document reflects additional work for
temporary pavement patching that was not originally contemplated when this was a one
construction season contract; additional work, including drainage throughout the project
area and sewer on Wildwood and a portion of Tingley, has extended the construction
into a second season. Because quantities of other items have been reduced, this
change order results in a $0 cost increase to the total contract price; however, it extends
the overall contract time by 17 days.

Katie - If you have any questions, please let me know. If not, please sign below and
pass on to the City Manager for signature. All six signed originals of Change Order No.
3 should be returned to DPW for distribution. Thank you.

/

M VSignature
T7

Katie Ambrose
Deputy City Manager/ Director of Finance & Administration

Attachment: Colonial Pines Sewer Ext. - Ph. 2, Change Order No. 3 (6 copies)

BUILDINGS AND GROUNDS • HIGHWAY WATER SEWER ENGINEERING

01/02/2020

Page 88 of 247



City of (Rochester, [New ^Hampshire
PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT

45 Old Dover Road •Rochester, NH 03867
(603) 332-4096

www.RochesterNH.net

IMS* SI mit

lVJINTEROFFICE MEMORANDUM c. V,/

TO: BLAINE COX, CITY MANAGER
KATIE AMBROSE, DEPUTY CITY MANAGER/DIRECTOR OF FINANCE & ADMIN

LISA J. CLARK, ADMINISTRATIVE SUPERVISOR
December 27, 2019
Colonial Pines Phase 2 Amendment #4
Underwood Engineers - Construction Engineer Services
Contract Amount $40,900
Michael S. Bezanson, PE City Engineer
Peter C. Nourse, PE, Director of City Services

FROM:
DATE:
SUBJECT:

CC:

Attached please find (1) one copy of the Underwood Engineers contract for additional construction engineering
cost associated with Construction Change Order #2 regarding the sewer extensions on Wildwood to include
Tingley Street.
There is sufficient funding available in the Sewer CIP as follows

Colonial Pines Sewer Construction 55026020-771000-20549 = $40,900.00

If you have any question, please call, if not please pass on to the City Manager for signature. Please return this
document to me at the DPW for Distribution

us ,

(Katie Ambrose, Deputy City Manager/ Director of Finance & Administration)
j

01/02/2020

Page 89 of 247



City of (Rochester, New Hampshire
PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT

45 Old Dover Road •Rochester, NH 03867
(603) 332-4096

www.RochesterNH.net

/
/ IIIB 9I

‘•ITT *

ft

0£c3°mscjy Ku*6. fr
C

INTEROFFICE MEMORANDUM

BLAINE COX, CITY MANAGER
KATIE AMBROSE, DEPUTY CITY MANAGER/DIRECTOR OF FINANCE & ADMIN

TO:

LISA J. CLARK, ADMINISTRATIVE SUPERVISOR^December 27, 2019
Colonial Pines PHASE 3
Underwood Engineers - Design Engineering
Contract Amount $132,700
Michael S. Bezanson, PE City Engineer
Peter C. Nourse, PE, Director of City Services

FROM:
DATE:
SUBJECT:

CC:

Attached please find (1) one copy of the Underwood Engineers contract for design engineering of the next
phase of the Colonial Pines Sewer Extension Project, PHASE 3.

There contract includes both sewer and drainage work. There is sufficient funding available in the Sewer CIP
and General Fund CIP Accounts as follows

Colonial Pines Sewer Construction 55026020-771000-20549 = $96,300.00
Colonial Pines Drainage 15013010-771000-20572 = $36,400.00

If you have any question, please call, if not please pass on to the City Manager for signature. Please return this
document to me at the DPW for Distribution

(Katie Ambrose, Deputy City Manager/ Director of Finance & Administration)

01/02/2020

Page 90 of 247



City of (Rochester, New Hampshire
PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT

45 Old Dover Road •Rochester, NH 03867
(603) 332-4096

www.RochesterNH.net

ReCe/Vec/
6 2019OEC

Uif '±44 na9er
CfiESTt&INTEROFFICE MEMORANDUM

BLAINE COX, CITY MANAGERTO:

USA J. CLARK, ADMINISTRATIVE SUPERVISOR
December 6, 2019

SUBJECT: Security Agreement
Homeowner Options
Colonial Pines Sewer Extension Project
Michael S. Bezanson, PE City Engineer
Peter C. Nourse, PE, Director of City Services

FROM:
DATE:

CC:

Attached please find 3 security agreements for signature. DPW Staff is in the process of executing security
agreements with the residents as they tie into the City’s new sewer main within the Colonial Pines
Neighborhood.

To date there are 54 residences signed up to tie in. Eleven have been completed. The contractor will continue
as long as the weather permits and then resume in the spring.

If you have any question, please call, if not please sign and return these documents to me for distribution and
recording.

01/02/2020

Page 91 of 247



CiTy
rfU'"/,,, êcCity of Rochester, New Hampshire

PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT
rW- e/utea 60
ROCHESTER3 45 Old Dover Road • Rochester, NH 03867

(603) 332-4096
o:

^SSTEft

Sr IN*= Fax (603) 335-4352fn

fife &v7 www.rochestemh.netio\
Vi•:

INTEROFFICE MEMORANDUM

TO: Blaine Cox, Deputy City Manager
Roland E. Connors, Interim-Finance Director

DtPUTi
Lisa J. Clark, Admin & UB Office Supervisor
November 15, 2019

SUBJECT: CWSRF- Loan / Grant #CS-330122-13
Disb #7 Final Sewer and Drainage Asset Management Project
Disbursement Amount $8,304.00
Proj#17581 Gen & Sewer Fund 50/50
Peter C. Nourse PE, Director of City Services
Michael S. Bezanson PE, City Engineer

FROM:
DATE:

CC:

Attached please find one cover letter and form for the 7th and final disbursement
request on the Sewer and Drainage Asset Management Clean Water State
Revolving Fund (CWSRF) Grant / Loan.

Contrary to the typical loan docs that list both the Finance Director and the City
Manager as signatory authority, this Grant list only the City Manager as the
responsible party for signatures.

Roland, Please review, sign below and pass on to the City Manager for
signatures, If you have any questions please let me know. I will scan you a
copy of full packet once signed by Blaine. .
Blaine, please sign where indicated and return these documents to the DPW for
distribution.

Reviewed by Finance
Roland E. Connors

BUILDINGS AND GROUNDS HIGHWAY • WATER SEWER ENGINEERING

01/02/2020

Page 92 of 247



City of (Rochester, New Hampshire
PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT

45 Old Dover Road •Rochester, NH 03867
(603) 332-4096

www.RochesterNH.net

INTEROFFICE MEMORANDUM

BLAINE COX, CITY MANAGER
KATIE AMBROSE, DEPUTY CITY MANAGER/DIRECTOR OF FINANCE & ADMIN

TO:

LISA J. CLARK, ADMINISTRATIVE SUPERVISOR 1
November 19, 2019
Geosyntec Consulting
Stormwater & MSF Permit Compliance -Technical Support
2 Year Contract Amount $169,854.00
Michael S. Bezanson, PE City Engineer
Peter C. Nourse, PE, Director of City Services

FROM:
DATE:
SUBJECT:

CC:

Attached please 1 copy of the Geosyntec scope of services for 2 years of technical support for the City’s
Stormwater / MS4 permit compliance.

The Funds are available in the following CIP Account lines
15013010-771000-16522 $19,629.74
15013010-771000-17522 $8,005.31
15013010-771000-18525 $142,218.95

If you have any question, please call, if not please pass on to the City Manager for signature. Please return
document to me at the DPW for Distribution

u
(Katie Ambrose, Deputy City Manager/ Director of Finance & Administration)

01/02/2020

Page 93 of 247



City of (Rochester, New Hampshire
PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT

45 Old Dover Road •Rochester, NH 03867
(603) 332-4096

www.RochesterNH.net

m J*TF » >

CITY

°e,'/er/

Q<s

Wc 3020lgINTEROFFICE MEMORANDUM

Oc ' %er
BLAINE COX, CITY MANAGER
KATIE AMBROSE, DEPUTY CITY MANAGER/DIRECTOR OF FINANCE & ADMIN

TO:

LISA J. CLARK, ADMINISTRATIVE SUPERVISOR
December 27, 2019

SUBJECT: Nobis Group

FROM:
DATE:

Wallace Street -Ground Water Sampling & Reporting Services
Contract Amount $12,020.52
Michael S. Bezanson, PE City Engineer
Peter C. Nourse, PE, Director of City Services

CC:

Attached please find (1) one copy of the Nobis Group contract for the NHDES required groundwater sampling
and reporting efforts at the Wallace Street Brownfields site. This is the City owned site formerly operated as
Advance Recycling.

There is sufficient funding available as follows

Wallace Street Redevelopment fund 15011010-771000-09501 = $12,020.52

If you have any question, please call, if not please pass on to the City Manager for signature. Please return thisdocument to me at the DPW for Distribution

(Katie Ambrose, Deputy City Manager/ Director of Finance & Administration)

01/02/2020

Page 94 of 247



G\̂ OF

ReceivedCity of Rochester, New Hampshire
PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT

45 Old Dover Road • Rochester, NH 03867 DEC 12 2DW
(603) 332-4096

i
• •O* *m

ROCHESTER|oe,

Fax (603) 335-4352rn
&& City ManageriS www.rochestemh.net£v

mLLcJtAHV&

INTEROFFICE MEMORANDUM

TO: Blaine Cox, City Manager

WThru: Terence O’Rourke, City AttorneyI
Peter C. Nourse, Director of City Services
December 11, 2019

SUBJECT: Water Pipe Agreement between City and Highfields Commons
Development, LLC
Michael Bezanson, PE City Engineer

FROM:
DATE:

CC:

Attached please see a water pipe agreement with and signed by Highfields
Commons Development, LLC. The agreement was drafted by City staff, and
reviewed and signed by Highfields Commons Development, LLC.

This agreement supports the City’s project to expand municipal water to the Rt.
202A area using City water funds and by leveraging State Drinking Water Trust
Fund grant funds, SRF loan funds and MTBE program funds. Essential to the
project is the installation of an atmospheric storage tank which for system
operations is most suitably sited on the property of the Highfields Commons
development.
Per this agreement Highfields Commons will provide fee title to the City of a
portion of their property to site the tank and provide construction and long term
maintenance access via Bickford Rd.

Also per this agreement, Highfields Commons will install 12” diameter water pipe
in their next, approved phase in place of their approved 8” pipe. The 12” pipe will
better serve the new water tank and system extension beyond to Rt. 202A. The
pipe will be provided by the City.

BUILDINGS AND GROUNDS HIGHWAY WATER SEWER ENGINEERING

01/02/2020

Page 95 of 247



^kfllkgo City of Rochester, New Hampshire
PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT

*3
&BPROCHESTER!«//. 45 Old Dover Road • Rochester, NH 03867

(603) 332-4096
—E

Fax (603) 335-4352J r~a'.at-'* www.rochestemh.net%

Attachments:

(1) Memorandum of Understanding between City of Rochester and Highfield
Commons Development, LLC

BUILDINGS AND GROUNDS HIGHWAY WATER SEWER • ENGINEERING

01/02/2020

Page 96 of 247



aryQ*
Ce/VedDecember 20, 2019Date:

DEC 2

C/iEsr̂

0 2019Blaine Cox
City Manager

To:

Julian Long
Community Development Coordinator/Grants Manager

From:

Re: FY 2020 CDBG Environmental Reviews-CAP Weatherization

Please see attached the completed FY 2020 Community Development Block Grant
(CDBG) environmental review for the replacement of a furnace and insulation in a stick-
built house located in East Rochester, under the Community Action Partnership of
Strafford County’s weatherization program (CAP weatherization program). The City
Council approved funding to the CAP weatherization program at the May 7, 2019 City
Council meeting.

The environmental reviews require the signature of the City Manager as the authorized
official for the City of Rochester. Thank you very much, and please contact Julian with
any questions or concerns.

01/02/2020

Page 97 of 247



GVTY OP
ReceivedDecember 18, 2019Date:

DEC 1 9 2019Blaine Cox
City Manager

To:
City Manager

ÔCHEŜJulian Long
Community Development Coordinator/Grants Manager

From:

Re: FY 2020 CDBG Environmental Reviews-CAP Weatherization

Please see attached the completed FY 2020 Community Development Block Grant
(CDBG) environmental reviews for heater replacement and furnace replacement in two
homes located in East Rochester, under the Community Action Partnership of Strafford
County’s weatherization program (CAP weatherization program). The City Council
approved funding to the CAP weatherization program at the May 7, 2019 City Council
meeting.

The environmental reviews require the signature of the City Manager as the authorized
official for the City of Rochester. Thank you very much, and please contact Julian with
any questions or concerns.

01/02/2020

Page 98 of 247



December 5, 2019Date:
C'TV 0/>

Received
52019

znager
°CfiE

Blaine Cox
City Manager

To:

DEC
Julian Long
Community Development Coordinator/Grants Manager

From: C'VU

Re: FY 2020 CDBG Environmental Reviews-CAP Weatherization

Please see attached the completed FY 2020 Community Development Block Grant
(CDBG) environmental review for ductwork repair in a manufactured home located in
the east-central region the city, under the Community Action Partnership of Strafford
County’s weatherization program (CAP weatherization program). The City Council
approved funding to the CAP weatherization program at the May 7, 2019 City Council
meeting.

The environmental reviews require the signature of the City Manager as the authorized
official for the City of Rochester. Thank you very much, and please contact Julian with
any questions or concerns.

01/02/2020

Page 99 of 247



December 2, 2019Date:
CITyo.

®c,Blaine Cox
City Manager

To: ©/U©o'4s?

Julian Long
Community Development Coordinator/Grants Manager

From: <0 oy>

ŜTEB

Re: FY 2020 CDBG Environmental Reviews-HDC Faqade Program

Please see attached the completed FY 2020 Community Development Block Grant
(CDBG) environmental reviews for the facade and sign work to be performed on 107 N.
Main Street and 33 N. Main Street, under the Historic District Commission’s facade and
sign improvements grant program. The City Council approved funding to the HDC
fapade program at the May 7, 2019 City Council meeting, and the HDC approved the 107
N. Main Street and 33 N. Main Street projects at its November 13, 2019 committee
meeting.

The environmental reviews require the signature of the City Manager as the authorized
official for the City of Rochester. Thank you very much, and please contact Julian with
any questions or concerns.

01/02/2020

Page 100 of 247



C'TV Op

Received

DEC 12 2019
City Manager

°̂CHE5^
Date: December 12, 2019

Blaine Cox
City Manager

To:

From: Julian Long
Community Development Coordinator/Grants Manager

Re: FY 2020 CDBG Request for Release of Funds-My Friend’s Place Generator
Project

Please see attached the completed Request for Release of Funds for the My Friend’s
Place back-up generator project. The City Council approved CDBG funding to this
activity at the September 3, 2019 City Council meeting.

The Request for Release of Funds requires the signature of the City Manager as the
authorized official for the City of Rochester. Thank you very much, and please contact
Julian with any questions or concerns.

01/02/2020

Page 101 of 247



rC< OF
.

e\Nie<i

ftOGV^

0-
December 4, 2019Date: f\ec

\JE&Blaine Cox
City Manager

To:

G'W
Julian Long
Community Development Coordinator/Grants Manager

From:

Re: FY 2020 CDBG Request for Release of Funds-Riverwalk Committee Kayak
Launch

Please see attached the completed Request for Release of Funds for the Riverwalk
Committee’s canoe and kayak launch activity. The City Council approved CDBG
funding to this activity at the May 7, 2019 City Council meeting.

The Request for Release of Funds requires the signature of the City Manager as the
authorized official for the City of Rochester. Thank you very much, and please contact
Julian with any questions or concerns.

01/02/2020

Page 102 of 247



G'Tr q*Received
DEC I i 2019

City ,V?onager
°CHEŜ

<9,MEMO
TO:Samantha Rogerson

CC: Blaine Cox,City Manager

FROM: Michael Scala, Director of Economic Development

DATE:December 11,2019

RE:LDI Project Planning Application

Attached please find the signature page for REDC's Planning Board Application for its LDI
Solutions Project in the Granite State Business Park.

This document requires the signature of the City Manager representing the Landowner and
Applicant (Economic Development). Please returned the signed document to Mike Scala.

Please contact Economic Development with any further questions.

Michael Scala
Director of Economic Development

01/02/2020

Page 103 of 247



Katie Ambrose

Bourret, Kathleen <Kathleen.Bourret@des.nh.gov>
Thursday, December 12, 2019 10:15 AM
Blaine Cox; Katie Ambrose
Peter Nourse; Malcolm, Beth; Lisa Clark; Michael Bezanson
[External] Signatures Required-Amendment No. 1, CWSRF #CS-330122-15
Amendment No. 1.pdf

From:
Sent:
To:
Cc:
Subject:
Attachments:

This email originated from outside of the organization. Do not click links or open attachments unless you recognize the
sender and know the content is safe.

Good Afternoon Blaine & Kathryn:

Attached is an electronic copy of Amendment No.1which increases the loan amount for the Biosolids
Dewatering Facility and Carbon Storage Building project from $3,000,000 to $15,952,773.50.

Please print 2 copies of the document,have them authorized as indicated and mail both originals to the
addresfbelow. Upon receipt we will process the documents for approval by the Commissioner and Governor
& Council.

A copy of the final approved Amendment will be sent to you for your records.

Please contact me with any questions.

Thank you,

Kathie Bourret, CWSRF Federal Provisions Administrator
Wastewater Engineering Bureau, Water Division, NFIDES
29 Flazen Drive, PO Box 95, Concord, NH 03302
Tel: (603) 271-2902 | Fax: (603) 271-4128

l

01/02/2020

Page 104 of 247



The State of New Hampshire
DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES

Robert R. Scott, Commissioner

Michael Bezanson, P.E.
City of Rochester
45 Old Dover Road
Rochester,NH 03867

December 19, 2019

GWY OP

Received
DEC 3 0 2019Subject: Rochester Water Department;PWS ID# 2001010

Drinking Water State Revolving Loan # 2001010-10
Raw Water Pump Station Project -Supplemental Loan Agreement City Manager

*OCHEŜ
Dear Michael,

This letter is to acknowledge completion of the above referenced project which was financed by a
Drinking Water State Revolving Fund Loan (DWSRF). The amount of $628,766.67 has been disbursed
under the loan. The City of Rochester is eligible for $125,753.33 in principal forgiveness which will be
granted at the first repayment.

The Original Loan Agreement indicated a repayment term of 10 years. The first payment will be due on
January 1,2020 including any accrued construction interest. Enclosed is a disbursement report and
amortization schedule with equal payments. If you wish to change either the term of the loan or the
schedule to reflect equal principal in each payment please contact us immediately. If acceptable,
please print out the attached Supplemental Loan Agreement (SLA), single sided. Review and sign on
page 4 and 7 and mail the original back to me for processing.

Section XI of the OLA acknowledges that if the Loan Recipient expends more than $750,000 in federal
financial assistance from all sources in any fiscal year, it must perform a Single Audit Act (SAA) audit in
accordance with the requirements of the Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133. In that
event, the Loan Recipient shall provide the State with a copy of the SAA audit report within nine (9)
months of the end of the audit period. If you have any questions,please contact me at 271-7017 or
johnna.mckenna (Sdes.nh.gov.
Sincerely,

Johnna McKenna
Drinking Water and Groundwater Bureau

Enclosures: Supplemental Loan Agreement,Disbursement Report, and Repayment Schedule

DES Web Site: www.des.nh.gov
P.O. Box 95, 29 Hazen Drive, Concord, New Hampshire 03302-0095

Telephone: (603) 271-2513 Fax: (603) 271-5171 TDD Access: Relay NH 1-800-735-2964

01/02/2020

Page 105 of 247



C'TY Ofr
Received

KC I g 2019
City Manager

*°CHES&

City of Rochester, New Hampshire
INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY SERVICES
31 Wakefield St • Rochester, NH 03867

www.rochestemh.net

INTEROFFICE MEMORANDUM

TO: Blaine City Manager
Katie Ambrose, Finance Director

Sonja Gonzalez, Chief Information Officer
December 16, 2019

SUBJECT: Exactitude Arena Security Camera system - $13,835

FROM:
DATE:

CC:

Attached please find one copy of the proposal for the procurement, installation
and configuration of security cameras at the Arena.

There is sufficient funding in the FY19 Network Upgrades and Expansion
account, 15010102-773800-19501

If you have any questions, please let me know. If not, please sign and pass on to
the City Manager for signature. This document should be returned to Sonia
Gonzalez for distribution.

Signature
Katie Ambrose, Finance Director

INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY SERVICES

01/02/2020

Page 106 of 247



1 •iEUiJa
SS# -*!

"4> > x
City of Rochester, New Hampshire

INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY SERVICES
31 Wakefield St • Rochester, NH 03867

www.rochestemh.net

? ROCHESTIiRf
m

isr».

V

INTEROFFICE MEMORANDUM

TO: Blaine City Manager
Katie Ambrose, Finance Director

FROM:
DATE:

Sonja Gonzalez, Chief Information Officer
December 20, 2019

SUBJECT: Systems Engineering -SE Microsoft Cloud Solution Provider
CC:

Attached please find one copy of a Microsoft Cloud Solution Provider contract.
This contract allows us to work with Systems Engineering to manage our
Microsoft licensing for Office 365.

If you have any questions, please let me know. If not, please sign and pass on to
the City Manager for signature. This document should be returned to Sonia
Gonzalez for distribution.

L
Signature »

Katie Ambrose, Finance Director

INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY SERVICES

01/02/2020

Page 107 of 247



City of (Rochester, New Hampshire
OFFICE OF THE CITY ATTORNEY

31 Wakefield Street •Rochester, NH 03867
(603) 335-7599

www.RochesterNH.net

Memorandum
Blaine Cox, City Manager
Terence O'Rourke, City Attorney
December 4, 2019
Sale of 0 Broadway Street

To:
From:
Date:
Re:

On October 5, 2019, the City conducted an auction to dispose of certain properties taken
by way of Tax Deed. The winning bid on 0 Broadway Street was submitted by Kurt
MacVitte. In order to complete the sale the City must issue Kurt MacVitte a Quitclaim
Deed which must be signed by the City Manager.

Summary of Property Sale

$12,367.16
$ 36.49
$12,403.65

Property Taxes & Interest Owed on Deed Date:
Filing Fee and Notice Fee:
Total Projected Redemption Amount:

$ N/A
$12,403.65

Additional Costs After Deeding:
Total Amount:

$700.00Sale Price:

Difference between Redemption Amount and
Sale Price $ (11,703.65)

Blaine Cox
City Manager

01/02/2020

Page 108 of 247



City of (Rochester, New Hampshire
OFFICE OF THE CITY ATTORNEY

31 Wakefield Street •Rochester, NH 03867
(603) 335-7599

www.RochesterNH.net

Memorandum
Blaine Cox, City Manager
Terence O'Rourke, City Attorney
December 4, 2019
Sale of 0 Dora Drive

To:
From:
Date:
Re:

On October 5, 2019, the City conducted an auction to dispose of certain properties taken
by way of Tax Deed. The winning bid on 0 Dora Drive was submitted by David
Lemieux. In order to complete the sale the City must issue David Lemieux a Quitclaim
Deed which must be signed by the City Manager.

Summary of Property Sale

$979.64
$ 36.49
$1,016.13

Property Taxes & Interest Owed on Deed Date:
Filing Fee and Notice Fee:
Total Projected Redemption Amount:

$ N/A
$1,016.13

Additional Costs After Deeding:
Total Amount:

$8,100.00Sale Price:

Difference between Redemption Amount and
Sale Price $7,083.87

Blaine Cox
City Manager

01/02/2020

Page 109 of 247



City of (Rochester, New Hampshire
OFFICE OF THE CITY ATTORNEY

31 Wakefield Street •Rochester, NH 03867
(603) 335-7599

www.RochesterNH.net

Memorandum
Blaine Cox, City Manager
Terence O'Rourke, City Attorney
December 4, 2019
Sale of 0 Old Wakefield Road

To:
From:
Date:
Re:

On October 5, 2019, the City conducted an auction to dispose of certain properties taken
by way of Tax Deed. The winning bid on 0 Old Wakefield Road was submitted by
Robert Debutts. In order to complete the sale the City must issue Robert Debutts a
Quitclaim Deed which must be signed by the City Manager.

Summary of Property Sale

Property Taxes & Interest Owed on Deed Date:
Filing Fee and Notice Fee:
Total Projected Redemption Amount:

Additional Costs After Deeding:
Total Amount:

$4,136.97
$ 36.49
$4,173.46

$ N/A
$4,173.46

$400.00Sale Price:

Difference between Redemption Amount and
Sale Price $ (3,773.46)

Blaine Cox
City Manager

01/02/2020

Page 110 of 247



City of (Rochester, New Hampshire
OFFICE OF THE CITY ATTORNEY

31 Wakefield Street •Rochester, NH 03867
(603) 335-7599

www.RochesterNH.net

Memorandum
Blaine Cox, City Manager
Terence O'Rourke, City Attorney
December 4, 2019
Sale of 5 Lois Street

To:
From:
Date:
Re:

On October 5, 2019, the City conducted an auction to dispose of certain properties taken
by way of Tax Deed. The winning bid on 5 Lois Street was submitted by Harvey &
Karen Bernier Real Estate LLC. In order to complete the sale the City must issue Harvey
& Karen Bernier Real Estate LLC a Quitclaim Deed which must be signed by the City
Manager.

Summary of Property Sale

$21,224.68
$ 36.49
$21,261.17

Property Taxes & Interest Owed on Deed Date:
Filing Fee and Notice Fee:
Total Projected Redemption Amount:

$ N/A
$21,261.17

Additional Costs After Deeding:
Total Amount:

$31,000.00Sale Price:

Difference between Redemption Amount and
Sale Price $9,738.83

Blaine Cox
City Manager

01/02/2020

Page 111 of 247



City of (Roc fester, New Hampshire
OFFICE OF THE CITY ATTORNEY

31 Wakefield Street •Rochester, NH 03867
(603) 335-7599

www.RochesterNH.net

Memorandum
Blaine Cox, City Manager
Terence O'Rourke, City Attorney
December 4, 2019
Sale of 10 Lanai Drive

To:
From:
Date:
Re:

On October 5, 2019, the City conducted an auction to dispose of certain properties taken
by way of Tax Deed. The winning bid on10 Lanai Drive was submitted by Affordable
Mobiles, LLC. In order to complete the sale the City must issue Affordable Mobiles,
LLC a Quitclaim Deed which must be signed by the City Manager.

Summary of Property Sale

$13,978.10
$ 36.49
$14,014.59

Property Taxes & Interest Owed on Deed Date:
Filing Fee and Notice Fee:
Total Projected Redemption Amount:

Additional Costs After Deeding:
Total Amount:

$ N/A
$14,014.59

Sale Price: $70,000.00

Difference between Redemption Amount and
Sale Price $55,985.41

Blaine Cox
City Manager

01/02/2020

Page 112 of 247



City of (RocHester, (New (Hampshire
OFFICE OF THE CITY ATTORNEY

31 Wakefield Street •Rochester, NH 03867
(603) 335-7599

www.RochesterNH.net

Memorandum
Blaine Cox, City Manager
Terence O'Rourke, City Attorney
December 4, 2019
Sale of 12 Downfield Lane

To:
From:
Date:
Re:

On October 5, 2019, the City conducted an auction to dispose of certain properties taken
by way of Tax Deed. The winning bid on12 Downfield Lane was submitted by Tim
Wilder. Wilder has assigned his rights to Next Wave, LCC c/o Kevin Grondin. In order
to complete the sale the City must issue Next Wave, LLC a Quitclaim Deed which must
be signed by the City Manager.

Summary of Property Sale

$12,349.31
$ 36.49
$12,385.80

Property Taxes & Interest Owed on Deed Date:
Filing Fee and Notice Fee:
Total Projected Redemption Amount:

$ N/A
$12,385.80

Additional Costs After Deeding:
Total Amount:

$100.00Sale Price:

Difference between Redemption Amount and
Sale Price $ (12,285.80)

Blaine Cox
City Manager

01/02/2020

Page 113 of 247



City of (Rochester, New Hampshire
OFFICE OF THE CITY ATTORNEY

31 Wakefield Street •Rochester, NH 03867
(603) 335-7599

www.RochesterNH.net

Memorandum
Blaine Cox, City Manager
Terence O'Rourke, City Attorney
December 4, 2019
Sale of 19 Main Street, East Rochester

To:
From:
Date:
Re:

On October 5, 2019, the City conducted an auction to dispose of certain properties. The
winning bid on19 Main Street in East Rochester was submitted by Henry Demers. In
order to complete the sale the City must issue Henry Demers a Quitclaim Deed which
must be signed by the City Manager.

Summary of Property Sale

$72,000.00Sale Price:

Blaine Cox
City Manager

01/02/2020

Page 114 of 247



City of (Rochester, New Hampshire
OFFICE OF THE CITY ATTORNEY

31 Wakefield Street •Rochester, NH 03867
(603) 335-7599

www.RochesterNH.net

Memorandum
Blaine Cox,City Manager
Terence O'Rourke, City Attorney
December 4, 2019
Sale of 24 D'Amours Avenue

To:
From:
Date:
Re:

On October 5, 2019, the City conducted an auction to dispose of certain properties taken
by way of Tax Deed. The winning bid on 24 D'Amours Avenue was submitted by
Danziger Properties. In order to complete the sale the City must issue Danziger
Properties a Quitclaim Deed which must be signed by the City Manager.

Summary of Property Sale

$3,575.01
$ 36.49
$3,611.50

Property Taxes & Interest Owed on Deed Date:
Filing Fee and Notice Fee:
Total Projected Redemption Amount:

$ N/A
$3,611.50

Additional Costs After Deeding:
Total Amount:

$500.00Sale Price:

Difference between Redemption Amount and
Sale Price $ (3,111.50)

Blaine Cox
City Manager

01/02/2020

Page 115 of 247



City of (Rochester, New Hampshire
OFFICE OF THE CITY ATTORNEY

31 Wakefield Street •Rochester, NH 03867
(603) 335-7599

www.RochesterNH.net

Memorandum
Blaine Cox, City Manager
Terence O'Rourke, City Attorney
December 4, 2019
Sale of 35 Linden Street

To:
From:
Date:
Re:

On October 5, 2019, the City conducted an auction to dispose of certain properties taken
by way of Tax Deed. The winning bid on 35 Linden Street was submitted by Matthew
Spellissy. In order to complete the sale the City must issue Matthew Spellissy a
Quitclaim Deed which must be signed by the City Manager.

Summary of Property Sale

Property Taxes & Interest Owed on Deed Date:
Filing Fee and Notice Fee:
Total Projected Redemption Amount:

$19,707.44
$ 36.49
$19,743.93

$ N/A
$19,743.93

Additional Costs After Deeding:
Total Amount:

$5,000.00Sale Price:

Difference between Redemption Amount and
Sale Price $ (14,743.93)

Blaine Cox
City Manager

01/02/2020

Page 116 of 247



Permits Issued report - Dec

DATE 

RECEIVED

DATE ISSUED PERMISSION 

PERMITS  

MISCELLANEOUS DATE OF EVENT

11/21/2019 12/5/2019 TAG Nurses with Purpose 2/8/2020

12/10/2019 12/18/2019 RAFFLE Elks Lodge annual 2020

11/27/2019 11/27/2019 MESSAGE Veterans Council - Pearl Harbor Day Ceremony 12/7/2019

12/9/2019 12/9/2019 MESSAGE First United Methodist Church - Ham & Bean Supper 12/28/2019

12/16/2019 12/16/2019 MESSAGE ACS - Relay for Life - Holiday Craft Fair 12/21/2019

ELECTRONIC MESSAGE BOARD REQUESTS

01/02/2020

Page 117 of 247



DEPT NAME POSITION #
 o

f 
E

m
p

lo
y
e
e
s

F
T

P
T

S
E

A
S

O
N

A
L

/T
E

M
P

N
E

W
 H

IR
E

R
E

H
IR

E

R
E

T
IR

E
M

E
N

T

S
E

P
A

R
A

T
E

D

S
T

E
P

 (
C

B
A

)

M
E

R
IT

 P
A

Y
 A

D
J

N
U

 P
A

Y
 A

D
J

P
A

Y
 A

D
J

P
R

O
M

O
T

IO
N

O
T

H
E

R

MISC. INFO

BZLS JULIA LIBBY SECRETARY II 1 X X

BZLS CYNTHIA HARRIS SECRETARY II 1 X X

CCOM NICOLE KNOX COMM SPECIALIST 1 X X

DPW RONDA BOISVERT SECRETARY II 1 X X

DPW KAREN BONNEAU UTILITY BILLING ADMIN 1 X X

DPW KARL BOSTROM DPW-WTP OPERATOR 1 X X WWTP OPERATOR

DPW JAMES MARTINO DPW WTP LABORER 1 X X GROUNDS PERSON

DPW ALAN BERARD MAINTENANCE TECHNICIAN 1 X X

DPW KIM NICKERSON UTILITY BILLING ADMIN 1 X X

ECON JENNIFER MURPHY AUBIN EXUC SECRETARY 1 X X

ECON JULIA LIBBY EXEC SECRETARY 1 X X HIRED FOR ECON DEV

FIRE MATT PARKER FIREFIGHTER 1 X X

FIRE SAM MORRILL FIREFIGHTER 1 X X

FIRE CURT FITTON FIREFIGHTER 1 X X

FIRE DUANE MARSH FIREFIGHTER 1 X X

POLICE EDWARD COUTURE CROSSING GUARD 1 X X

POLICE ELIZABETH TURNER PATROL OFFICER 1 X X

POLICE GEOFFREY MOORE PATROL OFFICER 1 X X

POLICE NICOLE KNOX PATROL OFFICER 1 X X

POLICE BRENDAN COLSON PATROL OFFICER 1 X X

POLICE VARIOUS PATROL OFFICER 45 X X

POLICE VARIOUS SERGEANT 6 X X

RECREATION SHANNON COLSON SUPPORT STAFF 1 - TIER 1 1 X X HEAD LIFEGUARD

RECREATION BEN TOUSSAINT ARENA ATTENDANT 1 X X LIFEGUARD

WELFARE KAREN FONTAINE WELFARE INTAKE WORKER 1 X X

PERSONNEL ACTIONS, DECEMBER 2019

12/30/2019

01/02/2020

Page 118 of 247



   

 

Signature_____________________________________________Date_________________ 

Blaine M. Cox, City Manager 

 

 

 

Signature_____________________________________________Date_________________ 

Finance & Budget Office Review 

City of Rochester, New Hampshire 

Economic Development Department 

33 Wakefield Street, Rochester, NH  03867 

(603) 335-7522, www.RochesterEDC.com    

 
 
 

 
 

INTEROFFICE MEMORANDUM 
 

TO: Mayor McCarley 

FROM:  Jenn Marsh, Economic Development Commission 

DATE:  December 10, 2019 

SUBJECT: Recommendation for REDC Chairperson for 2020 

 

CC: Blaine Cox, City Manager; Michael Scala, Economic Development 

Director; Kelly Walters, City Clerk 
 
 
On behalf of the Rochester Economic Development Department, we would like to 
recommend Jonathan Shapleigh to continue as Chairperson for 2020.  Jonathan served 
as Chairperson for 2019 and before that had served as Vice Chairperson since 2016.   
 
Jonathan resides in Rochester with his wife and three children and is very active in the 
community.  Jonathan has a passion for economic development and is looking forward 
to making an impact as Rochester is shaped into more of a vibrant community to better 
serve its current and prospective residents, businesses and visitors. 
 
Jonathan has been in commercial banking for 15 years and is currently an SVP, Senior 
Marketing Manager for Northway Bank covering the Seacoast Region of New 
Hampshire.  His expertise in banking is a perfect fit for the new roles the Economic 
Development Commission is looking to take on. 
 
Thank you for your consideration, 
 
Jenn 

ROCHESTER
H A M P S H I R EN E W

01/02/2020

Page 119 of 247

http://www.rochesteredc.com/


 

 

 
 

Intentionally 
left blank… 

City Clerk’s Office 

 

01/02/2020

Page 120 of 247



 

 
Mayoral 
Appointments 

FORTHCOMING 

 

01/02/2020

Page 121 of 247



 

 

 
 

Intentionally 
left blank… 

City Clerk’s Office 

 

01/02/2020

Page 122 of 247



SMI
Sf#?

City of Rochester, New Hampshire
OFFICE OF THE CITY CLERK

31 Wakefield Street •Rochester, NH 03867
FAX (603) 509-1915 PHONE (603) 332-2130

STATEMENT OF INTEREST
BOARD AND COMMISSION MEMBERSHIP

JAN 0 2 2020

SriPOSITION DESIRED:
NEW

r.r̂ rCW aJQ

RE-APPOINTMENT t/ REGULAR ALTERNATE

Mltii. fU' S-hcJ
/Sr Dh (JTVI/I o AsSn

T/ yra -htfaFUr-fyu L.r*»,
WARD 3>

NAME:

STREET ADDRESS:

TELEPHONED
ZIP

E-MAI

REGISTERED VOTER: (CIRCLE ONE) YES NO
il«

but any information provided will be given to all City Councilors and will be available for
public inspection). (Additional sheets/information may be attached, if desired; please do not
write on the back of this form.)

^/// Th.i fifb yrâ

If this is an application for reappointment to a position, please list all training sessions you
have attended relative to your appointed position.

iI understand that: (1) this application will be presented to the Rochester City Council only
for the position specified above and not for subsequent vacancies on the same board; (2) the
Mayor and/or City Council may nominate someone who has not filed a similar application;
and (3) this application will be available for public inspection. ,

I certify that I am 18 years of age or older:

01/02/2020

Page 123 of 247



 

 

 
 

Intentionally 
left blank… 

City Clerk’s Office 

 

01/02/2020

Page 124 of 247



City of Rochester, New Hampshire
OFFICE OF THE CITY CLERK

31 Wakefield Street •Rochester, NH 03867
FAX (603) 509-1915 PHONE (603) 332-2130

JAN 0 2 2020

STATEMENT OF INTEREST
BOARD AND COMMISSION MEMBERSHIP

Ss 1 ecAyy\POSITION DESIRED:

NEW RE-APPOINTMENT
a v\

REGULAR
"VrfQuo O

ALTERNATE

\ nNAME:

55 0 V V L K e v I H ASTREET ADDRESS:

ZIP
0vobiob \ t o rv\&C0 L*-*TELEPHONE:(H). rw> E-MAIL

6>05- fc / 1- <7 556
WARD QREGISTERED VOTER: (CIRCLE ONE) NFS NO

Statement of Interest/Lxperience/Background/Qualilications, Etc. (This section need not be completed,
but any information provided will be given to all City Councilors and will be available for
public inspection). (Additional sheets/information may be attached, if desired; please do not
write on the back of this form.)

C I t ) \ r-/v /'In"77 foot? ir! /; 55 LLrSA

If this is an application for reappointment to a position, please list all training sessions you
have attended relative to your appointed position.

I understand that: (1) this application will be presented to the Rochester City Council only
for the position specified above and not for subsequent vacancies on the same board; (2) the
Mayor and/or City Council may nominate someone who has not filed a similar application;
and (3) this application will be available for public inspection.

I certify that I am 18 years of age or older:

01/02/2020

Page 125 of 247



 

 

 
 

Intentionally 
left blank… 

City Clerk’s Office 

 

01/02/2020

Page 126 of 247



Rochester City Council 

 Community Development Committee 

 

MEETING MINUTES 

Elaine Lauterborn, Chair 
Donna Bogan, Vice Chair 

Tom Abbott 
Jeremy Hutchinson 

James Gray 
Meeting Date: Monday, December 9, 2019 

Members Present: Donna Bogan 
James Gray 
Elaine Lauterborn 

Members Absent:  
Tom Abbott 
Jeremy Hutchinson 

Guests/Staff: Julian Long, Community Development Coordinator 

Councilor Lauterborn called the meeting to order at 7:10 p.m. Motion was made by 
Councilor Gray and seconded by Councilor Bogan to approve the September 9, 2019 
Community Development Committee minutes. The minutes were approved unanimously. 

PUBLIC INPUT There was no public input. 

COAST – New Bus Stop 
Locations Request 

Mr. Long passed along apologies from Mr. Michael Williams for his being 
unable to attend the Community Development Committee meeting in person. 
Mr. Long explained that the Cooperative Alliance for Seacoast Transportation 
(COAST) is requesting the addition of four bus stops along Washington Street 
as part of the system redesign. The bus stops are to be placed on existing 
posts. 

Motion was made by Councilor Gray and seconded by Councilor Bogan to 
recommend approval of COAST’s four new proposed bus stops. The motion 
passed unanimously. 

FY 2021 PRE-GRANT 
PRESENTATIONS - 
Discussion 

Mr. Long gave an overview of different examples of how to structure in-person 
grant application presentations from other communities, which include setting 
time limits for presentations, splitting presentations over multiple meeting 
dates, etc. Councilor Bogan expressed approval for time limits for 
presentations and asked what grant applicants are currently told. Mr. Long 
replied that currently applicants are requested to limit their presentations to 
five to ten minutes but that this request can be more strictly enforced. 

Councilor Lauterborn requested that the in-person presentations be split over 
two days and suggested the January 2020 and February 2020 regular 
Community Development Committee meeting dates. The other committee 
members agreed. Councilor Lauterborn asked Mr. Long to schedule more 

*•IT.
\\S>'W V
2'ff|ROCHESTER

5i' JS•r C?
III!fcg mv

%CWART0

01/02/2020

Page 127 of 247



presentations for the January meeting than for the February meeting, and Mr. 
Long stated that he would do so. 

Councilor Bogan requested that the January 2020 and February 2020 
committee meetings be scheduled to begin at 6:30 p.m. rather than 7 p.m. The 
other committee members agreed. 

AUGUST 2019 HUD 
SITE VISIT – Corrective 
Action Letter and 
Response 

Councilor Lauterborn asked Mr. Long to provide a summary of the U.S. 
Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) findings and concerns 
and the City’s response for each finding and concern outlined in the HUD 
corrective action letter. This letter was sent after HUD’s site monitoring visit in 
August 2019. Mr. Long stated that although the HUD letter expressed a 
number of concerns regarding the City’s CDBG program, HUD staff also 
verbally expressed during the August 2019 site visit that overall HUD was 
pleased with the City’s CDBG program and its operations.  

Mr. Long went through each finding and concern outlined in the HUD letter 
and explained the corrective action that had been taken in response. Councilor 
Lauterborn requested that the committee be kept updated on HUD’s 
acceptance of the City’s corrective action, and Mr. Long stated he would do so. 
Councilor Gray requested that the response letter to HUD that accompanied 
the submitted corrective action be forwarded to the committee, and Mr. Long 
stated that he would forward the letter. 

PROJECTS PROGRAMS 
REPORT 

Mr. Long provided a brief overview of the CDBG program and stated that most 
construction projects for the year are now in progress, including the Historic 
District Commission’s acceptance of three grant applications for the façade 
and sign program. Councilor Lauterborn asked about the $500,000 available in 
state CDBG funds. Mr. Long replied that state CDBG funds go through New 
Hampshire Housing Finance Authority and are generally unable to entitlement 
communities such as Rochester. 

OTHER BUSINESS There was no other business. 

The meeting was adjourned at 7:48 p.m. 

 
Next Meeting – Monday, January 13, 2020 at 6:30 p.m. in Isinglass Conference Room 
in City Hall Annex (33 Wakefield Street) 
Topics – FY 2021 Grant Application Presentations, FY 2020-2025 Draft Consolidated 
Plan Review, FY 2021 Draft Annual Action Plan Review, Projects Program Report  

01/02/2020

Page 128 of 247



City of Rochester Formal Council Meeting 

AGENDA BILL 

NOTE: Agenda Bills are due by 10 AM on the Monday the week before the City Council Meeting. 

COMMITTEE SIGN-OFF 
COMMITTEE 

CHAIR PERSON 

DEPARTMENT APPROVALS 
DEPUTY CITY MANAGER 

CITY MANAGER 

FINANCE & BUDGET INFORMATION 
FINANCE OFFICE APPROVAL 

SOURCE OF FUNDS 

ACCOUNT NUMBER 

AMOUNT 

APPROPRIATION REQUIRED     YES       NO  

LEGAL AUTHORITY 

AGENDA SUBJECT 

COUNCIL ACTION ITEM 
INFORMATION ONLY  

FUNDING REQUIRED?   YES    NO 
* IF YES ATTACH A FUNDING RESOLUTION FORM

RESOLUTION REQUIRED?   YES    NO FUNDING RESOLUTION FORM?   YES    NO 

AGENDA DATE 

DEPT. HEAD SIGNATURE 

DATE SUBMITTED 

ATTACHMENTS         YES   NO  * IF YES, ENTER THE  TOTAL NUMBER OF
PAGES ATTACHED 

AB Form - revised 8/17/2016

1iSoGHESTER £
L-/-" -V

- 7K

r

01/02/2020

Page 129 of 247



SUMMARY STATEMENT 

RECOMMENDED ACTION 

AB Form - revised 8/17/2016

01/02/2020

Page 130 of 247



42 Sumner Drive, Dover, NH  03820      PHONE (603) 743-5777      FAX (603) 743-5786      www.coastbus.org 
 

“COAST champions and provides customer-focused public transportation with a commitment to excellence in safety and service.” 

 

 

 

 

 

Rochester Community Development Committee 

 

December 3, 2019 

 

Good morning, 

 

COAST is in the final stages of a plan to redesign our service for a June 29, 2020 

implementation. In this redesign, Rochester will be getting much faster connections 

south, particularly to Portsmouth (with travel times to downtown Portsmouth being 

reduced from the current 90 minutes to 45 minutes).  

 

As part of this redesign, we will also be extending hourly service along Washington St. 

This service goes out to the NHDOT park & ride before going to the Dover C&J terminal 

and then downtown Portsmouth. In the other direction this service will go through 

downtown Rochester, up to Lilac Mall, then down Rt. 108 to Somersworth and Dover. In 

order to be useful to residents and businesses on Washington St., COAST is requesting 

City approval to add the stops attached. These stops would consist of a COAST bus stop 

sign on an existing pole. For all proposed stops, the bus would only stop if a passenger 

requested the stop either on the bus or by standing at the stop. None of these stops would 

have the bus scheduled to dwell for any longer than needed to pick-up or drop-off 

passengers.  

 

The stop locations proposed have been chosen based on spacing, pedestrian facilities, 

crosswalks, safety, and existing poles. However, we are open to locations shifted slightly 

before or after these locations.  

 

A map of the proposed routes is included, as well as images showing where each 

requested stop would be placed, should the City approve our request.  

 

Additionally, COAST will be removing stops in East Rochester and north of Lilac Mall 

on Rt. 125.  

 

Please let me know if any further information would be beneficial.  

 

Sincerely, 

 

 

Michael Williams 

Director of Operations 

01/02/2020

Page 131 of 247



42 Sumner Drive, Dover, NH  03820      PHONE (603) 743-5777      FAX (603) 743-5786      www.coastbus.org 
 

“COAST champions and provides customer-focused public transportation with a commitment to excellence in safety and service.” 

 

Proposed Route Structure in Downtown Rochester 
 

Orange = Route 6 (existing) 

Blue = Route 12 (currently served by Route 2) 

Purple = Route 14 (new hourly service along Washington St. to Park & Ride, Dover, and 

Portsmouth) 

 

For a full interactive map, go to coastbus.org and select 2020 Service Concept at the top. 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

%

\
Walnut 5t

I
9--2
c
1r

F^lrarouivi.

f^Of

/

TMCA

4,

01/02/2020

Page 132 of 247



42 Sumner Drive, Dover, NH  03820      PHONE (603) 743-5777      FAX (603) 743-5786      www.coastbus.org 
 

“COAST champions and provides customer-focused public transportation with a commitment to excellence in safety and service.” 

 

Stop Map – red dots are proposed stop locations.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

01/02/2020

Page 133 of 247



42 Sumner Drive, Dover, NH  03820      PHONE (603) 743-5777      FAX (603) 743-5786      www.coastbus.org 
 

“COAST champions and provides customer-focused public transportation with a commitment to excellence in safety and service.” 

 

Washington / Brock St. Northbound 

 

 

Washington / Duquette St. Southbound 

 

 

 

01/02/2020

Page 134 of 247



42 Sumner Drive, Dover, NH  03820      PHONE (603) 743-5777      FAX (603) 743-5786      www.coastbus.org 
 

“COAST champions and provides customer-focused public transportation with a commitment to excellence in safety and service.” 

 

Washington / Madison Ave. Southbound 

Here because of the crosswalk.  

 

Washington / Madison Ave. Northbound 

 

 

01/02/2020

Page 135 of 247



42 Sumner Drive, Dover, NH  03820      PHONE (603) 743-5777      FAX (603) 743-5786      www.coastbus.org 
 

“COAST champions and provides customer-focused public transportation with a commitment to excellence in safety and service.” 

 

Washington / Chasse St. Southbound 

 

Washington / Chasse St. Northbound 

  

01/02/2020

Page 136 of 247



DRAFT                                                                                                                Fidelity Committee TCMTF  
                                                                                                                                        November 14, 2019 

1 

 

  
 

Fidelity Committee  
of the  

Tri-City Joint Mayors’ Task Force on Homelessness 
Somersworth Middle School, Media Room 

Somersworth, NH 03878 
November 14, 2019 

6:00 PM 
 

 MAYORS  
 Mayor Caroline McCarley  
 Mayor Karen Weston  
 Mayor Dana Hilliard  
   

Rochester Members Dover Members  Somersworth Members 
Jeremy Hutchinson 

(Chairman) 
 

Charles Reynolds Todd Marsh 
(Vice Chair) 

Barbara Holstein 
 

Betsey Andrews Parker Dina Gagnon 
 
 

             Others Present: John Burns (SOS Recovery), Paige Farmer (Greater Seacoast Coalition to End 
Homelessness)  

 

MINUTES 

 
1. Call to Order 

Chairman Hutchinson called the meeting to order at 6:08 PM.  

2. Public Input (3-minute maximum and/or submit a statement) 

John Burns, Director of SOS Recovery, addressed the Committee on Law 
Enforcement Assisted Diversion (LEAD) to address some concerns which had been 
expressed at the previous Fidelity Committee Meeting. 

 
 Mr. Burns gave an overview of the history of the LEAD program and how this 

pre-arrest diversion program works here in the Seacoast.  He stressed both the cost 
savings of this type of programs as well as the effectiveness. Mr. Burns clarified that 
this program is not run by police departments, but rather with the support of law 

enforcement; although the police departments are involved it is not a great strain on 

H SOMERSWORTH

01/02/2020

Page 138 of 247

https://www.google.com/url?sa=i&rct=j&q=&esrc=s&source=images&cd=&cad=rja&uact=8&ved=2ahUKEwj05c340KbcAhVhkuAKHUB0AqMQjRx6BAgBEAU&url=https://jgpr.net/2017/08/11/rochester-first-chief-information-officer/&psig=AOvVaw1ejO4bnm0oZu7ZT3n-2zJK&ust=1531933981589776
https://www.google.com/url?sa=i&rct=j&q=&esrc=s&source=images&cd=&cad=rja&uact=8&ved=2ahUKEwiL0t7p0KbcAhXwmeAKHUBVCBEQjRx6BAgBEAU&url=https://www.nhliving.com/towns/dover/&psig=AOvVaw2Vut1hXGa0lviflGEFe5Rx&ust=1531933946541828
https://www.google.com/url?sa=i&rct=j&q=&esrc=s&source=images&cd=&cad=rja&uact=8&ved=2ahUKEwjv2cnR0KbcAhWHmOAKHUhfD0wQjRx6BAgBEAU&url=http://somersworthnh.patriotproperties.com/&psig=AOvVaw1yaaBw5S9V3DW5N-xR_TLW&ust=1531933885763241


DRAFT                                                                                                                Fidelity Committee TCMTF  
                                                                                                                                        November 14, 2019 

2 

 

their staff time. Mr. Burns referenced peer-reviewed evidence and case studies 
showing the benefits of these programs.  

 
Mr. Burns stated that all the cases accepted into the LEAD program are non-

violent crimes, and those cases which do involve victims are diverted at the discretion 
and consent of the victim. 

 

The Program is currently being run in Dover and Farmington using a $75,000 
grant received from the Open Society Foundation to fund technical support. Mr. Burns 

gave further details on the scope of the program and how it is funded and how cases 
are handled.  

 

(see Addendum A – full statement from Mr. Burns) 
 

Chairman Hutchinson requested the case studies referenced in Mr. Burns 
statement. Mr. Burns committed to share those studies.  

 

Mayor McCarley inquired what Mr. Burns would need from Rochester as far as 
the LEAD program is concerned. Mr. Burns stated that the program would need the 

support of the Chief of Police; the only cost to the Police is their time in order to train 
in the program and attend the meetings.    

 
3. Communications from the Mayors 

Mayor Hilliard stated that the both he and Mayor McCarley would be reaching 
out to Bob Carrier, the Mayor Elect of Dover, to get him up to speed on the work of 

the Committee and get him involved moving forward.   
 

Mayor Hilliard stated that Committee members are exploring grant 
opportunities for a cold weather shelter. Somersworth has a few potential options for 
locations, but nothing definitive.  

 
Mayor McCarley said that Rochester was also looking into the potential of using 

vacant properties as shelter space and have been approaching landlords in this 
regard. Betsey Andrews Parker stated that there is $500,000 available through CDBG 
funds to assist with the opening of a shelter, but finding a viable location is the issue. 

 
There was a discussion in Committee regarding the County opening the 

emergency cold weather shelter at the Strafford County Complex and why it had not 
happened yet with the recent cold temperatures. It was stated that there is still no 

criteria or established guidelines for what will trigger the emergency cold weather 
shelter to open. It was stated that the Commissioners were “waiting to hear if there 
is a need” for the shelter to open.                

 
4. Communications from the Chair 

4.1 Nomination of Vice Co-Chair 

01/02/2020

Page 139 of 247



DRAFT                                                                                                                Fidelity Committee TCMTF  
                                                                                                                                        November 14, 2019 

3 

 

Betsey Andrews Parker MOVED to AMEND the phrasing on the agenda item to 
reflect the Committee is nominating a Vice Chair. Todd Marsh seconded the Motion. 

The MOTION CARRIED by a unanimous voice vote to amend the phrasing. 
 

Barbara Holstein MOVED to NOMINATE Todd Marsh as the Fidelity Committee 
Vice Chairperson. Betsey Andrews Parker seconded the motion. The MOTION 
CARRIED by a unanimous voice vote.   

 
5. Discussion: Strategy 3: “Increase Homeless Prevention, Rapid 

Rehousing, and Supportive Housing Programs”  
 

Todd Marsh directed the Committee to information which he had provided on 

Supportive Housing. Mr. Marsh summarized the need for supportive housing and the 
experiences he has seen increasingly in the Rochester welfare department.  

 
Mr. Marsh supplied a sample RFI (Request for Information) and RFP (Request 

for Proposal) for Supportive Housing services. He suggested the possibility of putting 

out a request for information first, and stated that often times those who respond to 
an RFI will submit proposals for the RFP. Mr. Marsh stated he could work on a press 

release relevant to what the Committee is seeking with these proposals.  
 

Mr. Marsh emphasized the need for supportive housing, particularly for single 
homeless individuals without dependents either living on the street or couch surfing; 
and while this will not be a full solution, it is certainly needed.    

 
Paige Farmer, Home For All, addressed the Committee regarding Medicaid. Ms. 

Farmer stated that Medicaid is in the process of funding supportive housing; though 
many organizations providing these social services are not familiar with Medicaid 
billing and do not have experience with the process. Ms. Farmer suggested this be 

explored so there could be an infrastructure developed and shared so that each 
individual agency does not need to have a Medicaid number or there could be a 

centralized group of organizations to which other agencies are submitting 
information.   She suggested that this piece of the process is something in which the 
Cities could consider investing. The Cities could consider putting up funding or 

matching funding into something to develop infrastructure and offer training  
 

Ms. Farmer spoke about identifying which services are providing these services 
which are billable to Medicaid and identify who will need to be able to carry out the 
billing. It can then be further determined if there are larger agencies which already 

have the infrastructure which can be expanded or of there can be a “pool” of agencies 
already using this system which can be utilized. It was compared to a service to which 

handles medical transcription and billing would be outsourced.  
 
There was a discussion clarifying the Medicaid billing process and how not all 

billable services are covered by all providers and how the cases are divvied up based 
on which organizations can best serve the client’s needs.        

 

01/02/2020

Page 140 of 247



DRAFT                                                                                                                Fidelity Committee TCMTF  
                                                                                                                                        November 14, 2019 

4 

 

Ms. Andrews Parker asserted that the Public Housing Authorities in the Tri Cities 
which already provide permanent supportive housing solutions should get Medicaid 

billing numbers. This is a positive step the Cities could take and would allow 
reimbursement for some of the expenses. Ms. Andrews Parker also spoke about Tax 

Credit Projects and how they can tie into supportive housing.   
 
Mr. Marsh addressed the potential of existing services expanding to allow space 

for opportunities for supportive housing which could then be reimbursable through 
Medicaid.  

 
Ms. Farmer gave an update on the recent Charrette in Concord hosted by the 

NH Housing Finance Authority. Ms. Farmer stated there are funds available for brick 

and mortar projects; for building new or expanding current properties. She stated 
that although this money is available for projects, if the cost for the services the 

buildings house are not able to be recouped. It is now a matter of evaluating what is 
the best use of municipal resources to help out and fill in the gaps. 
 

6. Discussion: Grant and Educational Opportunities 

6.1 CSH Supportive Housing Institute – Deadline December 4          

There was a discussion of putting together a team of members of the Fidelity 

Committee, contributors or municipal staff to apply for the Supportive Housing 
Institute as well as who would be best suited to meet the requirements of the 
application.  

 
The commitment to the program was summarized; each team will need to 

commit to attending each meeting in Bedford, of which there are two per month for 
6 months.  

 

The Committee discussed the benefits of attending the institute and the 
valuable information and funding and grant opportunities which result.    

 
Ms. Andrews Parker indicated she would reach out to form a team from the Tri-

City Area and follow up with the Committee.  

 
6.2 SAMHSA Grant for the Benefit of Homeless Individuals – 

Deadline December 16  
 

 Ms. Farmer addressed the Committee regarding this grant opportunity which 

would offer funding for assistance to homeless individuals experiencing Substance 
Abuse Disorder. The grant offers up to $400,000 per year for a 5 year term. Ms. 

Farmer stated that the applicant is required to be registered with the NIH (National 
Institutes of Health) database as well as have integration with behavioral health and 
credentialed individuals overseeing a project director. The applicant would need to 

have all this infrastructure currently in place as there is not enough time prior to the 
deadline to start from the beginning to establish the necessary criteria. Ms. Farmer 

reported that, unfortunately, the organization which Home for All had identified as 
the best option was unable to take this on at the current time.  

01/02/2020

Page 141 of 247



DRAFT                                                                                                                Fidelity Committee TCMTF  
                                                                                                                                        November 14, 2019 

5 

 

 
There was a discussion in Committee regarding the perception that perhaps the 

Committee and municipalities are not doing enough. It was stated that often when 
it comes to these grants opportunities, Municipalities are looking for shovel-ready 

projects with a viable location within transportation routes, in which the zoning and 
codes already allow for the project scope. Alternately, tax credit applications for 
supportive housing or low income housing only come up once a year with a limited 

window for application and other criteria needing to fall into place.   
 

Ms. Andrews Parker suggested that as a piece to the Public Outreach and 
Education portion of the Master Plan, the Committee should map out the work which 
is already being done in the community to illustrate all the great things which are 

being done by varying organizations; who has which grants, what is coming in the 
future with grant applications, and which resources are currently available. It is not 

that the work is not being done, it just needs to be better broadcasted. 
 
Mr. Burns spoke about thinking outside the box with grant funding and 

potentially looking outside the traditional approaches at least for the short term. 
Potentially these short term fixes could translate into longer term programs. 

 
Ms. Andrews Parker stated that the Fidelity Committee could do a huge service 

by simply identifying the funds available and do the public engagement to source 
the programs and services which can utilize these available funds.     

 

Chairman Hutchinson referenced the assertion from Allan Krans (Dover Housing 
Authority) at the previous meeting that there is a State statute which allows for 

Cities to use impact fees to help fund affordable/low income housing. Mr. Krans had 
stated he did not know of instances where this use had been applied in NH, but it 
was something the Cities could investigate. Chairman Hutchinson and Mayor 

McCarley reported that the decision on Impact Fees would be coming back before 
the Rochester Council in the upcoming months, and this was a use which could be 

looked into further.  
  

7.  Strategy for December, 2019 meeting  

  Ms. Andrews Parker suggested the December meeting be a workshop in which 

the Committee and contributors map out services currently available. She stated 
that if there was a clearer understanding of what was currently available and which 

programs were already funded and handling certain services as well as identifying 
funding sources and projects, the Committee would better know where there focus 

needed to be and would not duplicate work. This would also serve to inform the 
public and other organizations when they request information on what is needed and 
what gaps needed to be filled. 

 
The Meeting will be a working meeting with all those present forming groups to 

workshop the services and resources available for particular strategies included in 
the Master Plan.  

 

01/02/2020

Page 142 of 247



DRAFT                                                                                                                Fidelity Committee TCMTF  
                                                                                                                                        November 14, 2019 

6 

 

Mayor McCarley suggested sending out an email to the Committee distribution 
list soliciting a brief synopsis outlining the services offered by the organizations and 

non-profits in which these members are involved.   
 

The meeting will take place on December 12, 2019 at 6:00 PM most like 
at CAP in Dover, with the definitive location to be announced in the 
upcoming week. 

 
8. Other 

Mr. Marsh related that he had seen an uptick in homeless singles without 

dependents looking for shelter. Mr. Marsh said that welfare is having an increasingly 
difficult time placing these individuals. There is no space to shelter these individuals, 

and for the time being some shelters and organizations have offered floor space just 
to get people out of the cold overnight. The local welfare departments are having to 
look outside their regular areas to get people sheltered.   

 
There was a discussion in Committee regarding the Homeless Shelter of 

Strafford County and the barriers to placing homeless individuals at this locations; 
there are nightly fees and the facility is not an emergency or walk-in shelter. The 
facility requires that those sheltered there are committing to their program. It was 

stated that the shelter is not currently full, but it is difficult to get homeless 
individuals admitted.  

 
Barbara Holstein reported that she had heard the Salvation Army was no longer 

serving food. Ms. Andrews Parker spoke about this type of information being related 

to the work of the upcoming workshop meeting; sourcing information on what 
services are needed and what is already being done so if organizations come forward 

wanting to help they can be directed toward the greatest need.  
 

9. Closing Public Input 

Ashley Desrochers, Strafford County Public Health Network, referenced the 

recent lead poisoning seminar which was hosted for landlords and homeowners. She 
spoke about the potential correlation between the lead paint issue and loss of 
housing or unsafe housing. Ms. Desrochers gave information on how to get involved 

with the committees relating to lead safety.      
 

10. Adjournment 

Betsey Andrews Parker MOVED to ADJOURN the Fidelity Committee meeting 
at 7:37 PM. Todd Marsh seconded the motion. The MOTION CARRIED by a 
unanimous voice vote.  

 

Respectfully Submitted, 

Cassie Givara 
Deputy City Clerk, Rochester  

01/02/2020

Page 143 of 247



facts and the Importance of Law Enforcement Assisted Diversion (LEAD)

Submitted by John Burns

Law Enforcement Assisted Diversion program started in Seattle in 2011and now operates in 38 cities
and towns with 22 more in the development or launch phase. The program is not run by the police it is

a partnership that is ongoing which involves 15 agencies including corrections,probation and County
Attorney's office who all are in suDDort of alone with Dover and Farmington Police.
Chief Toussaint was right,homelessness,poverty and substance use disorders should not be a police
issue, they should be handled by case management where they can may have a shot at legitimate and
useful evidence-based supports. This is why people are diverted to case management by outside
agencies rather then handcuffs and iails which are far more exDensive and well documented as

We often hear we cannot arrest our way out of this then we hear directives that people need
"accountability" of incarceration. Incarceration has never been an evidence- based approach to
substance use disorder or homelessness. Programs such as LEAD have been through rigorous peer
reviewed research that shows it is evidence based. Do we want oeoole cvcling through iails and our
criminal justice system or do we want them to have an opportunity to get well?

Chief Toussaint mentioned victims. All diversions in LEAD are crimes without a victim with the exception
of cases where there could be a theft, the only way those petty crimes can be diverted is with victim
consent and agreement. Patrolmen have discretion to divert and then if there is a victim the victim has
discretion. Violent crimes, sex crimes,domestic violence and DWI are not eligible. Police departments
may be thin in some communities and that's why this is a sensible and pragmatic solution. Case
management is handled by outside agencies, such as SOS, the program reduces recidivism and the
extent of "police monitoring" is having a representative attending operations work group meetings
which are held monthly for one hour to do a case review for both Dover and Farmington. There is also a
quarterly policy work-group so all the infrastructure work is completed. The requirement is participants
have a case management assessment within 2 weeks and so far we've had 14 diversions with 100%
compliance. It they didn't do the assessment the charges would be pressed. That hasn't happened.
Further we now have community contact referrals. We are hearing a lot about bail reform complaints.
Those individuals are ideal for that as we can help work with them to get to court since it's hard when
homeless to find transporation,hold onto paperwork and remember. People need help not a broken
svstem.

This program has existed since 2011and has had peer reviewed evidence based studies on it. That
research showed in Seattle participants in LEAD were 58% less likely to be re-arrested and had a 38%
decrease in nights unsheltered along with a 32% drop in emergency room visits then those not enrolled.
That tells us less of a strain on thin police departments and less taxpayer dollars being spent on jails
courts,drug courts and post arrest diversion programs. Another study showed up to $2100 reduction
per person in LEAD for start to finish case management. Whereas non-lead participant costs rose over
$5000 on average per individual during that time frame. The program is operating in 38 cities and towns
It is recognized by both SAMHSA and the Dept of Justice and now being written into grants specifically.
It's been implemented.

01/02/2020

Page 144 of 247



 

 

 
 

Intentionally 
left blank… 

City Clerk’s Office 

 

01/02/2020

Page 145 of 247



  
 

Fidelity Committee  
of the  

Tri-City Joint Mayors’ Task Force on Homelessness 
Community Action Partnership of Strafford County 

577 Central Avenue, Suite 10, Dover NH 03820 

December 12, 2019 
6:00 PM 

 
 MAYORS  
 Mayor Caroline McCarley  
 Mayor Karen Weston  
 Mayor Dana Hilliard  
   

Rochester Members Dover Members  Somersworth Members 
Jeremy Hutchinson 

(Chairman) 
 

Charles Reynolds Todd Marsh 
(Vice Chair) 

Barbara Holstein 
 

Betsey Andrews Parker Dina Gagnon 
 
 

Workshop Meeting Summary  

 
Members Absent:     

 Jeremy Hutchinson 

 Dina Gagnon 

 
Introduction: 

 Vice Chairperson Marsh reviewed the history and purpose of the Fidelity committee, including its 
charge to make recommendations based on the approved Master Plan.  
 

 Vice Chairperson Marsh reported the following: The City of Rochester has developed an “Inclement 
Weather Special Event Permit” which will provide greater flexibility for property owners to use a 
structure, whose primary use is for something other than sheltering activities, for warming center 
services, for a limited number of persons while the permit is valid.  The structure will be inspected by 
the Rochester Fire Chief or his/her designee, who will also determine number of occupants allowable.  
Permits can be applied for as early as tomorrow.   The permit has been provided to the Cities of Dover 
and Somersworth for their review and consideration for use to assist their residents as well.   This 
important and potentially lifesaving action as developed is a flexible response and works within the 
legal restrictions of the law. The challenges of unaffordable housing, substance misuse, and other life 
difficulties still exist, but this is an action that likely would not have been taken without public 
awareness and leadership from the Tri-City Mayors.  More detailed information regarding the permit 
process can be obtained through the Rochester City Manager’s office.    

 

 

nSOMERSWORTH

01/02/2020

Page 146 of 247

https://www.google.com/url?sa=i&rct=j&q=&esrc=s&source=images&cd=&cad=rja&uact=8&ved=2ahUKEwj05c340KbcAhVhkuAKHUB0AqMQjRx6BAgBEAU&url=https://jgpr.net/2017/08/11/rochester-first-chief-information-officer/&psig=AOvVaw1ejO4bnm0oZu7ZT3n-2zJK&ust=1531933981589776
https://www.google.com/url?sa=i&rct=j&q=&esrc=s&source=images&cd=&cad=rja&uact=8&ved=2ahUKEwiL0t7p0KbcAhXwmeAKHUBVCBEQjRx6BAgBEAU&url=https://www.nhliving.com/towns/dover/&psig=AOvVaw2Vut1hXGa0lviflGEFe5Rx&ust=1531933946541828
https://www.google.com/url?sa=i&rct=j&q=&esrc=s&source=images&cd=&cad=rja&uact=8&ved=2ahUKEwjv2cnR0KbcAhWHmOAKHUhfD0wQjRx6BAgBEAU&url=http://somersworthnh.patriotproperties.com/&psig=AOvVaw1yaaBw5S9V3DW5N-xR_TLW&ust=1531933885763241


 

 

 
  

  
  

  
 

 

 
 

 

 

 
  

  

  
    
      
     
    
 
 
 

and Betsey Andrews Parker, Dover member
Cassie Givara on behalf of Todd Marsh, Vice Chair

Respectfully Submitted,

Adjournment at 8:06PM

Adjournment

Center Room.

Next Regular Fidelity Committee Meeting Thursday January 9th, 2020 Somersworth Middle School, Media 

  Fidelity Committee meeting.
  There was no formal vote taken at this workshop on recommendations; to be discussed at the next
  recommendations. (See Addendum A: Master Plan worksheet submitted by Betsey Andrew Parker).
  urgent goals and recommendations, including emergency housing and longer term goals and
  potential formal recommendations.  The committee discussed the importance of short term more

 The Fidelity Committee, with input from the public present, reviewed the Master Plan and identified
Determine next steps/recommendations
Small Group Work: Identify what is currently happening and identify where gaps exist. 

01/02/2020

Page 147 of 247



  

 

Narrative: Temporary seasonal winter shelters are a starting point to transition the homeless to permanent shelters with additional 

resources, transitional housing, and then finally to permanent housing. Emergency shelters provide individuals, families, and youth 

with a safe place to stay in the winter months, allow social service agencies time to connect individuals with services, meet 

municipality’s legal obligations and create long term strategies for permanent housing placement.  

Recommended Actions  Tentative 

Starting 

Implementation 

Timeline* 

 

Challenge to 

Implementation 

 

Success 

Measurement* 

 

1. Clarify a warming center 

verses shelter 

Immediate 

 

Recommend definitions 

 Unified definition 

 Clarify what it means 

to each municipality  

 Formal communication to area 

agencies, government leaders, 

media 

 Seeking documentation from 

community of their warming 

center v shelter definitions. 

 Recommended the following 

definition of warming center: 

facility open set times provides 

place for people to sit, have 

warm/cold drink, charge phone, 

hygiene services open on a 

regular basis and be open 

overnight when a temperature 

triggers opening. 

 Recommend the following 

definition for a shelter place to 

sleep, hygiene, basic services. 

2. Communicate strategy to 

opening warming centers  

Immediate 

 
 Each municipality 

may have different 

strategy 

 Formal communication to area 

agencies, government leaders, media 

Strategy #1 – Create Seasonal Cold Weather Shelter

Pages 3 - 23
12, 2019
Committee Dec. 
Fidelity 
ADDENDUM A 

01/02/2020

Page 148 of 247



 Recommend: dedicated page on city 

websites, social media, establish in 

advance to help navigate.  

3. Determine the 

climate/weather/conditions 

required to open warming 

centers and temporary 

emergency winter shelters 

Immediate 

 
 Not a consistent 

threshold or agreement 

across municipalities 

 Agreement on the 

climate/weather/conditions to open  

 Cities open warming shelters.  

 Mutual aid emergency shelter at 

County. 

 Seek clarification from communities 

for triggers to open warming centers. 

 Recommended trigger 32 degrees or 

other extreme weather circumstances.  

 Recommend keep the warming 

centers open 24 hours during the 

weather emergencies; leverage 

volunteers. 

4. Fund seasonal winter 

shelters 

FY 20 budget adoption 

Not complete 
 Limited funding 

 Multiple requests from 

various agencies, 

including existing 

shelters 

 Resource reallocation 

 Site control/zoning 

 funding 

 experienced operator 

community 

support/volunteers 

 limited space 

 Not enough time to 

make operational until 

winter 2019 

 Additional funding allocated to 

seasonal winter shelter 

 100 additional bed capacity available 

during the winter for shelter 

 Barriers to zoning addressed before 

Winter 2019/2020  

 Permit process established for 

temporary emergency shelters at city 

level.  

 Two cities looking at city owned 

properties for shelter options 

 Dover and Rochester budgeted $20k 

for emergency shelter. Further 

clarification needed on what this pays 

for and who it will pay. 

01/02/2020

Page 149 of 247



 Additional funding 

without reducing 

funding to existing 

moderate and lower 

barrier shelters. 

 Determine the capacity for center v 

shelters. 

 Recommend all communities fund to 

support winter shelter activities. 

 

Challenges being addressed 

Limited bed space at established shelters 

Need for safe, cold weather shelter with low barrier for entry 

Creating a diversion from sleeping in the street, City-owned land, and other places not meant for human habitation 

Possible Collaborating Entities Possible Funding Sources 

Municipal EMD, Inspection Services, Planning boards 

and city councils 

Municipal 

Social service agencies County 

Faith based  Foundation 

 Donations 

 Grants 

  

 

 

  

01/02/2020

Page 150 of 247



Strategy #2- Create Affordable Housing for all 

 

Narrative:  Increase the availability and accessibility of both affordable, safe/stable and homeless housing through a combination of 

land use policy changes and subsidies for permanent and transitional housing development.  

Recommended Actions 

by 

Priority 

 

Tentative 

Starting 

Implementation 

Timeline* 

 

Challenge to 

Implementation 

 

Success 

Measurement* 

 

1. Commit to review 

barriers and 

opportunities in 

zoning and planning 

Summer/Fall 

2019 
 Existing ordinances 

 Community perception 

 Legal restrictions/ 

requirements 

 Green space vs housing 

space 

 Density 

 Parking 

 Multi-use 

2. Conduct Regional 

Planning 

Spring/Summer 

2019 
 Single municipal 

approach vs a 

collaborative 

communication Tri City 

approach  

 Need to engage 

planning, welfare and 

conservation 

 Securing joint municipal 

funding for agreed 

housing initiatives 

 Ongoing agenda item on municipal agenda 

 Engage SRPC 

 Engage workforce housing coalition 

 Survey community perceptions and invite input 

 Annual Joint board meetings of board related to 

land-use 

 Consideration of access to green space (health) and 

hazard resilience (safety) in design of affordable 

housing 

3. Make an investment 

in Affordable 

Housing 

 Spring 2019 

(Timeline 

can be 

lengthy so 

not 

 Engage landlords and 

developers 

 Coordinate funding for a 

coordinated system 

 Partner with Greater 

Seacoast Coalition to 

 Leverage municipal funds to leverage new funds 

(i.e. site prep work, etc?) 

 Municipalities successfully implementing property 

tax credit program 

 New units available 

01/02/2020

Page 151 of 247



immediately 

addressed 

 

End Homelessness to 

adapt and implement 

possible property tax 

credit program designed 

to incentivize landlords 

to keep units under 

market rate, accept 

tenants holding Housing 

Choice Vouchers, and/or 

work with local shelters 

to move those 

experiencing 

homelessness into 

permanent housing 

4. Analyze 

opportunities for 

mixed income 

affordable housing 

Spring 2020  Private developers 

need incentives to 

include affordable 

housing 

 NIMBY concerns 

from public 

 Density bonuses for including affordable units in 

multi-unit housing developments 

 Tax credit incentives for including affordable 

units in multi-unit housing developments 

 Affordable unit percentage requirements for 

multi-unit housing developments 

Challenges being addressed: 

Lack of affordable housing contributes to homelessness across all walks of life and reduces ability to escape poverty and 

homelessness.  Lack of affordable housing limits options for an aging population, leading some into eviction or foreclosure, and it 

also prevents younger residents from staying in New Hampshire or moving here.   

 

Affordable housing is both a solution to existing homelessness and a form of prevention to avoid those at risk of homelessness losing 

their housing.  

 

In addition, we need to be prepared for the future, thinking about climate change and hazard resilience.  We need to be sure that we're 

not looking to build affordable housing in marginal lands that are going to be at most risk for extreme events in the future.  We also 

need to be looking at where existing housing is and whether or not our lowest income communities are already vulnerable in their 

current states. 

 

01/02/2020

Page 152 of 247



Possible Collaborating Entities Possible Funding Sources 

Workforce Housing Coalition HUD/other federal grants 

SRPC State and/or local CDBG funds 

Coastal Risks and Hazards Commission Municipal funds 

Planning Boards Private foundation funds (may require non-profit partner as applicant) 

NH Department of Health and Human 

Services, Bureau of Elderly and Adult 

Services and the NH State Plan on Aging 

Planning Committee 

 

Community Development staff  

The Housing Partnership  

Community Action Partnership of Strafford 

County 

 

Homeless Coalition of the Greater Seacoast  

NH Listens / Rochester Listens  

 

  

01/02/2020

Page 153 of 247



 

Strategy #3- Increase Homeless Prevention, Rapid Rehousing, and Supportive Housing Programs 

 

Narrative: Helping households maintain their housing is less costly and more effective than helping households obtain housing 

after they become homeless. Reducing homelessness requires effective strategies to decrease the number of families and individuals 

who lose their housing and become homeless. 

 

Recommended Actions 

by 

Priority 

 

Tentative 

Starting 

Implementation 

Timeline* 

 

Challenge to 

Implementation 

 

Success 

Measurement* 

 

1. Prevent evictions by 

expanding short-

term rental 

assistance for 

person(s) on a fixed 

income 

Immediate 

Completed 
 Funding reduction 

 

 Reduced # of evictions 

 Nonprofit outreach to landlords and clients 

 Rapid Rehousing $ pending with NOFA 

award for increase in funding via CAPSC 

 Additional funding in state budget for 

prevention, eviction and youth homeless 

prevention.  RFP will come from State of 

NH. 

 Municipalities endorsed and have capacity 

to assist with eviction/prevention (rent, 

security deposit). 

 Non-profits partner with cities to assist with  

 Client Training 

 Landlord training 

 Financial support 

 Case Management 

 SEE THE GRID 

2. Endorse and 

promote landlord 

education for 

eviction prevention 

Immediate/ongoing 

Ongoing but 

completed 

 Assists landlords with 

identifying red flags earlier 

 Earlier interventions to reduce evictions 

 Landlords feel supported, empowered and 

confident  

01/02/2020

Page 154 of 247



 Provides landlords with 

information on available 

resources 

 Home for All- quarterly meetings, landlord 

education, programs for landlord 

incentives, ask Paige for detail. 

 Recommendation to assist with promotion 

of these efforts to educate about services. 

 Recommend sending education with tax 

bills, water bills. 

 Recommend promoting resources on Public 

Access TV. 

3. Support a 

centralized 

navigation to 

assistance eviction 

prevention system 

for both landlords 

and at risk tenants 

Summer 2019  Provides landlords and at-

risk tenants a clear way to 

access supports and services 

to prevent evictions  

 Access to centralized system 

 Reduced number of evictions 

 Recognition of willingness to address this 

and technology is not clear on how to do 

 Recommendation similar resource to 

landlords that Portsmouth offers which is to 

call Welfare if client behind in rent. 

 Recommend to direct landlords to 211, 

welfare and CAP identify existing resource 

as the central point of contact for landlords 

to contact if behind in rent, utilities, etc.  

4. Provide a long-term 

case managed rental 

subsidy program for 

individuals on a path 

to gainful 

employment 

  Willing landlords 

 Tight housing market/low 

vacancy 

 Clients with bad referrals 

 Expand the residential utility assistance and 

security deposit programs to cover 

individuals and families that fall into the 

gap for services. 

 Reduced evictions 

 Increased # of landlord participation 

5. Expand an array of 

homeless prevention 

services for 

homeless families 

  Funding 

 Individual family 

circumstances 

 

 Reduced # people in shelters 

 Reduced number of people in precarious 

housing situations (tents/cars/ couch 

surfing) 

 

01/02/2020

Page 155 of 247



6. Promote criminal 

record clearing 

clinic and 

expungements to 

reduce barriers for 

housing  

  Costs to clear records 

 Qualified attorneys 

 Funding or pro bono 

 # of records cleared 

 # of housing obtained 

 # jobs obtained 

7. Financial record 

clearing 

  Costs to clear records 

 Qualified attorneys 

 Funding or pro bono 

 # of records cleared 

 # of housing obtained 

 # jobs obtained 

 

8. Municipal review of 

City staff 

involvement in 

eviction proceedings 

  Municipal code challenges  Reduced evictions 

9. Increased awareness 

of and access to 

legal aid for low 

income families 

  Costs to increase awareness 

 Qualified attorneys 

 

 Reduced evictions 

10. Weatherization of 

rental units and 

affordable housing 

to decrease energy 

costs 

 

  Costs of weatherization  Utility cost saving 

 Reduced displacement due to housing 

condition  

11. Support local 

welfare, including 

local access, case 

management and 

flexible decision 

making to reduce 

eviction and 

homelessness  

 

Immediate  Municipal officials 

understanding of local 

welfare laws, including 

humanitarian purpose 

 Potential initial increased 

costs 

 Reduced evictions 

 Maximum self sufficiency 

 Local and operation hours accessibility 

resulting in   maximum emergency 

prevention and minimum transportation 

challenges to local welfare services, 

including homeless emergencies    

01/02/2020

Page 156 of 247



Challenges being addressed 

Stabilize households prior to them becoming homeless 

Promote individuals in becoming self-sufficient 

Reduce evictions for those unable to sustain a rent increase 

Landlords do not have resources to assist tenants who might be in challenging situations (i.e. starting to get behind in rent), 

educational resources might help with warning signs, red flags where landlord might encourage tenant to contact social services (i.e. 

one month rent is easier to support than dealing with three months back rent and/or eviction).   

    

    

Possible Collaborating Entities Possible Funding Sources 

Workforce Housing Coalition  

Developers  

New Hampshire Legal Assistance (Housing 

Justice Program) 

 

Seacoast Landlord Association  

Gift of Warmth  

 

  

01/02/2020

Page 157 of 247



 

Strategy #4 – Support Access to transportation 

 

Narrative:  Providing transportation services to the homeless population, and to those at risk of becoming homeless, is 

critical for access to healthcare, supportive services and employment. 

Recommended Actions by 

Priority 

 

Tentative 

Starting 

Implementation 

Timeline* 

 

Challenge to 

Implementation 

 

Success 

Measurement* 

 

Create database of current 

providers of transportation 

to the homeless population 

and those at risk of 

homelessness to identify 

and resolve gaps and 

overlap in service 

July 2019  Identifying all potential providers 

and their types & times of service 

 Funding to develop and maintain 

database 

 Identifying gaps in service (time 

& type) that “need” to be filled 

 Funding to pay for services that 

will cover the gaps 

 Completed database of providers 

 Identification of gaps and overlap 

 Expanded coverage for identified 

gaps 

 Elimination of redundant services 

Create database of current 

vehicles and support 

infrastructure that is 

available for transport of 

homeless populations.  

July 2019  Identifying all potential vehicles 

and their availability for use 

 Liability of use 

 Complete database of available 

fleet 

 Complete database of user 

infrastructure such us bus stops, 

sidewalks, etc. 

Connect the homeless to 

available programs such 

(e.g. Medicaid, VA, etc.) 

for access to qualifying 

transportation services 

Immediate  Identifying eligible users 

 Gathering and processing 

required info to achieve user 

eligibility   

 Identifying programs that provide 

transport service specific/certain 

populations  

 Increased # of individuals 

connected to federal and state 

programs that can offer 

transportation services to those 

individuals. 

 

Create database of current 

providers of transportation 

to the homeless population 

July 2019  Identifying all potential providers 

and their types & times of service 

 Completed database of providers 

 Identification of gaps and overlap 

01/02/2020

Page 158 of 247



and those at risk of 

homelessness to identify 

and resolve gaps and 

overlap in service 

 Funding to develop and maintain 

database 

 Identifying gaps in service (time 

& type) that need to be filled 

 Funding to pay for services that 

will cover the gaps 

 Expanded coverage for identified 

gaps 

 Elimination of redundant services 

Identify impediments 

(liability, funding, etc.) to 

the development of 

transportation services to 

the homeless and develop 

solutions 

Summer 2019  Gathering all relevant info from 

providers re restrictions/ 

limitations of service 

 Limitations of existing funding 

 

 

 Reduced impact from identified 

impediments 

Identify funding 

mechanisms that can 

support ongoing, and 

increased, service to 

homeless. 

Summer 2019  Time to research funding 

mechanisms 

 Ability/time to seek/prepare 

requests for funding 

 

 Database of existing funding 

sources 

 Identification of potential funding 

sources 

 Identification of opportunities to 

leverage funds 

Identify and modify land 

use practices that result in 

impediments to 

transportation to the 

homeless. 

Ongoing  Time to identify and evaluate 

local, county and state actions for 

their potential hindrance  

 Time to identify and evaluate 

local, county and state actions for 

their potential hindrance 

 Municipal actions (infrastructure, 

zoning, etc.) support reduction of 

identified impediments. 

 Increase in engagement by 

private sector re support of 

transportation to homeless 

population. 

 

    

Challenges being addressed 

Costs of services  

Financial support 

Coordination of services  

Land use practices, both public and private, that hinder access to transportation 

01/02/2020

Page 159 of 247



Availability of transportation 24/7/365 

Reaching homeless population to determine eligibility for services 

Governmental and private sector actions that fail to promote access to transportation services 

 

Possible Collaborating Entities Possible Funding Sources 

COAST Federal Transportation Programs 

Municipalities Federal Transportation Programs 

County Municipal Funding  

Strafford Regional Planning Commission  

VA  

DHHS/CTS  

NHDOT  

Homeless Shelters  

  

  

01/02/2020

Page 160 of 247



Strategy #5- Enhance access to quality healthcare, mental health and education 

 

Narrative:  Collaborate with community agencies to improve the health and safety of the homeless.  

Recommended Actions 

by 

Priority 

 

Tentative 

Starting 

Implementation 

Timeline* 

 

Challenge to 

Implementation 

 

Success 

Measurement* 

 

1. Participate in 

Community Care Team 

(CCT) meetings to 

coordinate services 

among providers 

ongoing  Resource allocation of staff time 

 

 Increased # of participants at CCT 

 Reduced homelessness 

2. Connect the homeless 

to Medicare/Medicare, 

Social Security, 

Disability benefits, 

Affordable Care Act 

Ongoing  Access to paperwork required 

for program certification 

 Transportation to appointments 

 Access to computers/ 

printers/photocopiers 

 # individuals connected to services 

 Reduce homelessness 

 

3. Work with social 

service providers to 

reduce barriers to 

healthcare, mental 

health and education 

services, including but 

not limited to re-zoning 

for service delivery, 

reduced rent/free space 

in unused municipal 

buildings, etc.   

Spring 2019  Zoning requirements differ in 

each city 

 Services to be provided 

 Support from leadership and 

community 

 

 Increase # of providers offering 

community-based services in partner 

locations 

 Reduced homelessness  

 

4. Assist homeless with 

access to vital records, 

including providing a 

fee waiver for verified 

Immediate  Access to 

computers/printers/photocopiers  

 Resource of time to help clients 

with accessing records 

 # agencies and welfare offering access to 

internet, copiers, etc.  

 Eliminating fees for vital record for 

homeless and low-income residents 

01/02/2020

Page 161 of 247



financial hardship 

housing situations 
 Wait time on phone with state 

and federal agencies 

 Clients must connect with a 

approved provider to verify 

hardship and need for fee 

waiver  

 

 Shortened length of homelessness 

 Homeless prevention 

 

5. Implement Cloud 

Based Systems to 

access vital records  

July 2019  Transportation to municipal 

offices/DMV 

 IT infrastructure at each city 

 Each municipality may not have 

capacity to implement 

 Budget 

 

 Clients can access records offsite 

 

6. Case managers at 

social service agencies 

July 2019 

 

 

 Workforce shortage 

 Funding does not allow for case 

management 

 Not enough funding/need to 

braid funding for positions 

 Increase case managers in Tri City area 

 Maximum self sufficiency 

 Homeless prevention 

 Shortened length of homelessness  

7. Increase access to 

affordable and quality 

food resources for 

health benefits 

ongoing  Cost of fresh food 

 Storage options 

 Ability to heat/cook fresh food 

 Food deserts, etc 

 Development of partnership with 

Seacoast Eat Local, food pantries, and 

other related orgs. 

8. Increase awareness and 

use of free and reduced 

lunch options for 

public school students 

(all three cities are 

experiencing high rates 

of unpaid lunch 

balances and lower 

Fall 2019  Awareness of sign ups 

 Confusion over forms 

 Stigma of sign up 

 Track unpaid school lunch accounts and 

numbers signed up for free and reduced 

lunches (reduction in unpaid expected, 

initial increase, then hopefully decrease 

in free/reduced sign ups). 

01/02/2020

Page 162 of 247



than past sign ups for 

free/reduced lunch) 

9. Assist homeless 

community members 

and advocates with 

camp clean up 

Immediate 

March 2019 
 Stigma 

 Zoning ordinances 

 Sharps containers 

 Access to camps 

 Where to place garbage 

 Agencies/advocates permitted to use 

waste facilities for disposal 

 Medical waste disposal secured 

 Agencies/Advocates not penalized for 

helping homeless camp sites 

Challenges being addressed 

 Educate and inform all individuals and families of services 

 Increase access to services in the community where people reside to eliminate transportation barriers 

 Increased collaboration among agencies at CCT 

 Eliminate barrier of cost for vital records 

Possible Collaborating Entities Possible Funding Sources 

Wentworth Douglas Hospital Municipal funding- CIP for infrastructure improvements 

Frisbie Memorial Hospital Federal grants 

Greater Seacoast Community Health Center 

(formally Avis Goodwin and Families First) 

 

Community Partners  

Seacoast Mental Health  

NH Department of Health and Human 

Services District Offices 

 

Seacoast Eat Local  

Relief Parenting 

(https://www.reliefparenting.com/)  

 

New Hampshire Women’s Foundation  

 

 

  

01/02/2020

Page 163 of 247

https://www.reliefparenting.com/


Strategy #6- Support efforts to decrease Substance Use Disorder and increase prevention 

 

Narrative:  

Recommended Actions 

by 

Priority 

 

Tentative 

Starting 

Implementation 

Timeline* 

 

Challenge to 

Implementation 

 

Success 

Measurement* 

 

1. Develop respite and 

recovery housing 

Immediate  Lack of access to respite 

care 

 Overcome capital funding 

needs to create short term 

respite care 

 Code enforcement and 

zoning barriers 

 Increasing percentage of individuals with SUD 

and mental health issues with access to respite 

care 

 Longer sustained recovery rates 

 Reduced hospitalization and reduced 

incarceration rates 

2. Create LEAD (Law 

Enforcement 

Assistance Diversion) 

programs in each 

community 

July 2019  Personnel Resources 

 Funding 

 Policies and Procedures 

 Decrease number of individuals sentenced  

 Increase number of individuals diverted to 

treatment 

 Clarify cost of SUD to municipalities 

3. Reduce barriers that 

prohibit 

development/ 

placement of 

substance use 

services/recovery 

July 2019  Define data so they are 

consistent across 

municipalities 

 Data to be collected 

 Define how this data will 

be used 

 Increase treatment, recovery housing and respite 

recovery center beds by a minimum of 25 

 Increase homeless transitional housing beds by a 

minimum of 100 

 Increase agencies providing day out services for 

recovery 

01/02/2020

Page 164 of 247



4. Enhance recovery-

friendly workplace 

initiative  

Immediate  Lack of job training 

programs for trades 

 Lack of use of current 

vocational schools 

 Ban the box 

 Reduce  stigma  

 Increase employer 

education 

 Increase employee 

Education  

 Increase in employed individuals struggling SUD 

 

 Increase in training programs  

 

 Increase workplace cultures with reduced stigma 

 

5. Municipalities are 

“Recovery Friendly 

Workplaces” 

Fall 2019  “Ban the box” initiative- 

will this conflict with 

insurance carriers 

 Recovery Friendly Workplace designation 

(partnership with local Chambers of Commerce) 

6. Partner with 

Wentworth-Douglass 

as the regional 

funded HUB for 

single point of entry 

into SUD treatment 

system 

Immediate  Development of increased 

spokes 

 Development of stronger 

spokes 

 Increased access to recovery and healthcare 

services  

 Increased communication between service 

providers  

7. Support access to 

affordable health care 

 

 

Immediate 

 

 

 Is the City providing these 

services to model good 

practice? 

 Transportation 

 Cost of insurance/ 

medication 

 Qualified providers 

 

 More individuals accessing medical care in non-

Emergency Room settings 

 More individuals accessing mental health care 

and treatment 

 Reduced costs to hospitals and municipalities 

8. -Assist with funding 

“spoke” services that 

will ultimately serve 

  Funding  

01/02/2020

Page 165 of 247



those entering the 

HUB 

 

 Lack of effective co-

occurring disorders 

services 

9. Community Action 

awareness day July 2019 
 Define what services are 

promoted  

 Perception  of community  

 Information on services promoted in the 

community 

 Education about SUD widely available 

 Reduction in NIMBY 

Challenges being addressed 

The lack of transitional or respite housing means that individuals are coming out of detox, out of incarceration without proper 

supports to maintain recovery and get themselves into a stable situation. 

There are not sufficient SUD treatment providers; we need to promote area provider services- use the Pro Business Model for SUD  

Cost of municipal expenses needs to be visible so that it becomes clear that providing housing and recovery services is a net decrease 

in expenditures for municipalities in the longer-term. 

 

Possible Collaborating Entities Possible Funding Sources 

Municipalities 

Police Departments 

CSBG 

Chambers of Commerce (recovery friendly 

workplaces, ban the box, etc) 

DEA 

 City Budget Line Item 

 

 

 

 

  

01/02/2020

Page 166 of 247



 

Strategy #7- Engaging the Community to End Homelessness 

 

Narrative: Individuals within the communities can become more engaged and help (year round not just holidays).  Things like 

mentorship, job opportunities, big brother/big sister, etc, CAP grow an extra row, volunteering, donating items, helping with camp 

clean-ups, etc.  A strategy like this can also help to break down the walls of “us” and “them” and help communities prepare to 

understand why ordinance changes might be needed, etc.   

Recommended Actions 

by 

Priority 

 

Tentative 

Starting 

Implementation 

Timeline* 

 

Challenge to 

Implementation 

 

Success 

Measurement* 

 

1. Appointment of a 

small board to 

continue meeting 

quarterly to review 

progress jointly with 

city planners (or 

who ever is 

appointed lead for 

this for each city) – 

see Manchester plan 

for model of how 

steering committee 

set up (others too).   

Immediate  Continuing 

involvement 

community 

volunteers 

An ongoing and engaged task force that informs 

municipalities on progress, and promotes continued 

accountability 

2. Community 

outreach campaigns 

(i/e through NH 

Listens, etc) – 

around 

homelessness/ 

Immediate/Ongoing 

 

 

 Coordinating an 

outreach campaign 

 Identifying leadership to 

carry it out 

An engaged citizenry 

01/02/2020

Page 167 of 247



affordable housing, 

etc 

3. Create mechanisms 

for community 

education and input 

Immediately  Time  

 Resources 

 Childcare for meetings  

 Identifying leadership  

 Transportation  

Forum conducted (public input for plan) 

Listening sessions / community engagement forums 

though NH Listens, etc to begin to reduce the stigma 

Challenges being addressed 

Reducing NIMBY 

Generates support for municipal involvement/funding at the tax payer level 

Creates a stronger sense of community 

Possible Collaborating Entities Possible Funding Sources 

Greater Seacoast Coalition to End 

Homelessness 

Workforce Housing Coalition of the Greater 

Seacoast 

Local planning departments 

Local media 

 

United Ways 

NH Charitable Foundation 

Municipalities 

Leveraged support from partners 

  

 

01/02/2020

Page 168 of 247



 

 

 
 

Intentionally 
left blank… 

City Clerk’s Office 

 

01/02/2020

Page 2 of 247



 

Page 1 of 5 
  Public Safety Committee Minutes 
  December 18, 2019 

Public Safety Committee 

Council Chambers 

December 18, 2019 

7:00 PM 

 

 

MEMBERS PRESENT   MEMBERS ABSENT 

Councilor David Walker   Councilor Jeremy Hutchinson 

Councilor Robert Gates   MEMBERS ABSENT 

Councilor Geoffrey Hamann  Michael Bezanson, PE, City Engineer 

Councilor Peter Lachapelle  Dan Camara, GIS Asset Mgmt. Technician 

      Gary Boudreau, Deputy Police Chief 

      Mark Klose, Fire Chief 

   

Minutes 

 

Councilor Walker brought the meeting to order at 7:00 PM. 

 

1. Public Input 

 

          There were no members of the public present for public input. 

 

2. Nottingham Lane-Speed Limit (kept in committee) 

 

Councilor Walker summarized the issue.  Deputy Police Chief Boudreau said that 

the speed trailer was on Nottingham Lane for 7 days and there were 682 cars 

that traveled on it with the average speed being 17.52 and the 85th percentile 

being 19.85 mph, well under the speed limit.  The maximum speed was 44 mph 

that happened between 10 or 11 mph.  Councilor Lachapelle made a motion 

to deny a speed limit sign on Nottingham Lane.  The motion was seconded 

by Councilor Hamann.  Unanimous voice vote carried the motion.   

 

3. Granite Street/ William Allen School Traffic Issue 

 

Councilor Walker summarized the issue.  Deputy Chief Boudreau stated that last 

month a citizen came to the Public Safety Committee meeting with concerns that 

traffic was backing up on Granite Street and out onto Charles Street as parents 

waited to pick up their children from the William Allen School.  Deputy Chief 

Boudreau had assigned a School Resource Officer (SRO) to patrol the area 

during that pick-up time period and he stated that he had also observed the 

01/02/2020

Page 169 of 247



 

Page 2 of 5 
  Public Safety Committee Minutes 
  December 18, 2019 

situation himself on a few different occasions.  He said that traffic begins to back 

up at 2:30 PM for a 3:00 PM pick up time.  Kindergarten has a 2:15 PM pick up 

time and some parents stay in line until the 3:00 PM pick up. It backs up from the 

school, along Granite Street, and onto Charles Street.  Deputy Chief Boudreau 

said he had some discussions with the Legal Department; and, he stated that 

they have different viewpoints on issuing summons because Legal considers 

those vehicles to be waiting in traffic.  Deputy Chief Boudreau stated that it’s 

causing a problem on Charles Street.  The SRO has been out there moving the 

traffic along on Charles Street getting them into parking spaces because there is 

plenty of parking on Charles Street, but the vehicles are just staying in line.  He 

said this is creating a dangerous situation.  He said that RSA 265:69 talks about 

no stopping or standing, but it is not posted in the area; so, all they can enforce 

right now is no parking within 15 feet of a fire hydrant, within 20 feet of a 

crosswalk, or in front of a public or private driveway.  He said there is an option 

for changing the traffic pattern.  Deputy Chief Boudreau said he met with Mr. 

Bezanson and they talked about reversing the traffic pattern on Granite, so 

instead of going in Granite traffic would go out Granite Street.  Councilor Walker 

said that just moves the problem from Granite to Glen.  Deputy Chief Boudreau 

said the traffic would be moved to Sheridan Avenue and Catherine Street, but it 

would allow more cueing before spilling out to Charles Street.  Councilor Walker 

said the problem is an emergency vehicle cannot get down Granite Street.  He 

said he has a solution but it is not going to be a popular one.  Deputy Chief 

Boudreau said that he and Mr. Bezanson met with the School Department and 

presented the idea to have the traffic flow cue on Sheridan and Catherine instead 

of Granite Street.  The concern that the School Department has is the children 

are loaded and unloaded on the passenger side of the vehicle right now. If the 

traffic pattern is changed, that will change sides of the vehicle that children get in 

and out of and they were not comfortable with that idea.  Councilor Lachapelle 

said there is no easy solution.  Councilor Walker said there is an easy solution: 

“no parking” signs.  Signs could be posted for no parking during certain hours, 

such as 1 to 3 pm, Monday to Friday; there apparently is not as much of a 

problem with the morning drop off.   Councilor Lachapelle asked Mr. Bezanson 

when the next project meeting would be for the neighborhood.  Mr. Bezanson 

said in the springtime.  Councilor Hamann asked if the school has sent out any 

notices regarding the traffic issues; it might be mitigated with a quarterly 

reminder.    Councilor Gates asked how long this has been an issue.  Councilor 

Walker said that this is about the third time that the issue has come to this 

Committee.  The issue gets better and then it goes back to the old ways.     

Councilor Walker stated he would like to get a school representative in regarding 

01/02/2020

Page 170 of 247



 

Page 3 of 5 
  Public Safety Committee Minutes 
  December 18, 2019 

this issue.  This was kept in committee until a representative from the School 

Department can be present to discuss the issue.   

 

4.  E911 Update 

 

Councilor Walker summarized the issue.  Deputy Chief Boudreau said that they 

had a meeting and discussed the Rochester Neck Road Waste Management 

renumbering.  Waste Management is working with Deputy Fire Chief Wilder, as 

they own most of the frontage on the road except for maybe 3 parcels, which are 

owned by Pike Industries, Brox Industries, and the City of Dover.  Councilor 

Walker asked if the side streets were going to be renumbered and changed.  

Deputy Chief Boudreau said yes to Taylor Avenue and the condominiums.  

Councilor Lachapelle asked if the renumbering had to go through the City 

Council if it is a private road.  Deputy Chief Boudreau said he did not expect the 

private road renumbering to have to go to City Council.   

 

5. Emergency Management Update 

 

Councilor Walker summarized the issue.  Fire Chief Klose said it is cold outside 

and will be for the next 48 hours, and that you need to be prepared for it.  He said 

he is asking people to look at the ice forming on the roofs.  They had some 

issues where they had ice falling off a building and hit a gas line.  Make sure 

exhaust systems are exposed.  They hosted a cold weather training on Monday 

night at the Library, he said if you need services please dial 211; this number is 

for State assistance and is the number to use to help people find services.  If you 

have an emergency, please dial 911. 

 

6. Seasonal Cold Weather Shelter 

 

Councilor Walker summarized the issue.  Councilor Walker said that he believed 

that there was one opening up at Trinity Church. Fire Chief Klose said that they 

are working with them, that they have to apply for a special event permit and he 

said the City Manager emailed him today and that no one has applied for one as 

of yet.  They have one organization that has to pass it by their executive board to 

get permission.  They had to do this in 2017 as well; they are working on it.  Fire 

Chief Klose asked if they could change the agenda item name from “Seasonal 

Cold Weather Shelter” to “Cold Weather Warming Facility”; he said he thinks 

people are getting confused between what the County is doing and what the City 

is doing.  Councilor Walker said it originally was about the shelter and when they 

were going to get it opened.  He said he has no problem changing it. Fire Chief 

01/02/2020

Page 171 of 247



 

Page 4 of 5 
  Public Safety Committee Minutes 
  December 18, 2019 

Klose wanted to make sure the Committee knew where they stood next year for 

a seasonal weather shelter.    The 3 cities met with the County about three 

weeks ago and the County made it very clear that they were not going to have a 

cold weather shelter next year.  They are changing that portion of the facility they 

were using and making it into a substance abuse treatment center.  In order to 

get help from the County, the City’s Welfare Department has to go through all 

their services and they have to communicate with the Fire Department to see 

what they can do and work with the City Manager and say we have done 

everything at the city level.  That is where the special event permit came in, 

Trinity Church reached out the City.  Councilor Hamann just wanted it to be clear 

about the warming facilities that they are 100 percent volunteer operation groups 

like a church and an organization that can simply apply for the permit.  Fire Chief 

Klose said yes they using their staff and the County has over 100 trained 

volunteers; he stated that 37 from Rochester signed up.   Councilor Hamann said 

this is fantastic and that he would like it mentioned that this is not the City 

opening the shelter; so, when social media has all kinds of negativity it is a 

private entity and that any organization can apply for one of these permits.  Fire 

Chief Klose said that the City of Rochester is being watched at the state level; 

this partnership has never been done anywhere else and Rochester is leading 

the way on an issue once again.  He said they have been getting some negative 

feedback, but after it was explained at Monday night’s meeting people realized 

they had to start somewhere.   

 

7. Other 

 

 Crosswalk Lighting 

 

Councilor Walker said that an email came in regarding crosswalk lighting. There 

was a person at a Portland Street crosswalk jumping up and down so that the 

vehicles could see her.  The crosswalks are dark and should have some kind of 

lighting.  It is hard to see in the dark and it was hard to see this person in the 

crosswalk.  Councilor Walker stated he was hit in a crosswalk by the 103 on 

North Main Street and is not sure what can be done for lightning.  They have 

talked about this before.  Councilor Gates said it is really hard to see people at 

night especially when they are in dark clothing; it should be their responsibility as 

well. Deputy Chief Boudreau said that has been a problem and that they do have 

a responsibility to look both ways. You can’t just walk out there; motorists have to 

yield to pedestrians, but pedestrians can’t just walk out without looking. 

Pedestrians have to be responsible for their own safety as well.  Mr. Bezanson 

said that crosswalks at intersections should be lit with existing streetlights.  The 

01/02/2020

Page 172 of 247



 

Page 5 of 5 
  Public Safety Committee Minutes 
  December 18, 2019 

City just recently completed an LED upgrade project for all City streetlights, so 

none should be out, but DPW could check.  Councilor Walker said he didn’t think 

that it was a streetlight issue, but that the area of this crosswalk is just dark.  

Deputy Chief Boudreau looked through the book of statues and RSA 265:35 

Pedestrian’s Right of Way in Crosswalks, Section II states: no pedestrian shall 

suddenly leave a curb or other place of safety and walk or run into the path of a 

vehicle which is so close as to constitute an immediate hazard.  Deputy Chief 

Boudreau said motorists have a duty to stop, but pedestrians have a duty not to 

walk out in front of a vehicle.  This request was kept in committee to look into the 

particular issue further.   

 

Councilor Walker wanted to say to Councilor Hamann and Councilor Gates that it has 

been an honor to serve with them on the Public Safety Committee; it’s been fun and 

don’t be strangers and maybe we will see you around again on this Committee.  Thank 

you for your service and thank you for participating in the Public Safety Committee. 

 

Councilor Hamann made a motion to adjourn the meeting at 7:35 PM.  Councilor Gates 

seconded the motion.  The motion passed unanimously. 

 

Minutes respectfully submitted by Laura Miller, Secretary II.  

  

 

 

 

  

 

  

01/02/2020

Page 173 of 247



 

 

 
 

Intentionally 
left blank… 

City Clerk’s Office 

 

01/02/2020

Page 174 of 247



 

  1 of 3 
  Public Works and Building Committee 
  November 21, 2019 

Public Works and Buildings Committee 

Meeting Minutes 

December 9, 2019 7PM 

Council Chambers 

 

 

MEMBERS PRESENT 

Councilor Ralph Torr, Chairman 

Councilor Ray Varney- Vice Chairman 

Councilor David Walker 

MEMBERS ABSENT 

Councilor Geoffrey Hamann 

Councilor Sandy Keans 

OTHERS PRESENT 

Blaine M. Cox, City Manager 

Peter C. Nourse PE, Director of City Service 

Daniel Camara, GIS / Asset Management 

 

 

MINUTES 

Chairman Torr called the Public Works and Buildings Committee to order at 7:00 PM.   

1. FY20 CIP Playgrounds Project 

Mr. Nourse discussed the project and the bidding process. He stated that there several 

submissions that were reviewed and the company to be awarded to is Obrien.  He stated 

that Lauren Krans and Art Jacobs Recreation Department were here in support of the 

selection of Obrien as the vendor.  He stated that he and members of the Recreation 

Department had gone to several sites that were Obrien Projects in the area to look at the 

equipment.  Mr. Nourse also discussed the structures and the ADA accessibility.  He 

stated that these are quality structures and have been pre-approved the City’s insurance 

carrier, PrimexNH.  Lauren Krans stated that the Recreation Department liked the Obrien 

Companies designs and sited that it is important that they do not detract or overpower the 

landscape at the Common or Hanson Pine Park.  She explained many of the features 

incorporated and spoke highly of the sensory and educational elements within the design.  

Art Jacobs discussed the ground structure vs. the woodchips.  He stated this is much safer 

for children when they fall.  Mr. Jacobs stated that he had discussed Obrien with other 

recreation departments and they were all pleased with the construction projects and the 

equipment installed.  Councilor Varney asked if the Recreation Commission had seen the 

designs.  Ms. Krans confirmed that they had.   

01/02/2020

Page 175 of 247



 

  2 of 3 
  Public Works and Building Committee 
  November 21, 2019 

2. Approve minutes from the November 21, 2019 Public Works & Building Meeting.  

Chairman Torr requested comments or a recommendation on last month’s meeting.  

Councilor Walker made a motion to accept minutes as presented for the November 21, 

2019 Public Works & Building Committee meeting.  The motion was seconded by 

Councilor Varney.  The Motion passed unanimously 

3. Public Input -  

None  

4. DPW Facility 

Mr. Nourse stated that he had no further information but he put this on the agenda in 

order give the Councilors and opportunity to discuss and ask questions prior to voting on 

the 3.9 million dollar supplemental appropriation for the project.  Mr. Cox distributed a 

spreadsheet for informational purposes.  The spreadsheet showed the original 

construction cost estimate and what that would be now considering the construction cost 

index escalation.  The spreadsheet displayed the anticipated debt service cost.  He also 

discussed that the 50% general fund, 25% each water and sewer allocations has been 

looked at again and found to be appropriate.  Councilor Varney stated that the 4 million 

dollar impact to the debt schedule would be offset by the reduction of the approximately 

same amount due to additional state funding for the Vocational Center at the High 

School.  Councilor Varney asked if all large vehicles could be store inside.  Mr. Nourse 

Stated yes they would.  Councilor Varney asked about the cold weather impacts to 

vehicles and plowing operations.  Mr. Nourse stated this is an issue and described the 

process of bringing staff in to start vehicles ahead of storms.  He stated they are all 

plugged into block heaters and staff has had to warm them with salamander heater just to 

get them going in the extreme cold periods.  He discussed the impacts of the cold on 

hydraulics of the plow vehicles and the additives used in the fuel to keep the diesel from 

congealing.  Mr. Cox stated that he had Chief Assessor look at the current market value 

of the current DPW and that came back as $2.1million.   

5. Sidewalks FY21 CIP 

Mr. Nourse stated that this is the first opportunity to discuss the sidewalk reconstruction 

project plan for FY2020-2021.  He stated that Strafford Regional Planning had completed 

the sidewalk survey.  He displayed a graphic that showed a color coded map showing the 

sidewalks and their conditions.  Red indicating the sidewalks most in need.  Mr. Nourse 

stated he did not need any decision this evening but wanted to start the conversation.  

Councilor Varney suggested getting a list to all Councilors for the sidewalks that are in 

need of repair.  He suggested each Councilor would then be able to visit and assess the 

needs within their respective wards.  

6. Personnel 

Mr. Nourse stated that he thought it was important to let the City Council know that we 

are having staffing issues.  He stated that there are several reasons including our ability to 

provide competitive wages and work at home alternatives.  He stated the department has 

01/02/2020

Page 176 of 247



 

  3 of 3 
  Public Works and Building Committee 
  November 21, 2019 

recently lost three skilled Secretary II positions, a B&G Technician and a Light 

Equipment Operator all due to better wages.  He stated that he understood that this is not 

a unique situation, it is happening in several municipalities and when the economy is 

good private businesses have a better opportunity to compete for the skilled personnel.  

He said he is not suggesting that the City Council solve the issue as these positions are 

part of collective bargaining groups, but he thought it was important to let the Council 

know that there is an issue.  Mr. Nourse also discussed the vacant Assistant City Engineer 

Position.  He said that the need is great but the position has been vacant for over a year 

now.   

Mr. Nourse discussed the NHDOT Public Works Memorial and stated that he attended 

the dedication ceremony last spring and that since that time he has been working with the 

DOT to have a former Rochester employee name be added to the memorial.  He stated 

that currently there are 37 names etched into the memorial stone to commemorate 

municipal DPW employees that have died while on duty.  He stated that he is pleased that 

the State has approved the addition of Kenneth Guild from the Rochester DPW be added 

to the memorial.  Mr. Guild passed while performing his duties for the City of Rochester 

in 1981.  

7. Community Center DHHS Lease Extension 

Mr. Nourse stated that the State of NH has requested a two year extension to their lease at 

the Community Center.  This Agreement includes a 2.5% increase in the lease payments 

and He stated that the State of NH has made this request to allow additional time for them 

to find an alternate location for their offices.  Mr. Nourse explained that a vote of 

approval from the full city is required to complete the extension agreement and that this 

will be on the January agenda.  

8. Other 

Southeast Land Trust Water Department Conservation Properties – Mr. Nourse 

explained that the property transfers were nearly completed to the Southeast Land Trust 

Organization (SELT) and that the City owned parcels will be put in permanent 

conservation status, which in the end will reduce the escalating tax rates.  He stated that 

the Farmington properties had been in a “current use” status for years and that in recent 

years that had changed and the taxes had risen from minimal to more than $30,000 

annually.    

Councilor Walker made a motion to adjourn at 7:40 pm.  Councilor Varney seconded 

the motion.  The motion passed unanimously.  

  

Minutes respectfully submitted by Lisa J. Clark, City of Rochester Administration and 

Utility Billing Supervisor.    

01/02/2020

Page 177 of 247



 

 

 
 

Intentionally 
left blank… 

City Clerk’s Office 

 

01/02/2020

Page 178 of 247



Resolution Authorizing Amendment to Lease Agreement between the City and the 

Department of Health and Human Services (DHHS) 
 

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

ROCHESTER: 

 

That the City Manager is hereby authorized to agree to an Amendment to the Lease Agreement 

between the City and DHHS for space within the Community Center. The Amendment includes 

an extension of the lease until April 30, 2022 and a 2.5% increase in the cost for square foot of 

the rental payment, bringing the total revenue amount to Two Hundred Ninety Three Thousand 

Six Hundred and 04/100 Dollars ($293,600.04). 

 

To the extent not otherwise provided for in this Resolution, the Finance Director is hereby 

authorized to establish and/or designate such accounts and or account numbers as are necessary to 

implement the transactions contemplated in this Resolution.  

 
 

01/02/2020

Page 179 of 247



 

 

 
 

Intentionally 
left blank… 

City Clerk’s Office 

 

01/02/2020

Page 180 of 247



City of Rochester Formal Council Meeting 

AGENDA BILL 

NOTE: Agenda Bills are due by 10 AM on the Monday the week before the City Council Meeting. 

COMMITTEE SIGN-OFF 
COMMITTEE 

CHAIR PERSON 

DEPARTMENT APPROVALS 
DEPUTY CITY MANAGER 

CITY MANAGER 

FINANCE & BUDGET INFORMATION 
FINANCE OFFICE APPROVAL 

SOURCE OF FUNDS 

ACCOUNT NUMBER 

AMOUNT 

APPROPRIATION REQUIRED     YES       NO  

LEGAL AUTHORITY 

AGENDA SUBJECT 

COUNCIL ACTION ITEM 
INFORMATION ONLY  

FUNDING REQUIRED?   YES    NO 
* IF YES ATTACH A FUNDING RESOLUTION FORM

RESOLUTION REQUIRED?   YES    NO FUNDING RESOLUTION FORM?   YES    NO 

AGENDA DATE 

DEPT. HEAD SIGNATURE 

DATE SUBMITTED 

ATTACHMENTS         YES   NO  * IF YES, ENTER THE  TOTAL NUMBER OF
PAGES ATTACHED 

AB Form - revised 8/17/2016

1iSoGHESTER £
L-/-" -V

- 7K

r

01/02/2020

Page 181 of 247



SUMMARY STATEMENT 

RECOMMENDED ACTION 

AB Form - revised 8/17/2016

01/02/2020

Page 182 of 247



Resolution Granting Community Revitalization Tax Relief to the Property Located at 10 

South Main Street Under the Provisions of RSA 79-E in Connection with a Proposed 

Rehabilitation Project 

Be it Resolved by the Mayor and City Council of the City of Rochester, as follows: 

Whereas, in an effort to stimulate local economic development and enhance City downtowns 

and Town centers, the New Hampshire Legislature has enacted RSA Chapter 79-E, entitled 

“Community Revitalization Tax Relief Incentive”; and 

 

Whereas, the City of Rochester adopted the provisions of such Community Revitalization Tax 

Relief Incentive Program pursuant to RSA Chapter 79-E by Resolution of the City Council on 

October 7, 2008; and 

 

Whereas, the 10 South Main Street, LLC, owner of the so-called 10 South Main Street in 

downtown Rochester, is desirous of making use of the benefits of RSA Chapter 79-E and it has, 

therefore, proposed a substantial rehabilitation project with respect to the structure located upon 

the so-called 10 South Main Street; and  

 

Whereas, RSA Chapter 79-E requires that the governing body of the City of Rochester make 

certain findings and determinations with regard to a proposed substantial rehabilitation project in 

order for the structure to qualify for the RSA Chapter 79-E Community Revitalization Tax Relief 

Incentive; 

 

Now, Therefore, the Mayor and City Council of the City of Rochester, by adoption of this 

resolution, hereby make the following findings and determinations with respect to the proposed 

substantial rehabilitation proposal for the so-called 10 South Main Street property contemplated 

by the owner’s Community Revitalization Tax Relief Application dated December 16, 2019, to 

wit: 

 

 (1) Any tax relief under the provisions of RSA Chapter 79-E or this resolution that is to 

be accorded with respect to the so-called 10 South Main Street property project shall be accorded 

only after the property owner grants to the City a covenant pursuant to the provisions of RSA 79-

E:8 ensuring that the structure shall be maintained and used in a manner that furthers the public 

benefits for which the tax relief was granted and in accordance with the requirements of RSA 79-

E:8; and 

 

 (2) The Mayor and City Council find public benefits under RSA 79-E:7 in the proposed 

revitalization project proposed with respect to the so-called 10 South Main Street property 

project; and 

 

01/02/2020

Page 183 of 247



 (3) The proposed substantial rehabilitation project with respect to the aforesaid 10 South 

Main Street provides the following public benefits to downtown Rochester: 

 

 I.  It enhances the economic vitality of the downtown; 

  

II. It enhances and improves a structure that is culturally and historically important on a 

local level, within the context of the City’s Historic District and the City center in which 

the building is located; 

 

III. It promotes development of downtown Rochester, providing for efficiency, safety, 

and a greater sense of community, consistent with RSA 9-B; and 

 

IV. It increases the availability of residential housing in the urban center. 

 

 (4)  The specific public benefit is preserved through a covenant under RSA 79-E:8 if the 

project is implemented consistent with (a) the aforementioned application; (b) compliance with 

the recommendation to the City Council approved by the Community Development Committee 

on December 17, 2019; (c) the terms of this resolution; and (d) any other applicable requirements 

of Chapter 79-E; and 

 

 (5) The Mayor and City Council find that the proposed use is consistent with the City’s 

Master Plan and development regulations. 

 

Furthermore, as a result of making such determinations and findings, and subject to the owner’s 

compliance therewith, and with the provisions of RSA Chapter 79-E, the Mayor and City 

Council hereby grant the requested tax relief for a period of seven (7) years beginning with the 

completion of the substantial rehabilitation of the structure upon the so-called 10 South Main 

Street property.  

 

 

 

 

01/02/2020

Page 184 of 247



City of Rochester Formal Council Meeting 

AGENDA BILL 

NOTE: Agenda Bills are due by 10 AM on the Monday the week before the City Council Meeting. 

COMMITTEE SIGN-OFF 
COMMITTEE 

CHAIR PERSON 

DEPARTMENT APPROVALS 
DEPUTY CITY MANAGER 

CITY MANAGER 

FINANCE & BUDGET INFORMATION 
FINANCE OFFICE APPROVAL 

SOURCE OF FUNDS 

ACCOUNT NUMBER 

AMOUNT 

APPROPRIATION REQUIRED     YES       NO  

LEGAL AUTHORITY 

AGENDA SUBJECT 

COUNCIL ACTION ITEM 
INFORMATION ONLY  

FUNDING REQUIRED?   YES    NO 
* IF YES ATTACH A FUNDING RESOLUTION FORM

RESOLUTION REQUIRED?   YES    NO FUNDING RESOLUTION FORM?   YES    NO 

AGENDA DATE 

DEPT. HEAD SIGNATURE 

DATE SUBMITTED 

ATTACHMENTS         YES   NO  * IF YES, ENTER THE  TOTAL NUMBER OF
PAGES ATTACHED 

AB Form - revised 8/17/2016

1iSoGHESTER £
L-/-" -V

- 7K

r

01/02/2020

Page 185 of 247



SUMMARY STATEMENT 

RECOMMENDED ACTION 

AB Form - revised 8/17/2016

01/02/2020

Page 186 of 247



 

City of Rochester, New Hampshire 
Division of Community Development  
31 Wakefield Street, Rochester NH 03867 

(603) 335-7522 www.thinkrochester.biz  

 
 
 

Review Form: For RSA 79e Community Revitalization Tax Relief Incentive  

 

Building Name (if any): __Ainsley’s Drug Store_ 
 
Building Address: __ 10 North Main Street_____ 
Owner Name(s): ___ Keith Frizzell___________ 
Owner Address(es): _PO Box 310, Dover, NH__ 
03821__________________________________  
 

 
Map# ___120______ 
Lot# ____0392_____ 
Zoning: DTC_________________________ 
Overlay District: _Special Downtown___ 
Year Built __1881 _______ 
Square Footage of Building ___4,000__ 
 Contact Name: _Keith Frizzell_______________ 

 
Phone # __603-431-0400__________________ 
Email address: 
_k.frizzell@msprops.net____________________ 

Applicant Name(s) (if different from owner):  
__________SAME_________________________ 
Applicant Address: ________________________ 
Phone # ________________________________ 
Email address: ___________________________ 

 
 
 

Application Fee Paid: __x__ Yes _____No 
 
 Existing Uses (describe number of units by type and 

size )  
Is there a change of use associated with this project?  
___ Yes     x___ No  
If so, please describe:  
The second floor will change from office into 2 
residential units.  The third floor will become 2 one 
bedroom apartments replacing one apartment.  The 
first floor will reamain commercial.  
 
 
 
 

Is the building eligible or listed on the State or 
National Register of Historic Places or located in a 
Local, State, or Federal Historic District?   
Yes____x            No_____                
 
Provide historic district name:  
Ainsley’s Drug Store________ 
 
 
 Will the project include rehabilitation of residential 

units?  _x__ Yes     ___ No  
If yes, how many: ____4_________ 
If yes, please describe:  
The third floor apartment will be renovated to become 
to one bedroom apartments.  The second floor office 
space will be renovated to add 2 one bedroom 
apartments.   

Will the project involve affordable residential units?  
___ Yes     _x__ No 
 
If yes, please describe:  
 

Other Review & Comment (if necessary)  
 
Historic District Review:  approved on 12/11/19 
Special Downtown Review: __________ 
Minor Site Review:  Yes 
Planning Board Review: No 
Zoning Board of Adjustment: No 
 

Section 79:E-4 
 
Application Date: _12/23/2019______ 
Complete: Yes 
Staff Review: _12/24/2019_________  
City Council First Reading: 1/7/2020____ 
Post Public Hearing :no later than 1/10/2020_ 
Public Hearing Date:  _1/21/2020_________ 
*Required within 60 days of receipt of application 

City Council Second Reading _2/4/2020___ 
*Required within 45 days of Public Hearing 

 

mustau
ry4' CoyK s>\*r»]

01/02/2020

Page 187 of 247

http://www.thinkrochester.biz/


Does this application meet the appropriate tests? 
 

 
Is it a qualifying structure located in a designated downtown zone?  _x__Yes      ____No  

 
Pre-rehabilitation assessed value (from most recent City Assessment): $184, 700 
 
Total estimated cost of rehabilitation (from application):                          $300,000______ 
 
Percentage of rehabilitation costs to assessment valuation:                      _61.5__%  
 

 
Does the estimated cost of rehabilitation exceed 15% of pre-rehabilitation assessed valuation, or 
$75,000, whichever is lower?                       YES_____        NO______ 

Is there public benefit? Must satisfy at least 1 of the conditions below.  (Section 79-E:7) 
 
__X_ It enhances the economic vitality of the Downtown District. 
__X_ It enhances and improves a structure that is culturally or historically important on a local, 
regional, state, or national level, either independently or within the context of an historic district. 
___ It promotes development of municipal centers, providing for efficiency, safety, and a greater 
sense of community. 
__X_ It increases residential housing in urban or town centers.  
__X__ In a Local, State, or Federal Historic District?    
 

Are other funding programs being applied to this project? _____ Yes __X___ No 
 
Other Programs. – The provisions of this chapter shall not apply to properties whose 
rehabilitation or construction is subsidized by state or federal grants or funds that do not need to 
be repaid totaling more than 50 percent of construction costs from state or federal programs.  

 

 
ELIGIBILITY: Yes ___X_____     No _______ 
 
1) Substantial Rehabilitation Tax Relief Incentive (Up to 5 Years)   
                                                                                                       
2) Additional Tax Relief Incentive for New Residential Units (Up to 2 Years)  
 
3) Additional Tax Relief Incentive for Affordable Housing (Up to 4 Years)  
                                                                                                                              
4) Additional Tax Relief for rehabilitation of historic places* (Up to 4 Years)   

* Rehabilitation in accordance with the in accordance with Secretary of Interior’s Standards for 

Rehabilitation.  

 
 
__5__ 
 
__2__ 
 
_____ 
 
_____ 
 
__7__ 
(Total) 

 

 
Name & Title:  Jennifer Marsh, ED Specialist           Date: __12/30/19______ 

 
 
 

01/02/2020

Page 188 of 247



City Council Review/Decision 
 
Public Hearing Posting: ___________ Public Hearing Date: _________________ 
 
City Council Meeting Date: ___________________________________________ 
 
Does the City Council agree with findings of at least one Public Benefit? 

 Enhances economic vitality of the village ___Yes_____No  
 Enhances and improves a culturally or historically important 

structure?____Yes___No 
 Promotes development of the downtown, providing for efficiency, safety, and 

greater sense of community?___Yes___No 
 Increases residential housing units in downtown? ___Yes____No 

 

The Application was:  (  ) GRANTED      (  ) DENIED  

Substantial Rehabilitation Tax Relief 
Incentive granted for  (up to 5 years 
beginning with completion of rehab) 

Years 

Tax Relief Incentive for New 
Residential Units granted for (up to an 
additional 2 years, 4 years if 
affordable housing) 

Years 

Tax Relief Incentive for Rehabilitation 
of Historic Places in accordance with 
the U.S. Secretary of Interiors 
Standards for Rehabilitation for (up to 
additional 4 years)  

Years 

Total  Years 

 
IF DENIED, REASON(S) FOR DENIAL 
 
Number of Yea: _________  Number of Nay: ___________ 
 

Follow Up Letters Sent to:   
 Applicant/Owner 
 Assessing Department  
 Economic Development  
 Planning Department 
 City Manager’s Office  
 Finance Department   

 
COVENANTS 
Completed By: _________________________________________  Date: __________ 
Filed at Strafford County: _________________________________  Date: __________ 
Copies to:  

 Assessing Dept 
 Finance Dept 
 In File

01/02/2020

Page 189 of 247



The Standards (Department of the Interior regulations 36 CFR 67) pertain to all 
historic properties listed in or eligible for listing in the National Register of Historic 
Places. 

 
1) A property shall be used for its intended historic purpose or be placed in a new use that requires minimal 
change to the defining characteristics of the building and its site and environment. 
 
2) The historic character of a property shall be retained and preserved. The removal of historic materials or 
alteration of features and spaces that characterize a property shall be avoided. 
 
3) Each property shall be recognized as a physical record of its time, place, and use. Changes that create a 
false sense of historical development, such as adding conjectural features or architectural elements from 
other buildings, shall not be undertaken. 
 
4) Most properties change over time; those changes that have acquired historic significance in their own right 
shall be retained and preserved. 
 
5) Distinctive features, finishes, and construction techniques or examples of craftsmanship that characterize 
a historic property shall be preserved. 
 
6) Deteriorated historic features shall be repaired rather than replaced. Where the severity of deterioration 
requires replacement of a distinctive feature, the new feature shall match the old in design, color, texture, 
and other visual qualities and, where possible, materials. Replacement of missing features shall be 
substantiated by documentary, physical, or pictorial evidence.  
 
7) Chemical or physical treatments, such as sandblasting, that cause damage to historic materials shall not 
be used. The surface cleaning of structures, if appropriate, shall be undertaken using the gentlest means 
possible. 
 
8) Significant archeological resources affected by a project, shall be protected and preserved. If such 
resources must be disturbed, mitigation measures shall be undertaken. New additions, exterior alterations, or 
related new construction shall not destroy historic materials that characterize 
the property. The new work shall be differentiated from the old and shall be compatible with the massing, 
size, scale, and architectural features to protect the historic integrity of the property and its environment. 
 
10) New additions and adjacent or related new construction shall be undertaken in such a manner that if 
removed in the future, the essential form and integrity of the historic property and its environment would be 
unimpaired. 
 

Comments from Historic District Commission:  
 
 
 
 
 
 
Name & Title:  _____________________________________________  
 
Meeting Date: ______________ 
 
 

01/02/2020

Page 190 of 247



TITLE V 

TAXATION 

CHAPTER 79-E 

COMMUNITY REVITALIZATION TAX RELIEF INCENTIVE 

Section 79-E:1 

    79-E:1 Declaration of Public Benefit. –  

    I. It is declared to be a public benefit to enhance downtowns and town centers with respect to economic activity, 

cultural and historic character, sense of community, and in-town residential uses that contribute to economic and social 

vitality.  

    II. It is further declared to be a public benefit to encourage the rehabilitation of the many underutilized structures in 

urban and town centers as a means of encouraging growth of economic, residential, and municipal uses in a more 

compact pattern, in accordance with RSA 9-B.  

    II-a. In instances where a qualifying structure is determined to possess no significant historical, cultural, or 

architectural value and for which the governing body makes a specific finding that rehabilitation would not achieve one 

or more of the public benefits established in RSA 79-E:7 to the same degree as the replacement of the underutilized 

structure with a new structure, the tax relief incentives provided under this chapter may be extended to the replacement 

of an underutilized structure in accordance with the provisions of this chapter.  

    II-b. It is further declared to be a public benefit to encourage the rehabilitation of historic structures in a municipality 

by increasing energy efficiency in the preservation and reuse of existing building stock.  

    III. Short-term property assessment tax relief and a related covenant to protect public benefit as provided under this 

chapter are considered to provide a demonstrated public benefit if they encourage substantial rehabilitation and use of 

qualifying structures, or in certain cases, the replacement of a qualifying structure, as defined in this chapter.  

Source. 2006, 167:1. 2009, 200:3, 4, eff. July 15, 2009. 2013, 78:1, eff. April 1, 2013. 

Section 79-E:2 

    79-E:2 Definitions. – In this chapter:  

    I. "Historic structure'' means a building that is listed on or determined eligible for listing on the National Register of 

Historic Places or the state register of historic places.  

    II. "Qualifying structure'' means a building located in a district officially designated in a municipality's master plan, 

or by zoning ordinance, as a downtown, town center, central business district, or village center, or, where no such 

designation has been made, in a geographic area which, as a result of its compact development patterns and uses, is 

identified by the governing body as the downtown, town center, or village center for purposes of this chapter. 

Qualifying structure shall also mean historic structures in a municipality whose preservation and reuse would conserve 

the embodied energy in existing building stock. Cities or towns may further limit "qualifying structure'' according to the 

procedure in RSA 79-E:3 as meaning only a structure located within such districts that meet certain age, occupancy, 

condition, size, or other similar criteria consistent with local economic conditions, community character, and local 

planning and development goals. Cities or towns may further modify "qualifying structure'' to include buildings that 

have been destroyed by fire or act of nature, including where such destruction occurred within 15 years prior to the 

adoption of the provisions of this chapter by the city or town.  

    III. "Replacement'' means the demolition or removal of a qualifying structure and the construction of a new structure 

on the same lot.  

    IV. "Substantial rehabilitation'' means rehabilitation of a qualifying structure which costs at least 15 percent of the 

pre-rehabilitation assessed valuation or at least $75,000, whichever is less. In addition, in the case of historic structures, 

substantial rehabilitation means devoting a portion of the total cost, in the amount of at least 10 percent of the pre-

rehabilitation assessed valuation or at least $5,000, whichever is less, to energy efficiency in accordance with the U.S. 

Secretary of the Interior's Standards for Rehabilitation. Cities or towns may further limit "substantial rehabilitation'' 

according to the procedure in RSA 79-E:3 as meaning rehabilitation which costs a percentage greater than 15 percent of 

pre-rehabilitation assessed valuation or an amount greater than $75,000 based on local economic conditions, community 

character, and local planning and development goals.  

    V. "Tax increment finance district'' means any district established in accordance with the provisions of RSA 162-K.  

    VI. "Tax relief'' means:  

       (a) For a qualifying structure, that for a period of time determined by a local governing body in accordance with 

this chapter, the property tax on a qualifying structure shall not increase as a result of the substantial rehabilitation 

thereof.  

       (b) For the replacement of a qualifying structure, that for a period of time determined by a local governing body in 

accordance with this chapter, the property tax on a replacement structure shall not exceed the property tax on the 

replaced qualifying structure as a result of the replacement thereof.  

       (c) For a qualifying structure which is a building destroyed by fire or act of nature, that for a period of time 

determined by a local governing body in accordance with this chapter, the property tax on such qualifying structure 

shall not exceed the tax on the assessed value of the structure that would have existed had the structure not been 

destroyed.  

01/02/2020

Page 191 of 247



    VII. "Tax relief period'' means the finite period of time during which the tax relief will be effective, as determined by 

a local governing body pursuant to RSA 79-E:5.  

Source. 2006, 167:1. 2009, 200:5-7. 2010, 329:1, 2. 2011, 237:1, 2, eff. July 5, 2011. 2013, 78:2, eff. April 1, 2013. 

Section 79-E:3 

    79-E:3 Adoption of Community Revitalization Tax Relief Incentive Program –  

    I. Any city or town may adopt or modify the provisions of this chapter by voting whether to accept for consideration 

or modify requirements for requests for community revitalization tax relief incentives. Any city or town may do so by 

following the procedures in this section.  

    II. In a town, other than a town that has adopted a charter pursuant to RSA 49-D, the question shall be placed on the 

warrant of a special or annual town meeting, by the governing body or by petition under RSA 39:3.  

    III. In a city or town that has adopted a charter under RSA 49-C or RSA 49-D, the legislative body may consider and 

act upon the question in accordance with its normal procedures for passage of resolutions, ordinances, and other 

legislation. In the alternative, the legislative body of such municipality may vote to place the question on the official 

ballot for any regular municipal election.  

    IV. If a majority of those voting on the question vote "yes,'' applications for community revitalization tax relief 

incentives may be accepted and considered by the local governing body at any time thereafter, subject to the provisions 

of paragraph VI of this section.  

    V. If the question is not approved, the question may later be voted on according to the provisions of paragraph II or 

III of this section, whichever applies.  

    VI. The local governing body of any town or city that has adopted this program may consider rescinding its action in 

the manner described in paragraph II or III of this section, whichever applies. A vote terminating the acceptance and 

consideration of such applications shall have no effect on incentives previously granted by the city or town, nor shall it 

terminate consideration of applications submitted prior to the date of such vote.  

Source. 2006, 167:1. 2010, 329:3, eff. July 20, 2010. 

Section 79-E:4 

    79-E:4 Community Revitalization Tax Relief Incentive. –  

    I. An owner of a qualifying structure who intends to substantially rehabilitate or replace such structure may apply to 

the governing body of the municipality in which the property is located for tax relief. The applicant shall include the 

address of the property, a description of the intended rehabilitation or replacement, any changes in use of the property 

resulting from the rehabilitation or replacement, and an application fee.  

    I-a. In order to assist the governing body with the review and evaluation of an application for replacement of a 

qualifying structure, an owner shall submit to the governing body as part of the application, a New Hampshire division 

of historical resources individual resource inventory form, prepared by a qualified architectural historian and a letter 

issued by the local heritage commission and if the qualifying structure is located within a designated historic district 

established in accordance with RSA 674:46, a letter from the historic district commission or, if such local commissions 

are not established, a letter issued by the New Hampshire division of historical resources that identifies any and all 

historical, cultural, and architectural value of the structure or structures that are proposed to be replaced and the property 

on which those structures are located. The application for tax relief shall not be deemed to be complete and the 

governing body shall not schedule the public hearing on the application for replacement of a qualifying structure as 

required under RSA 79-E:4, II until the inventory form and the letter, as well as all other required information, have 

been submitted.  

    II. Upon receipt of an application, the governing body shall hold a duly noticed public hearing to take place no later 

than 60 days from receipt of the application, to determine whether the structure at issue is a qualifying structure; 

whether any proposed rehabilitation qualifies as substantial rehabilitation; and whether there is a public benefit to 

granting the requested tax relief and, if so, for what duration.  

    III. No later than 45 days after the public hearing, the governing body shall render a decision granting or denying the 

requested tax relief and, if so granting, establishing the tax relief period.  

    IV. (a) The governing body may grant the tax relief, provided:  

          (1) The governing body finds a public benefit under RSA 79-E:7; and  

          (2) The specific public benefit is preserved through a covenant under RSA 79-E:8; and  

          (3) The governing body finds that the proposed use is consistent with the municipality's master plan or 

development regulations; and  

          (4) In the case of a replacement, the governing body specifically finds that the local heritage commission or 

historic district commission or, if such local commissions are not established, the New Hampshire division of historical 

resources has determined that the replaced qualifying structure does not possess significant historical, cultural, or 

architectural value, the replacement of the qualifying structure will achieve one or more of the public benefits identified 

in RSA 79-E:7 to a greater degree than the renovation of the underutilized structure, and the historical, cultural, or 

architectural resources in the community will not be adversely affected by the replacement. In connection with these 

findings, the governing body may request that the division of historical resources conduct a technical evaluation in order 

01/02/2020

Page 192 of 247



to satisfy the governing body that historical resources will not be adversely affected.  

       (b) If the governing body grants the tax relief, the governing body shall identify the specific public benefit achieved 

under RSA 79-E:7, and shall determine the precise terms and duration of the covenant to preserve the public benefit 

under RSA 79-E:8.  

    V. If the governing body, in its discretion, denies the application for tax relief, such denial shall be accompanied by a 

written explanation. The governing body's decision may be appealed either to the board of tax and land appeals or the 

superior court in the same manner as provided for appeals of current use classification pursuant to RSA 79-A:9 or 79-

A:11 provided, however, that such denial shall be deemed discretionary and shall not be set aside by the board of tax 

and land appeals or the superior court except for bad faith or discrimination.  

    VI. Municipalities shall have no obligation to grant an application for tax relief for properties located within tax 

increment finance districts when the governing body determines, in its sole discretion, that the granting of tax relief will 

impede, reduce, or negatively affect:  

       (a) The development program or financing plans for such tax increment finance districts; or  

       (b) The ability to satisfy or expedite repayment of debt service obligations incurred for a tax increment financing 

district; or  

       (c) The ability to satisfy program administration, operating, or maintenance expenses within a tax increment 

financing district.  

Source. 2006, 167:1. 2009, 200:8-11, eff. July 15, 2009. 

Section 79-E:5 

    79-E:5 Duration of Tax Relief Period. –  

    I. The governing body may grant such tax assessment relief for a period of up to 5 years, beginning with the 

completion of the substantial rehabilitation.  

    I-a. For the approval of a replacement of a qualifying structure, the governing body may grant such tax assessment 

relief for a period of up to 5 years, beginning only upon the completion of construction of the replacement structure. 

The governing body may, in its discretion, extend such additional years of tax relief as provided for under this section, 

provided that no such additional years of tax relief may be provided prior to the completion of construction of the 

replacement structure. The municipal tax assessment of the replacement structure and the property on which it is located 

shall not increase or decrease in the period between the approval by the governing body of tax relief for the replacement 

structure and the time the owner completes construction of the replacement structure and grants to the municipality the 

covenant to protect the public benefit as required by this chapter. The governing body may not grant any tax assessment 

relief under this chapter with respect to property and structures for which an election has been made for property 

appraisal under RSA 75:1-a.  

    II. The governing body may, in its discretion, add up to an additional 2 years of tax relief for a project that results in 

new residential units and up to 4 years for a project that includes affordable housing.  

    III. The governing body may, in its discretion, add up to an additional 4 years of tax relief for the substantial 

rehabilitation of a qualifying structure that is listed on or determined eligible for listing on the National Register of 

Historic Places, state register of historic places, or is located within and important to a locally designated historic 

district, provided that the substantial rehabilitation is conducted in accordance with the U.S. Secretary of Interior's 

Standards for Rehabilitation.  

    IV. The governing body may adopt local guidelines to assist it in determining the appropriate duration of the tax 

assessment relief period.  

Source. 2006, 167:1. 2009, 200:12. 2010, 329:4, eff. July 20, 2010. 

Section 79-E:6 

    79-E:6 Resumption of Full Tax Liability. – Upon expiration of the tax relief period, the property shall be taxed at 

its market value in accordance with RSA 75:1.  

Source. 2006, 167:1, eff. April 1, 2006. 

Section 79-E:7 

    79-E:7 Public Benefit. – In order to qualify for tax relief under this chapter, the proposed substantial rehabilitation 

must provide at least one of the public benefits, and the proposed replacement must provide one or more of the public 

benefits to a greater degree than would a substantial rehabilitation of the same qualifying structure, as follows:  

    I. It enhances the economic vitality of the downtown;  

    II. It enhances and improves a structure that is culturally or historically important on a local, regional, state, or 

national level, either independently or within the context of an historic district, town center, or village center in which 

the building is located;  

    II-a. It promotes the preservation and reuse of existing building stock throughout a municipality by the rehabilitation 

of historic structures, thereby conserving the embodied energy in accordance with energy efficiency guidelines 

established by the U.S. Secretary of the Interior's Standards for Rehabilitation.  

    III. It promotes development of municipal centers, providing for efficiency, safety, and a greater sense of community, 

01/02/2020

Page 193 of 247



consistent with RSA 9-B; or  

    IV. It increases residential housing in urban or town centers.  

Source. 2006, 167:1. 2009, 200:13, eff. July 15, 2009. 2013, 78:3, eff. April 1, 2013. 

Section 79-E:7-a 

    79-E:7-a Public Benefit Determinations. – Cities or towns may adopt according to the procedure in RSA 79-E:3 

provisions that further define the public benefits enumerated in RSA 79-E:7 to assist the governing body in evaluating 

applications made under this chapter based on local economic conditions, community character, and local planning and 

development goals.  

Source. 2010, 329:5, eff. July 20, 2010. 

Section 79-E:8 

    79-E:8 Covenant to Protect Public Benefit. –  

    I. Tax relief for the substantial rehabilitation or replacement of a qualifying structure shall be effective only after a 

property owner grants to the municipality a covenant ensuring that the structure shall be maintained and used in a 

manner that furthers the public benefits for which the tax relief was granted and as otherwise provided in this chapter.  

    II. The covenant shall be coextensive with the tax relief period. The covenant may, if required by the governing body, 

be effective for a period of time up to twice the duration of the tax relief period.  

    III. The covenant shall include provisions requiring the property owner to obtain casualty insurance, and flood 

insurance if appropriate. The covenant may include, at the governing body's sole discretion, a lien against proceeds from 

casualty and flood insurance claims for the purpose of ensuring proper restoration or demolition or damaged structures 

and property. If the property owner has not begun the process of restoration, rebuilding, or demolition of such structure 

within one year following damage or destruction, the property owner shall be subject to the termination of provisions set 

forth in RSA 79-E:9, I.  

    IV. The local governing body shall provide for the recording of the covenant to protect public benefit with the 

registry of deeds. It shall be a burden upon the property and shall bind all transferees and assignees of such property.  

    V. The applicant shall pay any reasonable expenses incurred by the municipality in the drafting, review, and/or 

execution of the covenant. The applicant also shall be responsible for the cost of recording the covenant.  

Source. 2006, 167:1. 2009, 200:14, eff. July 15, 2009. 

Section 79-E:9 

    79-E:9 Termination of Covenant; Reduction of Tax Relief; Penalty. –  

    I. If the owner fails to maintain or utilize the building according to the terms of the covenant, or fails to restore, 

rebuild, or demolish the structure following damage or destruction as provided in RSA 79-E:8, III, the governing body 

shall, after a duly noticed public hearing, determine whether and to what extent the public benefit of the rehabilitation or 

replacement has been diminished and shall determine whether to terminate or reduce the tax relief period in accordance 

with such determination. If the covenant is terminated, the governing body shall assess all taxes to the owner as though 

no tax relief was granted, with interest in accordance with paragraph II.  

    II. Any tax payment required under paragraph I shall be payable according to the following procedure:  

       (a) The commissioner of the department of revenue administration shall prescribe and issue forms to the local 

assessing officials for the payment due, which shall provide a description of the property, the market value assessment 

according to RSA 75:1, and the amount payable.  

       (b) The prescribed form shall be prepared in quadruplicate. The original, duplicate, and triplicate copy of the form 

shall be given to the collector of taxes for collection of the payment along with a special tax warrant authorizing the 

collector to collect the payment under the warrant. The quadruplicate copy of the form shall be retained by the local 

assessing officials for their records.  

       (c) Upon receipt of the special tax warrant and prescribed forms, the tax collector shall mail the duplicate copy of 

the tax bill to the owner responsible for the tax as the notice of payment.  

       (d) Payment shall be due not later than 30 days after the mailing of the bill. Interest at the rate of 18 percent per 

annum shall be due thereafter on any amount not paid within the 30-day period. Interest at 12 percent per annum shall 

be charged upon all taxes that would have been due and payable on or before December 1 of each tax year as if no tax 

relief had been granted.  

Source. 2006, 167:1. 2009, 200:15, eff. July 15, 2009. 

Section 79-E:10 

    79-E:10 Lien for Unpaid Taxes. – The real estate of every person shall be held for the taxes levied pursuant to RSA 

79-E:9.  

Source. 2006, 167:1, eff. April 1, 2006. 

Section 79-E:11 

    79-E:11 Enforcement. – All taxes levied pursuant to RSA 79-E:9 which are not paid when due shall be collected in 

the same manner as provided in RSA 80.  

01/02/2020

Page 194 of 247



Source. 2006, 167:1. 2007, 42:3, eff. July 20, 2007. 

Section 79-E:12 

    79-E:12 Rulemaking. – The commissioner of the department of revenue administration shall adopt rules, pursuant to 

RSA 541-A, relative to the payment and collection procedures under RSA 79-E:9.  

Source. 2006, 167:1, eff. April 1, 2006. 

Section 79-E:13 

    79-E:13 Extent of Tax Relief. –  

    I. (a) Tax relief granted under this chapter shall pertain only to assessment increases attributable to the substantial 

rehabilitation performed under the conditions approved by the governing body and not to those increases attributable to 

other factors including but not limited to market forces; or  

       (b) Tax relief granted under this chapter shall be calculated on the value in excess of the original assessed value. 

Original assessed value shall mean the value of the qualifying structure assessed at the time the governing body 

approves the application for tax relief and the owner grants to the municipality the covenant to protect public benefit as 

required in this chapter, provided that for a qualifying structure which is a building destroyed by fire or act of nature, 

original assessed value shall mean the value as of the date of approval of the application for tax relief of the qualifying 

structure that would have existed had the structure not been destroyed.  

    II. The tax relief granted under this chapter shall only apply to substantial rehabilitation or replacement that 

commences after the governing body approves the application for tax relief and the owner grants to the municipality the 

covenant to protect the public benefit as required in this chapter, provided that in the case of a qualifying structure 

which is a building destroyed by fire or act of nature, and which occurred within 15 years prior to the adoption of the 

provisions of this chapter by the city or town, the tax relief may apply to such qualifying structure for which 

replacement has begun, but which has not been completed, on the date the application for relief under this chapter is 

approved.  

Source. 2006, 167:1. 2010, 329:6. 2011, 237:3, eff. July 5, 2011. 

Section 79-E:14 

    79-E:14 Other Programs. – The provisions of this chapter shall not apply to properties whose rehabilitation or 

construction is subsidized by state or federal grants or funds that do not need to be repaid totaling more than 50 percent 

of construction costs from state or federal programs.  

Source. 2006, 167:1, eff. April 1, 2006. 

 

01/02/2020

Page 195 of 247



 

 

 
 

Intentionally 
left blank… 

City Clerk’s Office 

 

01/02/2020

Page 196 of 247



22 South Main Street;   RSA-79:E Application Summary         

 

Applicant:  Norm and Staci Vetter 

Eligible years:  11 out of the max of 15 years 

Project: Rehabilitation of the existing floor and basement level for a restaurant 

and/or commercial space.  This is approximately 12,200 SF.  The second floor is 

approximately 6,000 SF and will be renovated into 6 residential units, a mix of one 

and two bedroom units.  

Exterior Changes: Some windows will be added to the rear of the building in 

which there were windows at one time and bricked over.  The rear elevation will 

be raised to accommodate the living area.  All windows replacements and 

materials for the elevation change have been approved with conditions on said 

materials by the Historic District on 7/31/19. 

RSA 79-E is a temporary tax relief incentive for property owners who want to 

make a substantial investment in rehabilitation in a historic district, downtown or 

village center.  The tax relief if granted would consist of a finite period of time 

during which the property tax on the structure would not increase as a result of a 

substantial rehabilitation.  In exchange for the relief, the property owner grants a 

covenant ensuring there is public benefit to the rehabilitation. 

Qualifications: 

1. A qualifying property must provide a public benefit.  Public benefits could 

be restoring a historic building, promoting downtown development, 

increasing downtown housing, or increasing the economic vitality of 

downtown.  22 South Main meets all of these criteria. 

2. A qualifying project must have substantial rehabilitation costs of at least 

15% of the pre-rehabilitated assessed value, or costs of $75,000 whichever 

is less.  22 South Main exceeds both of these baselines.  Total estimated 

costs of the project are $1,404,500 which is approximately an increase of 

367% of the pre-assessed value. 

 

01/02/2020

Page 197 of 247



 

 

 
 

Intentionally 
left blank… 

City Clerk’s Office 

 

01/02/2020

Page 198 of 247



City of Rochester, New Hampshire
Division of Community & Economic Development

31 Wakefield Street, Rochester NH 03867

&
O B

i >
1^:51c.

n/ vjiTS

Application Revised January 1, 2015
Community Revitalization Tax Relief (per RSA 79E)

City of Rochester, New Hampshire
Application must be accompained by $150 application fee payable to “City of Rochester”

Date of Preparation: Dec 16. 2019

Property information
Property address/location: 10 South Main Street. Rochester NH 03867

Name of building (if any):

Tax map & lot #: 120 - 392

Square Footage:

Zoning:

Year built: 1881

4,000 In need of renovationCondition:

2 Months to 20 years depending on floorDTC Vacant, how long:

Is this structure eligible or listed on the State or National Register of Historic Places, or

located in a local, state or federal Historic District? Yes No Unknown

Name of District:

Floor 1, 1,500 sq, ft retailExisting Uses: Describe the units by type and size, how many floors

Floor 2 1,500 sq. ft. office/apartment Floor 3 1,000 sq. ft. Apartment

NoChange of Use?:

Property Owner
Name (include name of individual):

Company:

10 South Main Street LLC, Keith Frizzell

P.O. Box 310, Dover NH 03821Mailing address:

603-431-0400 k.frizzell@msprops.netTelephone #: Email:

Applicant or Agent Contact:
Name (include name of individual):

Company:

Same

jjjFnni WE
DEC 2 3 2019

Mailing address:

Telephone #: 1Email:

01/02/2020

Page 199 of 247



EXHIBIT

Proposed Project Information

Jeremiah Johnson, McHenry ArchitectureName of Architect (if known):

Name of Licensed Contractor (if known):

Yes If yes, how many 4Will the project include rehabilitation of residential units?

No XAre the residential units defined as “affordable”? Yes

(The current affordable rents in the City of Rochester are available at www.NHHFA.ora)

Describe the commercial space, square footage, uses and conditions:

1,500 sq. ft. 1st floor retail

Please describe in detail the public benefits associated with this project? You may attach

pages to the application for this and the following question. ( RSA 79-E:7)

Repairing and improving an important downtown building. Creating 4 downtown residential units.

Replacing existing windows and adding new windows that maintain the character of the original look of

the building. Please see the attached, approved HDC application for full information.

Explain the project in your own words:

Repair and renovation of the interior and exterior of the building. Maintaining the first floor retail and creating

4 apartments on the upper floors. Installing new electrical, plumbing & HVAC. Replacing and adding windows.

184,700Pre-Rehabilitation Ad Velorum Tax Valuation $
Please obtain a Property Record Card from the Rochester Assessing Department, and
include a copy with the application.
Does the estimated cost of rehabilitation exceed 15% of pre-rehabilitation valuation, or

$75,000, whichever is lower? YES X NO %

Note: This program is available for projects where the rehabilitation cost equals or exceeds
15% of the pre-rehabilitation assessed valuation or $75,000, whichever is lower. If your
project does not meet this standard, it is not eligible for Tax Relief under RSA 79e.

01/02/2020

Page 200 of 247



Project costs

Describe work that will constitute the substantial rehabilitation and estimated/projected costs.

Cost: $Historic Restoration:

Cost: $Sustainability/Efficiency:

Please see HDC application for scale of project Cost: $Interior Alterations:

Cost: $Exterior Alterations:

Cost: $Structural:

Cost: $Electrical:

Cost: $Plumbing:

V Cost: $Mechanical:

Cost: $

Cost: $ 300,000

Safety/Fire Protection:

Estimate only, no bids have been solicited yet.Other:

Expected construction dates. Start: Spring / Summer 2020 ; Finish: ASAP

Estimated $300,000Total project cost: $
Please attach written estimates whenever possible.

No xWill any state or federal grants or funds be used in this project? Yes
If yes, please provide information in detail on an additional sheet.
Note: The provisions of this chapter shall not apply to properties whose rehabilitation or construction

is subsidized by state or federal grants or funds that do not need to be repaid totaling more than 50
percent of construction costs from state or federal programs.

01/02/2020

Page 201 of 247



Other Approvals and Information

Please include the scheduled date of review or attach the Notice of Decision as appropriate;

Project Narrative or Letter of Intent to Planning:

Attached

Date:

Dec 17, 2019Date:Historic District Review:

(Required if Requesting Historic Incentive)

Special Downtown Review: Attached Oct 7, 2019Date:

Date:Minor Site Review:

Date:Zoning Board of Adjustment:

Date:Conservation Commission:

Date:DPW Driveway/Water/Sewer:

State Permits or Requirements: Date:

Date:Other (please specify):

Application Checklist
(Applications are not complete, and review will not be scheduled, until all supporting items are
delivered)

0 Completed Application form with signatures.
0 Application Fee made payable to City of Rochester

Documentation and photos of Historic Information

0 Copy of Property Record Card

0 Description of Public Benefit

0 Site plans, diagrams, elevations associated with the Project

0 Cost Estimates associated with the Project

Documentation of State of Federal Funds

0 Notice of Decision for Other Reviews

0 Request for Tax Relief

01/02/2020

Page 202 of 247



Request for Community Revitalization Tax Relief

X Substantial Rehabilitation Tax Relief Incentive (Up to 5 Years)

X Additional Tax Relief Incentive for New Residential Units (Up to 2 Years)

Additional Tax Relief Incentive for Affordable Housing (Up to 4 Years)

Additional Tax Relief for rehabilitation of historic places* (Up to 4 Years)

* Rehabilitation in accordance with the in accordance with Secretary of Interior’s Standards

for Rehabilitation.
Please explain your request for the above tax relief categories. You may attach an

additional sheet. Extensive renovations by creating 4 residentuial units where only 2 exist. Exterior

renovations including replacing and adding windows, brick repair, repair and replace wood trim as needed.

Submission of Application
This application must be signed by the property owner. Please submit an electronic version
and /or a complete package of information to:

Rochester Community & Economic Development
Mail: 31 Wakefield St, Rochester, NH 03867
michael.scala a rochestemh.net

A $150.00 application fee (payable to “City of Rochester”) must be submitted in order for this
application to be considered complete. Please follow up at 603-335-7522 to insure all
information and payments have been received.

I (we) hereby submit this application under the Community Revitalization Tax Relief Incentive
Statute (NH RSA 79-E) and attest that to the best of my (our) knowledge all of the information
herein and in the accompanying materials is true and accurate. I (we) have reviewed the
statute and understand that: a) there will be a public review process and public hearing to
evaluate the merits of this application; b) I (we) will need to enter into a covenant with the
City; and c) I (we) may be required to pay reasonable expenses associated with the creation
and recording of the covenant to the Strafford County Registry of Deeds.
Signature of property owner (1):

Keith Frizzell
V

12/23/2019Printed Name: Date:

Signature of property owner (2):

Date:Printed Name:

01/02/2020

Page 203 of 247



ATTACHMENT I
City of Rochester RSA 79e Application

The Standards (Department of the Interior regulations 36 CFR 67) pertain to all historic
properties listed in or eligible for listing in the National Register of Historic Places.

1) A property shall be used for its intended historic purpose or be placed in a new use that requires
minimal change to the defining characteristics of the building and its site and environment.

2) The historic character of a property shall be retained and preserved. The removal of historic
materials or alteration of features and spaces that characterize a property shall be avoided.

3) Each property shall be recognized as a physical record of its time, place, and use. Changes that
create a false sense of historical development, such as adding conjectural features or architectural
elements from other buildings, shall not be undertaken.

4) Most properties change over time; those changes that have acquired historic significance in their
own right shall be retained and preserved.

5) Distinctive features, finishes, and construction techniques or examples of craftsmanship that
characterize a historic property shall be preserved.

6) Deteriorated historic features shall be repaired rather than replaced. Where the severity of
deterioration requires replacement of a distinctive feature, the new feature shall match the old in
design, color, texture, and other visual qualities and, where possible, materials. Replacement of
missing features shall be substantiated by documentary, physical, or pictorial evidence.

7) Chemical or physical treatments, such as sandblasting, that cause damage to historic materials shall
not be used. The surface cleaning of structures, if appropriate, shall be undertaken using the gentlest
means possible.

8) Significant archeological resources affected by a project, shall be protected and preserved. If such
resources must be disturbed, mitigation measures shall be undertaken. New additions, exterior
alterations, or related new construction shall not destroy historic materials that characterize
the property. The new work shall be differentiated from the old and shall be compatible with the
massing, size, scale, and architectural features to protect the historic integrity of the property and its
environment.

10) New additions and adjacent or related new construction shall be undertaken in such a manner that
if removed in the future, the essential form and integrity of the historic property and its environment
would be unimpaired.

01/02/2020

Page 204 of 247



ATTACHMENT II
City of Rochester RSA 79e Application

TITLE V
TAXATION

CHAPTER 79-E
COMMUNITY REVITALIZATION TAX RELIEF INCENTIVE

Section 79-E:1
79-E:l Declaration of Public Benefit. -
I. It is declared to be a public benefit to enhance downtowns and town centers with respect to

economic activity, cultural and historic character, sense of community, and in-town residential uses
that contribute to economic and social vitality.

II. It is further declared to be a public benefit to encourage the rehabilitation of the many
underutilized structures in urban and town centers as a means of encouraging growth of economic,
residential, and municipal uses in a more compact pattern, in accordance with RSA 9-B.

Il-a. In instances where a qualifying structure is determined to possess no significant historical,
cultural, or architectural value and for which the governing body makes a specific finding that
rehabilitation would not achieve one or more of the public benefits established in RSA 79-E:7 to the
same degree as the replacement of the underutilized structure with a new structure, the tax relief
incentives provided under this chapter may be extended to the replacement of an underutilized
structure in accordance with the provisions of this chapter.

Il-b. It is further declared to be a public benefit to encourage the rehabilitation of historic structures
in a municipality by increasing energy efficiency in the preservation and reuse of existing building
stock.

III. Short-term property assessment tax relief and a related covenant to protect public benefit as
provided under this chapter are considered to provide a demonstrated public benefit if they encourage
substantial rehabilitation and use of qualifying structures, or in certain cases, the replacement of a
qualifying structure, as defined in this chapter.

Source. 2006, 167:1. 2009, 200:3, 4, eff. July 15, 2009. 2013, 78:1, eff. April 1, 2013.

Section 79-E:2
79-E:2 Definitions.- In this chapter:
I. "Historic structure" means a building that is listed on or determined eligible for listing on the

National Register of Historic Places or the state register of historic places.
II. "Qualifying structure" means a building located in a district officially designated in a

municipality's master plan, or by zoning ordinance, as a downtown, town center, central business
district, or village center, or, where no such designation has been made, in a geographic area which, as
a result of its compact development patterns and uses, is identified by the governing body as the
downtown, town center, or village center for purposes of this chapter. Qualifying structure shall also
mean historic structures in a municipality whose preservation and reuse would conserve the embodied
energy in existing building stock. Cities or towns may further limit "qualifying structure" according to
the procedure in RSA 79-E:3 as meaning only a structure located within such districts that meet certain
age, occupancy, condition, size, or other similar criteria consistent with local economic conditions,
community character, and local planning and development goals. Cities or towns may further modify
"qualifying structure" to include buildings that have been destroyed by fire or act of nature, including
where such destruction occurred within 15 years prior to the adoption of the provisions of this chapter
by the city or town.

III. "Replacement" means the demolition or removal of a qualifying structure and the construction of

01/02/2020

Page 205 of 247



a new structure on the same lot.
IV. "Substantial rehabilitation" means rehabilitation of a qualifying structure which costs at least 15

percent of the pre-rehabilitation assessed valuation or at least $75,000, whichever is less. In addition,
in the case of historic structures, substantial rehabilitation means devoting a portion of the total cost, in
the amount of at least 10 percent of the pre-rehabilitation assessed valuation or at least $5,000,
whichever is less, to energy efficiency in accordance with the U.S. Secretary of the Interior's Standards
for Rehabilitation. Cities or towns may further limit "substantial rehabilitation" according to the
procedure in RSA 79-E:3 as meaning rehabilitation which costs a percentage greater than 15 percent of
pre-rehabilitation assessed valuation or an amount greater than $75,000 based on local economic
conditions, community character, and local planning and development goals.

V. "Tax increment finance district" means any district established in accordance with the provisions
of RSA 162-K.

VI. "Tax relief ' means:
(a) For a qualifying structure, that for a period of time determined by a local governing body in

accordance with this chapter, the property tax on a qualifying structure shall not increase as a result of
the substantial rehabilitation thereof.

(b) For the replacement of a qualifying structure, that for a period of time determined by a local
governing body in accordance with this chapter, the property tax on a replacement structure shall not
exceed the property tax on the replaced qualifying structure as a result of the replacement thereof.

(c) For a qualifying structure which is a building destroyed by fire or act of nature, that for a
period of time determined by a local governing body in accordance with this chapter, the property tax
on such qualifying structure shall not exceed the tax on the assessed value of the structure that would
have existed had the structure not been destroyed.

VII. "Tax relief period" means the finite period of time during which the tax relief will be effective,
as determined by a local governing body pursuant to RSA 79-E:5.

Source. 2006, 167:1. 2009, 200:5-7. 2010, 329:1, 2. 2011, 237:1, 2, eff. July 5, 2011. 2013, 78:2, eff.
April 1, 2013.

Section 79-E:3
79-E:3 Adoption of Community Revitalization Tax Relief Incentive Program —
I. Any city or town may adopt or modify the provisions of this chapter by voting whether to accept

for consideration or modify requirements for requests for community revitalization tax relief
incentives. Any city or town may do so by following the procedures in this section.

II. In a town, other than a town that has adopted a charter pursuant to RSA 49-D, the question shall
be placed on the warrant of a special or annual town meeting, by the governing body or by petition
under RSA 39:3.

III. In a city or town that has adopted a charter under RSA 49-C or RSA 49-D, the legislative body
may consider and act upon the question in accordance with its normal procedures for passage of
resolutions, ordinances, and other legislation. In the alternative, the legislative body of such
municipality may vote to place the question on the official ballot for any regular municipal election.

IV. If a majority of those voting on the question vote "yes," applications for community
revitalization tax relief incentives may be accepted and considered by the local governing body at any
time thereafter, subject to the provisions of paragraph VI of this section.

V. If the question is not approved, the question may later be voted on according to the provisions of
paragraph II or III of this section, whichever applies.

VI. The local governing body of any town or city that has adopted this program may consider
rescinding its action in the manner described in paragraph II or III of this section, whichever applies. A
vote terminating the acceptance and consideration of such applications shall have no effect on
incentives previously granted by the city or town, nor shall it terminate consideration of applications
submitted prior to the date of such vote.

Source. 2006, 167:1. 2010, 329:3, eff. July 20, 2010.

01/02/2020

Page 206 of 247



Section 79-E:4
79-E:4 Community Revitalization Tax Relief Incentive. -
I. An owner of a qualifying structure who intends to substantially rehabilitate or replace such

structure may apply to the governing body of the municipality in which the property is located for tax
relief. The applicant shall include the address of the property, a description of the intended
rehabilitation or replacement, any changes in use of the property resulting from the rehabilitation or
replacement, and an application fee.

I-a. In order to assist the governing body with the review and evaluation of an application for
replacement of a qualifying structure, an owner shall submit to the governing body as part of the
application, a New Hampshire division of historical resources individual resource inventory form,
prepared by a qualified architectural historian and a letter issued by the local heritage commission and
if the qualifying structure is located within a designated historic district established in accordance with
RSA 674:46, a letter from the historic district commission or, if such local commissions are not
established, a letter issued by the New Hampshire division of historical resources that identifies any
and all historical, cultural, and architectural value of the structure or structures that are proposed to be
replaced and the property on which those structures are located. The application for tax relief shall not
be deemed to be complete and the governing body shall not schedule the public hearing on the
application for replacement of a qualifying structure as required under RSA 79-E:4, II until the
inventory form and the letter, as well as all other required information, have been submitted.

II. Upon receipt of an application, the governing body shall hold a duly noticed public hearing to
take place no later than 60 days from receipt of the application, to determine whether the structure at
issue is a qualifying structure; whether any proposed rehabilitation qualifies as substantial
rehabilitation; and whether there is a public benefit to granting the requested tax relief and, if so, for
what duration.

III. No later than 45 days after the public hearing, the governing body shall render a decision
granting or denying the requested tax relief and, if so granting, establishing the tax relief period.

IV. (a) The governing body may grant the tax relief, provided:
(1) The governing body finds a public benefit under RSA 79-E:7; and
(2) The specific public benefit is preserved through a covenant under RSA 79-E:8; and
(3) The governing body finds that the proposed use is consistent with the municipality's master

plan or development regulations; and
(4) In the case of a replacement, the governing body specifically finds that the local heritage

commission or historic district commission or, if such local commissions are not established, the New
Hampshire division of historical resources has determined that the replaced qualifying structure does
not possess significant historical, cultural, or architectural value, the replacement of the qualifying
structure will achieve one or more of the public benefits identified in RSA 79-E:7 to a greater degree
than the renovation of the underutilized structure, and the historical, cultural, or architectural resources
in the community will not be adversely affected by the replacement. In connection with these findings,
the governing body may request that the division of historical resources conduct a technical evaluation
in order to satisfy the governing body that historical resources will not be adversely affected.

(b) If the governing body grants the tax relief, the governing body shall identify the specific public
benefit achieved under RSA 79-E:7, and shall determine the precise terms and duration of the covenant
to preserve the public benefit under RSA 79-E:8.

V. If the governing body, in its discretion, denies the application for tax relief, such denial shall be
accompanied by a written explanation. The governing body's decision may be appealed either to the
board of tax and land appeals or the superior court in the same manner as provided for appeals of
current use classification pursuant to RSA 79-A:9 or 79-A:11 provided, however, that such denial shall
be deemed discretionary and shall not be set aside by the board of tax and land appeals or the superior
court except for bad faith or discrimination.

VI. Municipalities shall have no obligation to grant an application for tax relief for properties
located within tax increment finance districts when the governing body determines, in its sole
discretion, that the granting of tax relief will impede, reduce, or negatively affect:

(a) The development program or financing plans for such tax increment finance districts; or

01/02/2020

Page 207 of 247



(b) The ability to satisfy or expedite repayment of debt service obligations incurred for a tax
increment financing district; or

(c) The ability to satisfy program administration, operating, or maintenance expenses within a tax
increment financing district.

Source. 2006, 167:1. 2009, 200:8-11, eff. July 15, 2009.

Section 79-E:5
79-E:5 Duration of Tax Relief Period. -
I. The governing body may grant such tax assessment relief for a period of up to 5 years, beginning

with the completion of the substantial rehabilitation.
I-a. For the approval of a replacement of a qualifying structure, the governing body may grant such

tax assessment relief for a period of up to 5 years, beginning only upon the completion of construction
of the replacement structure. The governing body may, in its discretion, extend such additional years of
tax relief as provided for under this section, provided that no such additional years of tax relief may be
provided prior to the completion of construction of the replacement structure. The municipal tax
assessment of the replacement structure and the property on which it is located shall not increase or
decrease in the period between the approval by the governing body of tax relief for the replacement
structure and the time the owner completes construction of the replacement structure and grants to the
municipality the covenant to protect the public benefit as required by this chapter. The governing body
may not grant any tax assessment relief under this chapter with respect to property and structures for
which an election has been made for property appraisal under RSA 75:1-a.

II. The governing body may, in its discretion, add up to an additional 2 years of tax relief for a
project that results in new residential units and up to 4 years for a project that includes affordable
housing.

III. The governing body may, in its discretion, add up to an additional 4 years of tax relief for the
substantial rehabilitation of a qualifying structure that is listed on or determined eligible for listing on
the National Register of Historic Places, state register of historic places, or is located within and
important to a locally designated historic district, provided that the substantial rehabilitation is
conducted in accordance with the U.S. Secretary of Interior's Standards for Rehabilitation.

IV. The governing body may adopt local guidelines to assist it in determining the appropriate
duration of the tax assessment relief period.

Source. 2006, 167:1. 2009, 200:12. 2010, 329:4, eff. July 20, 2010.

Section 79-E:6
79-E:6 Resumption of Full Tax Liability.-Upon expiration of the tax relief period, the property

shall be taxed at its market value in accordance with RSA 75:1.

Source. 2006, 167:1, eff. April 1, 2006.

Section 79-E:7
79-E:7 Public Benefit.-In order to qualify for tax relief under this chapter, the proposed

substantial rehabilitation must provide at least one of the public benefits, and the proposed replacement
must provide one or more of the public benefits to a greater degree than would a substantial
rehabilitation of the same qualifying structure, as follows:

I. It enhances the economic vitality of the downtown;
II. It enhances and improves a structure that is culturally or historically important on a local,

regional, state, or national level, either independently or within the context of an historic district, town
center, or village center in which the building is located;

Il-a. It promotes the preservation and reuse of existing building stock throughout a municipality by

01/02/2020

Page 208 of 247



the rehabilitation of historic structures, thereby conserving the embodied energy in accordance with
energy efficiency guidelines established by the U.S. Secretary of the Interior's Standards for
Rehabilitation.

III. It promotes development of municipal centers, providing for efficiency, safety, and a greater
sense of community, consistent with RSA 9-B; or

IV. It increases residential housing in urban or town centers.

Source. 2006, 167:1. 2009, 200:13, eff. July 15, 2009. 2013, 78:3, eff. April 1, 2013.

Section 79-E:7-a
79-E:7-a Public Benefit Determinations.-Cities or towns may adopt according to the procedure

in RSA 79-E:3 provisions that further define the public benefits enumerated in RSA 79-E:7 to assist
the governing body in evaluating applications made under this chapter based on local economic
conditions, community character, and local planning and development goals.

Source. 2010, 329:5, eff. July 20, 2010.

Section 79-E:8
79-E:8 Covenant to Protect Public Benefit. -
I. Tax relief for the substantial rehabilitation or replacement of a qualifying structure shall be

effective only after a property owner grants to the municipality a covenant ensuring that the structure
shall be maintained and used in a manner that furthers the public benefits for which the tax relief was
granted and as otherwise provided in this chapter.

II. The covenant shall be coextensive with the tax relief period. The covenant may, if required by the
governing body, be effective for a period of time up to twice the duration of the tax relief period.

III. The covenant shall include provisions requiring the property owner to obtain casualty insurance,
and flood insurance if appropriate. The covenant may include, at the governing body's sole discretion,
a lien against proceeds from casualty and flood insurance claims for the purpose of ensuring proper
restoration or demolition or damaged structures and property. If the property owner has not begun the
process of restoration, rebuilding, or demolition of such structure within one year following damage or
destruction, the property owner shall be subject to the termination of provisions set forth in RSA 79-
E:9,1.

IV. The local governing body shall provide for the recording of the covenant to protect public
benefit with the registry of deeds. It shall be a burden upon the property and shall bind all transferees
and assignees of such property.

V. The applicant shall pay any reasonable expenses incurred by the municipality in the drafting,
review, and/or execution of the covenant. The applicant also shall be responsible for the cost of
recording the covenant.

Source. 2006, 167:1. 2009, 200:14, eff. July 15, 2009.

Section 79-E:9
79-E:9 Termination of Covenant; Reduction of Tax Relief; Penalty. -
I. If the owner fails to maintain or utilize the building according to the terms of the covenant, or fails

to restore, rebuild, or demolish the structure following damage or destruction as provided in RSA 79-
E:8, III, the governing body shall, after a duly noticed public hearing, determine whether and to what
extent the public benefit of the rehabilitation or replacement has been diminished and shall deteimine
whether to terminate or reduce the tax relief period in accordance with such determination. If the
covenant is terminated, the governing body shall assess all taxes to the owner as though no tax relief
was granted, with interest in accordance with paragraph II.

II. Any tax payment required under paragraph I shall be payable according to the following

01/02/2020

Page 209 of 247



procedure:
(a) The commissioner of the department of revenue administration shall prescribe and issue forms

to the local assessing officials for the payment due, which shall provide a description of the property,
the market value assessment according to RSA 75:1, and the amount payable.

(b) The prescribed form shall be prepared in quadruplicate. The original, duplicate, and triplicate
copy of the form shall be given to the collector of taxes for collection of the payment along with a
special tax warrant authorizing the collector to collect the payment under the warrant. The
quadruplicate copy of the form shall be retained by the local assessing officials for their records.

(c) Upon receipt of the special tax warrant and prescribed forms, the tax collector shall mail the
duplicate copy of the tax bill to the owner responsible for the tax as the notice of payment.

(d) Payment shall be due not later than 30 days after the mailing of the bill. Interest at the rate of
18 percent per annum shall be due thereafter on any amount not paid within the 30-day period. Interest
at 12 percent per annum shall be charged upon all taxes that would have been due and payable on or
before December 1 of each tax year as if no tax relief had been granted.

Source. 2006, 167:1. 2009, 200:15, eff. July 15, 2009.

Section 79-E:10
79-E:10 Lien for Unpaid Taxes.-The real estate of every person shall be held for the taxes levied

pursuant to RSA 79-E:9.

Source. 2006, 167:1, eff. April 1, 2006.

Section 79-E:11
79-E:ll Enforcement.-All taxes levied pursuant to RSA 79-E:9 which are not paid when due

shall be collected in the same manner as provided in RSA 80.

Source. 2006, 167:1. 2007, 42:3, eff. July 20, 2007.

Section 79-E:12
79-E:12 Rulemaking.-The commissioner of the department of revenue administration shall adopt

rules, pursuant to RSA 541-A, relative to the payment and collection procedures under RSA 79-E:9.

Source. 2006, 167:1, eff. April 1, 2006.

Section 79-E:13
79-E:13 Extent of Tax Relief. -
I. (a) Tax relief granted under this chapter shall pertain only to assessment increases attributable to

the substantial rehabilitation performed under the conditions approved by the governing body and not
to those increases attributable to other factors including but not limited to market forces; or

(b) Tax relief granted under this chapter shall be calculated on the value in excess of the original
assessed value. Original assessed value shall mean the value of the qualifying structure assessed at the
time the governing body approves the application for tax relief and the owner grants to the
municipality the covenant to protect public benefit as required in this chapter, provided that for a
qualifying structure which is a building destroyed by fire or act of nature, original assessed value shall
mean the value as of the date of approval of the application for tax relief of the qualifying structure that
would have existed had the structure not been destroyed.

II. The tax relief granted under this chapter shall only apply to substantial rehabilitation or
replacement that commences after the governing body approves the application for tax relief and the
owner grants to the municipality the covenant to protect the public benefit as required in this chapter,

01/02/2020

Page 210 of 247



provided that in the case of a qualifying structure which is a building destroyed by fire or act of nature,
and which occurred within 15 years prior to the adoption of the provisions of this chapter by the city or
town, the tax relief may apply to such qualifying structure for which replacement has begun, but which
has not been completed, on the date the application for relief under this chapter is approved.

Source. 2006, 167:1. 2010, 329:6. 2011, 237:3, eff. July 5, 2011.

Section 79-E:14
79-E:14 Other Programs.-The provisions of this chapter shall not apply to properties whose

rehabilitation or construction is subsidized by state or federal grants or funds that do not need to be
repaid totaling more than 50 percent of construction costs from state or federal programs.

Source. 2006, 167:1, eff. April 1, 2006.

01/02/2020

Page 211 of 247



Unofficial Property Record Card

Unofficial Property Record Card - Rochester, NH
General Property Data

Account Number 219Parcel ID 0120-0392-0000
Prior Parcel ID

Property Owner 10 SOUTH MAIN STREET LLC Property Location 10 SO MAIN ST
Property Use RESINCOMM

Most Recent Sale Date 4/5/2019
Legal Reference 4645-319

Grantor GIA CORPORATION
Sale Price 185,000
Land Area 0.110 acres

Mailing Address P O BOX 310

City DOVER
Mailing State NH
ParceIZoning DTC

Zip 03821-0310

Current Property Assessment
Xtra Features

Value Land Value 49,500Card 1 Value Building Value 131,200 4,000 Total Value 184,700

Building Description
Foundation Type BRICK/STONE

Frame Type MASON/CONC
Roof Structure FLAT

Roof Cover TAR+GRAVEL
Siding BRICK

Interior Walls AVERAGE
# of Bedrooms 4
# of 1/2 Baths 1

Building Style MIX USE BLDG
# of Living Units 2

Year Built 1881
Building Grade AVG. (+)

Building Condition Average
Finished Area (SF) 4239

Number Rooms 8
# of 3/4 Baths 0

Flooring Type AVERAGE
Basement Floor CONCRETE

Heating Type STEAM
Heating Fuel GAS

Air Conditioning 0%
# of Bsmt Garages 0

# of Full Baths 2
# of Other Fixtures 0

Legal Description

Narrative Description of Property
This property contains 0.110 acres of land mainly classified as RESINCOMM with a(n) MIX USE BLDG style building, built about 1881 . having BRICK exterior and
TAR+GRAVEL roof cover, with 1 commercial unit(s) and 2 residential unit(s), 8 room(s), 4 bedroom(s), 2 bath(s), 1 half bath(s).

Property Images

s.

I

S
T&M

Disclaimer: This information is believed to be correct but is subject to change and is not warranteed.

http://rochestemh.patriotproperties.com/RecordCard.asp[12/22/2019 8:44:00 PM]

01/02/2020

Page 212 of 247



PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT
City Hall - Second Floor

33 Wakefield Street
Rochester, New Hampshire 03867-1917

(603) 335-1338 - Fax (603) 335-7585
Web Site: www.rochesternh.net

^ROCHESTER

IMP
Planning and Development
Conservation Commission
Historic District Commission
Arts & Culture Commission

October 7, 2019

Keith Frizzell
PO Box 310
Dover, NH 03821

RE: 10 South Main Street
Tax Map 120 Lot 392 Downtown Commercial Zone

Dear Mr. Frizzel,

I have reviewed your project narrative for a Special Downtown review to change to change the use from two
residential units to four resident on the second and third floor.
Following a review of the Zoning Ordinance, this use is an allowed use and will not require further review
through the Site Plan Review process. Further review by this Department is not necessary because you are not
adding a new building or parking spaces and your proposed use will not have a significantly different impact on
the City of Rochester. Please submit a project narrative for the commercial uses for the building before they are
established. This project will require Historic District approval for exterior facade changes.

I have received written comments and feedback from the parties listed above and the Planning Board
Representative. The concerns and the resolution are listed below:

Comment(s) & Concern(s)Source Resolution
No issues. NA.

Building,
Zoning and
Licensing
Services

Plans will require fire protection engineer review ahead of permit
issuance.

Prior to
building
permits

Fire
Department
Police
Department

No issues. NA

If fire suppression is required, a separate water service will be required
with backflow prevention. Also please check with DPW regarding Road
Moratorium.

DPW Condition of
approval

Please note that any signage will require the submission of an application for a permit from the Building Zoning
Licensing Services Department

* It is the applicant's responsibility to obtain any other applicable permits from local, state, and federal
agencies. Please contact the City of Rochester Building. Zoning, and Licensing Services Department at 332-

01/02/2020

Page 213 of 247



3508 to app ly tor anv necessary permits or licenses, including a building permit sign permit second hand
dealer's license, food license, and certificate of occupancy when applicable. You should also contact the
Fire Department at 335-7545 to discuss anything they may require

Congratulations, I wish you the best of luck at this location. Please feel free to call me with any questions or
concerns.
Sincerely,

Michelle Mears,AICP
Senior Planner

Viewpermit TPL 19-116cc:
File

\\roch-fileshare\plan$\2019 PB lnfo\SpeciaI Downtown\Response Letters\120-392-DTC-19 - Approval - 10 So. Main Streetdocx

01/02/2020

Page 214 of 247



PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT
City Hall - Second Floor

33 Wakefield Street,
Rochester, New Hampshire 03867-1917

(603) 335-1338 - Fax (603) 330-0023
Web Site:www.rochesternh.net

Planning and Development
Conservation Commission
Historic District Commission
Arts and Culture Commission

SPECIAL DOWNTOWN REVIEW
Applicants for Review

Planning Department

December 2014

Application Process for Special Downtown Review Committee

TO:
FROM:

DATE:

SUBJ:

The Special Downtown Review Committee and the Planning staff would like to make the
application process as smooth as possible.
Please review the following and contact the Planning Department with any questions.

Boundaries. The boundaries of the Special Downtown District coincide with the "fire
limits" established in Chapter 40.13 of the General Ordinances of the City of Rochester. The
district includes those areas classified on the Rochester Zoning Map as Downtown
Commercial (DC) and Neighborhood Mixed Use (NMU) adjacent to North Main Street up to
Washington Avenue and South Main Streets in Rochester proper and Main Streets in the
NMU in Gonic and East Rochester.
(b) Regulations and Restrictions - Special Downtown District. The following regulations and
restrictions shall apply in the Special Downtown District:

(1) Development within the Special Downtown District shall be exempt from the site plan
review process, provided, however, that:

(A) any construction of new structures within the Special Downtown District, and/or

(B) any change to an existing structure or use within the Special Downtown District
shall be subject to the site plan review process unless the Planning Director, after
consultation with the Code Enforcement Officer, the Commissioner of Public Works, the
Fire Chief, the Police Chief, the Economic Development Director, and one
representative from the Planning Board appointed by the Board chair certifies in writing
to the Planning Board that such proposed construction or change will have no
significant adverse impact on the Special Downtown District.

01/02/2020

Page 215 of 247



Special Downtown Review Page 2

(2) Existing structures and uses are exempt from the parking and loading requirements
contained in Article XXVI of this ordinance.
(3) New structures and uses, including changes to existing structures and uses, shall be
subject to the parking and loading requirements contained in Article XXVI of this ordinance,
provided, however, that where a public parking facility is available within four hundred
(400) feet of a structure or use, the specific parking requirements may be determined by
the Code Enforcement Officer (or the Planning Board in the case of projects that are
referred to the Board) on an individual basis. For the purposes of this section, the term
"public parking facility” means a publicly owned off-street parking facility for 10 or more
vehicles.

(4) The Planning Board shall be notified within ten (10) days of all projects being reviewed
pursuant to this section. At the request of any Planning Board member, any project that
has been reviewed, or is being reviewed, under this section may be referred to the full
Planning Board for regular site plan review. In the event that a Planning Board member
requests in writing that a project be referred to the Planning Board for regular site plan
review, the Planning Board shall, within thirty (30) days of the date of the notification
provided for in this paragraph, vote as to whether or not regular site plan review of such
project shall be required.
(5) There are no Planning application fees or Monumentation fees charged for any projects
located in the Special Downtown District (whether reviewed administratively or referred to
the Planning Board).

\\roch-fllesharc\planS\Fonns\Applications\Special Downtown Metno.doc

01/02/2020

Page 216 of 247



Special Downtown Site Review
City of Rochester, New Hampshire

i /WnDate:

Property information
Tax map #: 0-0 Lot #(‘s): ; Zoning district: QTC ; Historic District: yes * no

Property address/location: 10
Project Name:

Property owner
Name (include name of individual):JO M^n

Mailing address: PO C>oy VO
Telephone #:

Applicant/developer (if different from property owner)

Name (include name of individual):

Mailing address:

Telephone #:

SW LLC - /fW-M \J

Email address: K. preps ^

Email address:

Engineer/surveyor/designer (if applicable)

Name (include name of individual): J e r e /* t* h
Mailing address: H s/. '̂ sv

Telephone #: ^P-7*/

4

Email address: J a n s /i 4*r y

Check one:

^ Nonresidentiai project

® Residential project

1

01/02/2020

Page 217 of 247



Nonresidential projects (if applicable)
Check all that apply:
0 change of use

new parking area

new signage;

new building building addition
expansion of existing parking area

exterior lighting 4k other site changes

- ^
<ZrjsC - t, lyn <; \J

VJ fWl
Describe current use/nature of property: l* PL&or -nft

0 fUfl
FL*rs adDescribe proposed use/activity: _ /[

&x» &/< />

& A

1fU:/ - i*
; Hours of operation: A*l^
; total proposed:

INumber of employees:

1 i_;# parking spaces: existing:

nearest public parking:

Current square footage of building 1, L0 & ; Proposed square footage of building \ t>°&

Residential projects (if applicable)

Number of existing dwelling units: Total number of proposed dwelling units:

Addition(s)/modifications to existing building(s)?M/hNew building(s)?

Describe current use/nature of property: / /U,̂ dl- 'ice ] J-pg /J-*
Describe proposed use/activity: fXch J >̂---̂ Flaor
~ rJ * ^ t i

11# of parking spaces: existing: total proposed:

Comments
Please feel free to add any comments, additional information, or requests for waivers here:

\toch-fileshare\plan$\Forms\Appiications\Special Downtown Application.dcg.docx

01/02/2020

Page 218 of 247



Submission of application & acknowledgement about process
This application must be signed by the property owner, applicant/developer (if different from
property owner).

** Please Note: All Special Downtown applications are subject to full site plan review at the
discretion of the Planning Board.

Signature of property owner:

9/13/19Date:

Signature of applicant/developer:

Date:

Authorization to enter property
/ hereby authorize members of the Rochester Planning Board, Zoning Board of Adjustment,
Conservation Commission, Planning Department, and other pertinent City departments,
boards and agencies to enter my property for the purpose of evaluating this application
including performing any appropriate inspections during the application phase, review phase,
post-approval phase, construction phase, and occupancy phase. This authorization applies
specifically to those particular individuals legitimately involved in evaluating, reviewing, or
inspecting this specific application/project. It is understood that these individuals must use all
reasonable care, courtesy, and diligence when entering the property.

Signature of property owner:

9/13/19Date:

\\roch-fileshare\plaa$\Foims\Applications\SpeciaI Downtown Application.dcj.docx

01/02/2020

Page 219 of 247



PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT
City Hall - Second Floor

33 Wakefield Street,
Rochester, New Hampshire 03867-1917

(603) 335-1338 - Fax (603) 335-7585
Web Site: www.rochesternh.net

Planning and Development
Conservation Commission
Historic District Commission
Arts & Culture Commission

City of Rochester
Historic District Commission

CERTIFICATE OF APPROVAL

December 17, 2019
Keith Frizzell
PO Box 310
Dover, NH 03821

RE: 10 South Main Street, Rochester, NH Map 120 Lot 392, Downtown Commercial Zone

Dear: Mr. Frizzell,

I am pleased to inform you that the Historic District Commission (HDC) approved your application
for the above referenced project at the meeting on December 11, 2019. The application for Certificate
of Approval for window replacements/additions, exterior repairs to brick, new entrance door and
transom, and 5 roof mounted heat pump condenser units on the near roof was approved as submitted
to the Planning and Development Department.

Please note that this approval is valid for two years from the date of the HDC meeting. Substantial
work on the project must commence by December 11, 2021 or this approval will become null and void.
Contact the City of Rochester Building, Zoning, Licensing, and Licensing Services Department at 332-
3508 for any permits you may need.

It is the applicant’s responsibility to obtain any other applicable permits fromlocal, state, and
federal agencies. Contact the following City of Rochester Departments:

Building, Zoning, and Licensing Services Department at 332-3508
Fire Department at 335-7545
Department of Public Works at 332-4096.

Thank you for meeting with me and please feel free to contact the Planning and Development
Department if you have any questions.

"ft
4-o U

Sincerely A i r\itor

+T<:'CL
Senior Planner, City of Rochester

Building, Zoning & Licensing Services
View Permit TPL-19-145

cc:

File

01/02/2020

Page 220 of 247



HISTORIC POSTCARD OF SOUTH MAIN STREET10 SOUTH MAIN STREET
Historic District Commission Work Session - December 2019, Rochester, New Hampshire * «• . - . . ,

Miilu <*lrrr| (••.•Wins |lwvhr«|rr. >. II,

ELEVATION KEYNOTESGeneral Project Discription:
Proposed Work; AThe scope of the proposed project focuses mostly on interior

renovations, window replacements/additions, and exterior
repairs to brick, trim, headers, sills, and paneling.
The 1st floor will have minor wall demolition, the 2nd floor
will change from 1 larger unit to 2 single bedroom residential
units. Interior partition locations will change, the common
access corridor has been reconfigured, and there will be new
finished throughout. The same treatment applied to the 3rd
floor.
There will be 5 total units in the building: 1 retail unit on the
1st floor and 2 residential apartments per 2nd and 3rd floor.
All existing windows will be replaced with new double hung
units to match the existing South Main Street elevation
windows. (24 windows)
There will be 7 new double hung windows that match the
dimensions of the existing South Main Street elevation
windows, all new wall penetrations will align vertically and
horizontally.
There will be 1 new fixed square picture window on the
Hanson Street elevation to aid in the transition from store
front to typical window penetrations.
There will be a new residential entrance door with a transom
above.
The existing retail AC will be removed and replaced with a
transom window.
There will be 5 roof mounted heat pump condenser units on
the rear roof

PATCH AND REPAIR ALLEXISTINGHEADERS AND SILLS.

A EXISTING WINDOWS ARE TOBE REPLACED WITH WINDOWS TO MATCHSIZE,SHAPE,AND SILL
HEIGHT AS EXISTINGSOUTH MAIN STREET EtEVATlON WINDOWS,WINDOWS BY ANDERSEN, REFER
TO SHEET A8

A NEW WINDOWS TO MATCH SIZE, SHAPE, AND SILLHEIGHT AS EXISTING SOUTH MAIN STREET
ELEVATION WINDOWS,REFER TO SHEET A8 »

A *NEW WOOD STOREFRONT WINDOW WITH COMPOSITE PANELING TO MATCH EXISTING STORE FRONT

>1A PATCH AND REPAIR STOREFRONT AND WINDOW TRIM WITH COMPOSITE TRIM WHERE NEEDED

A PATCH AND REPAIR CORNICE AND TRIM WITH COMPOSITE TRIM WHERE NEEDED IA REPAINT HANSON STREET ELEVATION

A PATCH,REPAIR.AND REPOINT MASONRY WHERE NEEDED

A INFILL EXISTING WINDOW OPENING WITH MASONRY AND PAINT TO MATCH
*A EXISTING MURALS TO REMAIN

A vvPS.flEXISTING RUBBER ROOF TO BE REPLACED WITH NEW RUBBER MEMBRANE

A 10 SOUTH MAIN STREETREPAIR EXISTING AWNING ROOF

A NEW WINDOW TOMATCHEXISTING WINDOWS.TO BE PLACED ON CENTER WITH EXISTING INFILLED
OPENING,LOCATION VIF,REFER TO SHEET A8

%A rEXISTING WALL ACUNIT TO BEREMOVED AND REPLACED WITH FIXED WOOD TRANSOM WINDOW BY
ANDERSEN, REFER TO SHEETAS VP V

Ui’£̂
*

V.A;:x NEW WOOD ENTRY DOOR WITH FIXED WOOD TRANSOM TO MATCH ADJACENT STOREFRONT, REFER
T0 2/A7V

8888
£

A 17
x:x::::

5 HEAT PUMP CONDENSER UNITS.REFER TO 1/A7 FOR CUT SHEETS ft
O KM

10 SOUTH
MAIN
STREEET

-
îo t* •

HDC SHEET LIST O _
J -V- jiIN STH.E&T Sheet Number Sheet NameSOUTH MW
yV

c COVER
EXISTING ELEVATIONS & PICTURES

.*A2 EXISTING ELEVATION PICTURES
KEY PLAN PROPOSED ELEVATIONS

1PROPOSEDELEVATIONS x\
i i

1" = 100'-0" FLOOR PLANS &A6 FLOOR PLANS
ANNOTATION LEGEND: CUTSHEETS

ftWINDOW CUT SHEETSA KEYNOTE REFERENCE LETTER \
ZV ELEVATION TAG

REFERENCE NUMBER— SHEET NUMBER
*+ •A• .

DECEMBER 2019
McHA: RD / JJMcHENRY ARCHITECTURE10 SOUTH MAIN STREET COVER C4 Market Street

Portsmouth, New Hampshire
Scale: As Indicated

LocusROCHESTER, NH HISTORIC DISTRICT COMMISSION, DECEMBER 2019

01/02/2020

Page 221 of 247



01/02/2020

Page 222 of 247



01/02/2020

Page 223 of 247



01/02/2020

Page 224 of 247



01/02/2020

Page 225 of 247



01/02/2020

Page 226 of 247



01/02/2020

Page 227 of 247



SUBMITTAL DATA:MXZ-8C48NARZ
4-IOH tfULUttOQOAMVEfUEfttJEA3.PUMP SYSTEMRIES

K!**<-<* Dottt

ACC$SSC*JS9
U Ttm*m #«»

Fivk- w Snoch&w tPACMKASBC)

iMSOO-MAft rm*m*y mtMWtfMflwtaMftJNKMl
41 I./2T ftaMaptatM*CA4S4#j
i» 1/fc*v3^Port Amtpu* <MACA46S4f*Ju 1«T je&ar{tarAda^jMA&MS&Pj
iLifrus&PmM*mt
i*MPftMrl*<*fAd*J*»$«C-SQ7l8«JJ
a mernmi* 0W5-S»ie«3<M;>

*i<u
FIXED WOOD
TRANSOM TO MATCH
ADJACENT
STOREFRONT

\ -U44u*iA4 M&4C4MM/

tfe* d#am*p*d«ctrtoof ttw«*Z-C Taelwta*atw £o»vte*Mtwwaii
8^ii. r 4IKM* WtodWMiWt** .

Urt* rn • MX£4C4tttAH2 NEW WOOD HALF LITE
ENTRY DOOR TO MATCH
ADJACENT STOREFRONT

RatalCoptcMy
CapacityR*ma
RataTotal input
Rata Capacity

48,000/48,000
fl.O00 -4d.0M
4.000 /3.060

54 000 ^34 000
?.aoo.S4.0M
+m*4m
40.000 /43.0»
S4 000 / 54.000

4,340/5,260
»,000

etuft
Ceoiina*
0/Ofl-̂ WHKl/Oucta)

w
b©tuft

HMt/ng«1 4/*F"
(HofMbidKl/ OUBtal ShiftcapacityRang*RatalTtfM Input

KataCapacity
MaximumCapacity
Rata Total tn»~*

F-
W
Shift

H#a4ln*fl at 17*F*
tWotawtaOueMI

W
8*#tt«a»l*F MMft«41)C4(HKliy

Powtt Ita—iy ,

R*eOTwn«nd#d FwwuHfaakar Sit#

eutft
Motts

EJ*cttic*lRtftunrenumix SOA
MCA A *:AC208/todoor - outdoor 81-81
Indoor - OmdOttc 52-S3

VNTS^ v M
flmpwtw

Sound PfftkdWffLovei

v
04*04tl_A

Cootttog
M>«n»N

Stc»lAJ •-* 3’ - 0"Qii«irts* 4uu x? * » ».*1336*1050*330*2«.278/128
Ext«n*lQ)mon*ioos(H»WiO)

MMVM9M *ain*«Mi
/

'

o ©HEAT PUMP UNIT CUT SHEET RESIDENTIAL ENTRY DOOR
1/2" = T-Q"

DECEMBER 2019MCHENRY ARCHITECTURE10 SOUTH MAIN STREET CUT SHEETS McHA: RD / JJA74 Market Street
Portsmouth, New Hampshire

Scale: As Indicated
ROCHESTER,NH PHISTORIC DISTRICT COMMISSION, DECEMBER 2019

01/02/2020

Page 228 of 247



SOUTH MAIN STREET
ELEVATION WINDOWS TILT-WASH DOUBLE-HUNG FULL-FRAME WINDOWS
\ 7 PATCH AND

REPAIR ALL
EXISTING
HEADERS, AS
NEEDED TYP. & 4V‘

I 4 FEATURES
Frame
O outw(rame members sm
covered with s parma-SWeM* rigid vicy!
cladding.mlnimetig matatenanc*and
providing an at?rociive.appMrona..
0 FornnaptloiMl lonfrtelfng'
pwfsonsnca.alfl members aie cowbuctod
with a wood aw and a Fibray*material
Kteriw.Sill ends era preteriad and sealed
with weather-resistant cams,
0 Natural wood stops am available in
pirn and prctifttebed white,dart Imre
and Hadd' A rew.taller *i« stopincreasn
performance to PC40 while stillmatotanlng
egresi onour mmt popular sites.
© A factory'applied rt|!d vinyl anchoring
Bang*onU»head,atll and sides of the outer
frami helps secure tbs unit to ths structure.
0 to«truded rigid vinyl jamb liner and
(in provide a protective seal against tie
outer frarra members.Exclusive slide wash
assists male it easy to till sashInto wash
mode posilion.

EXTERIOR INTERIOR
T7REPLACE

WINDOWS WITH
ANDERSEN 400
SERIES DOUBLE
HUNG WINDOW CafWM Saodroot Ttuolone

/+
b> %’Simulated Divided Light

«Tf Removable Interior Is available hin
Nitweib occurring wttoWma tr* iwto,Ukt arid te«lwmof vwotl male radi wnttow
ooo oT a Kind. AN wood aewwraaro unlinlUMO untcac a ptatnUM turlion isnpaGtad.

( IV2 - *
Head
Operating

HARDWARE FINISHES

© Wish assists make 11 easy to tiltIbe sash
Intowash mode.
© Wood sath membersare treated with a
water-repellent preservative tor long-lasting'
protection and periormance, Interior surfaces
anuntinrshed pine.Low-maintenance
pretinished white interiors art atm available.
© A potjester-atablltzed coat with a
Fk»cion*Imish is etectrostatrcaJly applied
to peootrotoall Buterior surfaces lor
marfmum protection and a lustreui finish.
O Sashjoints simulate thaMiof
traditional moctise-and-tenon comIruelion
inside end out

400 SERIES MUNTIN
6" =r-o"

Antique Sajhrt Dramated Oiititcsed
Brass Chrome Bronu Nickel

- PATCH AND
REPAIR ALL
EXISTING
SILLS, AS
NEEDED

2' - 10" +/- LfM

7 s Gold Oust afstatisd return* WhiteSelin
Niekot

Dbiremud broora end ot ruUwd blKlXO era Inthndm MV clui«e ndfli Inna wxi UM.

Sinn#
Rrsrja

'v V O

>1 DOUBLE-HUNG HARDWAREoNEW PICTURE WINDOWREPLACEMENT AND
NEW WINDOWS

STANDARD
Locks Kaapw

Glass
0 SHicomr bed glaring provides superior
wwthcrtightness and duiabdily.
O High-Performance glass
options indade
•low-E4* glass
•low-E4 Heatloch*glass
•Low-E4 Sun gtew
•Lovf-E4 SmaitSun'glass
•lo»-E4 SniartSuriHdatioch glass

Tempered glass and other glass options ere
ovaiiabio.Contact your Andmm supprier.
A removable translucent him helps shield
the gtaw from damage duringdelivery and
construction and simpliftos finishing ot
the jobsite.
Pattentad Glass
Patterned glass optionsareavariable.
See page IZ for more details.

r •
V:»

(WJ Unit Dimension

Unobstructed Black | GoldOust | Eton* | Wh)l»
Stonea MMHLBII wvn lertum)internunto.
Wliildcrjrajwlti praTmalwil wfltt Irmiorx.

Oditf liwinos orvewM,

Glass5' - 9" ,6, ;BRICK ROWLOCK
ARCH HEADER TO
MATCH EXISTING

Rough Opening^ Unique block-and-laeWe betanews feature
sued-to-the-umt, ruit-reslslanl springs
But require no adjustment.GJass-rantorced
nylon balancershoes prwWe smooth,letiabie
sashoperation Sashcan t*remwod.without
toots,for diywafl pass-through.Jamb trim
are available In white or gray andmust
be specified when ordering. Contact your
Andersen supplier tor detaIts.
0 Weatherstrip throughout the unit
provides a long-lasting,'energy-elfident,
weather-resistaot sealFor the top and
bottom rails,an encased loam material is
used.Tbs head jamb finer and sa lavsa
rigid vinyl rib that the toilhnstrip material
compresses against.At the meeting rail,
comjmwtla vinyl btebmaterial Is used.
Side jamb liners use leaf-type weatherstrip
vnth foam inserts.

© OPTIONAL DOUBLE-HUNG HARDWARE**Jamb
Operating

ESTATE’
Lock &Keeper

CONTEMPORARY
a*i_m• ft

ANDERSEN
400 SERIES
DOUBLE HUNG
WINDOW

Antique Buss | Dluck | Blight Brass
BnuehodDrain| OatartMdBiwvo

DiitiuMdNickel|ColdDun
01RubbedBKXUO|Wi&hedChromn

Sitinrfickelt Slone | WNla

OntieulEsMe bek ft keepv reduces tho
cJtorofwrÛ IWRMIVr*‘ (Mf.Char*,wvh local bu%iina c.TdatrftiaJs to deuenwi#

<XKnpL»r--*wni ajtnsu itnu*#m*nts.NOTE:PATCH
AND REPAIR ALL
EXISTING
HEADERS AND
SILL, AS NEEDED
TYP. REFER TO
ELEVATIONS

¥
+
CD TRADITIONAL
i SarUft King#!Liftsto a

s
ArniqvoBrss*|Back ( BriphlBtaM|ErvshndChrome 1 DuntiradBronta | OtstmsedNkkei

GoteCkat|91RubbodBronze |Wuhed Chroro |SatinNcU|Stone|White

6eW rwito denotes bnblrslwwn.
’ Vis4*!den«wiiniisinr».comVarranty or lor Wtarh.

Oerfc trwv* end«adr W*nws «f*onvewulebirtMto dark brorve end black Mtrtorc iwpeOhMy.
fitiecw* a»rorpvetvi) tradwwk 0/pptj hehiwaos. toe,

thmemiiuett inwrerenow* we to mdtvwtoii.
vwuir<jjkrxtttnaiti>owdnset isokcebon cl colon end ItnWtos,See your AndOfMlt WVMH ter actuti Co>0( and k-ash tamties.

\
STONE SILL
TO MATCH
EXISTING2' - 10" +/-

/
/ 1*

© © ©WINDOW ELEVATIONS 400 SERIES DETAILS 400 SERIES CUT SHEET
1/2" = r-o" 3" = r-o"

DECEMBER 2019McHENRY ARCHITECTURE10 SOUTH MAIN STREET WINDOW CUT SHEETS McHA: R D / J J
Scale: As Indicated4 Market Street

Portsmouth, New Hampshire PHISTORIC DISTRICT COMMISSION, DECEMBER 2019ROCHESTER, NH

01/02/2020

Page 229 of 247



 
 

Intentionally 
left blank… 

City Clerk’s Office 

 

01/02/2020

Page 230 of 247



 
Resolution Establishing Polling Places and Times for the 

February 11, 2020 Presidential Primary Election 
 
 

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MAYOR AND THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
ROCHESTER: 
 
That the following polling places are hereby established for the City of Rochester for the 
upcoming 2020 Primary Election. 
 
   WARD 1:  East Rochester Elementary School 
                 773 Portland Street, East Rochester 
      
   WARD 2: St. Mary's Parish Center 
      71 Lowell Street, Rochester 
 
   WARD 3: Gonic Elementary School 
     10 Railroad Avenue, Rochester 
      
                WARD 4: McClelland Elementary School 
     59 Brock Street, Rochester 
 
   WARD 5: Rochester Community Center 
     150 Wakefield Street/Community Way, Rochester 
     Located on the Chestnut Hill Road Side of Building 

 
   WARD 6: Elks Lodge #1393 
     295 Columbus Avenue, Rochester   
 
Further, that in accordance with RSA 659:4, and Section 47 of the City Charter – 
All polling places shall be open from 8:00 A.M. to 7:00 P.M., on said Election Day.   
 
 
 
 

 
 

01/02/2020

Page 231 of 247



 
 

Intentionally 
left blank… 

City Clerk’s Office 

 

01/02/2020

Page 232 of 247



Resolution Authorizing Certain Renumbering on Milton Road 
 

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

ROCHESTER: 

 

That the following addresses on Milton Road will be renumbered as follows: 

 

66 Milton Road becomes 68 Milton Road 

 

68 Milton Road becomes 70 Milton Road 

 

70 Milton Road becomes 72 Milton Road 

 

These changes are made in order to be in compliance with the standards articulated by the National 

Emergency Number Association and RSA 231:133 and 133-a. 

 
 

01/02/2020

Page 233 of 247



 
 

Intentionally 
left blank… 

City Clerk’s Office 

 

01/02/2020

Page 234 of 247



City of Rochester Formal Council Meeting 

AGENDA BILL 

NOTE: Agenda Bills are due by 10 AM on the Monday the week before the City Council Meeting. 

COMMITTEE SIGN-OFF 
COMMITTEE 

CHAIR PERSON 

DEPARTMENT APPROVALS 
DEPUTY CITY MANAGER 

CITY MANAGER 

FINANCE & BUDGET INFORMATION 
FINANCE OFFICE APPROVAL 

SOURCE OF FUNDS 

ACCOUNT NUMBER 

AMOUNT 

APPROPRIATION REQUIRED     YES       NO  

LEGAL AUTHORITY 

AGENDA SUBJECT 

COUNCIL ACTION ITEM 
INFORMATION ONLY  

FUNDING REQUIRED?   YES    NO 
* IF YES ATTACH A FUNDING RESOLUTION FORM

RESOLUTION REQUIRED?   YES    NO FUNDING RESOLUTION FORM?   YES    NO 

AGENDA DATE 

DEPT. HEAD SIGNATURE 

DATE SUBMITTED 

ATTACHMENTS         YES   NO  * IF YES, ENTER THE  TOTAL NUMBER OF
PAGES ATTACHED 

AB Form - revised 8/17/2016

1iSoGHESTER £
L-/-" -V

- 7K

r

01/02/2020

Page 235 of 247



SUMMARY STATEMENT 

RECOMMENDED ACTION 

AB Form - revised 8/17/2016

01/02/2020

Page 236 of 247



°r^ROCHESTER City of Rochester, New Hampshire
E-911 Committee

•> •

% &m
E911 Committee Representatives January 24,2019

RE:Request for Address Change (Map 210 / Lot1)
Tim Wilder-Chairman

Assistant Fire Chief Dear Property Owner:

This letter is to request a change to your address number. It was recently
brought tour attention that due to past changes to the intersection of Old Milton
Road and Milton Road a property with only access to Milton Road has an Old
Milton Road address.For life safety reasons this parcel is required to have a
Milton Road address.Unfortunately,there is no available address number on
Milton Road in this particular section. In order to assign a new address to this
property,that complies with State E-911regulations,we must assign new
addresses to a few parcels on the same side of the road as the property in
question,yours being one of them. These regulations are in place for safety and
ensure expedient response to your property,and others,by the community's
emergency response providers.

Julia Libby-Clerical / Secretary
Building,Zoning,& Licensing Svcs

Gary Boudreau-Committee
Member

Deputy Police Chief

Jonathan Rice - Committee
Member

Chief Assessor

We are proposing that your street address be changed from 66 Milton Rd to 68
Milton Rd.

State law allows this change to be done voluntarily,if the property owner
consents to the renumbering. Please sign your name below,and return this
letter to us at a suitable time in the self-addressed,stamped envelope. The
other copy is for your records. If we have not heard back by February IS,2018
the E-911committee will initiate the public hearing process to change the
numbers.

As soon as we receive your signature,we will notify the post office of this
change,and send you a confirmation letter with an effective date and more
information.If you have any questions please feel free to contact us.
Sincerely,
City of RopWster E911Committee

©2^
X’
S igna lre _ Date

33 Wakefield Street
Rochester,NH 03867

Ph: (603) 332-3976 or (603) 330-7184
Fax: (603) 330-0023

saferochester@rochesternh.net

Printed Name

01/02/2020

Page 237 of 247



City of Rochester, New Hampshire
E-911 Committee

E911 Committee Representatives February 21, 2019

RE: Request for Address Change (Map 210 / Lot 3)
Tim Wilder-Chairman

Assistant Fire Chief
Dear Property Owner:

This letter is to request a change to your address number. It was recently
brought to our attention that due to past changes to the intersection of Old
Milton Road and Milton Road a property with only access to Milton Road has an
Old Milton Road address. For life safety reasons this parcel is required to have a
Milton Road address.Unfortunately, there is no available address number on
Milton Road in this particular section. In order to assign a new address to this
property,that complies with State E-911regulations,we must assign new
addresses to a few parcels on the same side of the road as the property in
question, yours being one of them. These regulations are in place for safety and
ensure expedient response to your property,and others,by the community's
emergency response providers.

Julia Libby -Clerical / Secretary
Building,Zoning,& Licensing Svcs

Gary Boudreau-Committee
Member

Deputy Police Chief

Jonathan Rice - Committee
Member

Chief Assessor

We are proposing that your street address be changed to 72 Milton Rd.

State law allows this change to be done voluntarily, if the property owner
consents to the renumbering. Please sign your name below,and return this
letter to us at a suitable time in the self-addressed,stamped envelope. The
other copy is for your records.If we have not heard back by March 20,2019 the
E-911committee will initiate the public hearing process to change the numbers.

As soon as we receive your signature, we will notify the post office of this
change, and send you a confirmation letter with an effective date and more
information. If you have any questions please feel free to contact us.

Sincerely,
City of Rochester E911Committee

X v;-
^ I t 1- 7 - z o < <?

Signature Date

33 Wakefield Street
Rochester, NH 03867

Ph: (603) 332-3976 or (603) 330-7184
Fax: (603) 330-0023

saferochester@rochesternh.net

izLMEnj-p
Printed Name

01/02/2020

Page 238 of 247



 
Rochester, NH

January 24, 2019
®

www.cai-tech.com0 100 200 300

Data shown on this map is provided for planning and informational purposes only. The municipa lity and CAI Technologies are not responsible  for any use for other purposes
or misuse or misrepresentation of th is map.

1 inch = 100 Feet

01/02/2020

Page 239 of 247

julia.libby
Typewritten Text
70 changed to 72

julia.libby
Typewritten Text
68 changed to 70

julia.libby
Typewritten Text
66 changed to 68

julia.libby
Typewritten Text
72 Old Milton changed to

julia.libby
Typewritten Text
66 Milton Rd



 
 

Intentionally 
left blank… 

City Clerk’s Office 

 

01/02/2020

Page 240 of 247



Resolution Authorizing Acceptance of $1,250.00 from the State of New Hampshire Juvenile 

Court Diversion Network and Supplemental Appropriation in Connection Therewith 
 

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

ROCHESTER: 

 

That One Thousand Two Hundred Fifty Dollars ($1,250.00) is hereby accepted from the State of 

New Hampshire Juvenile Court Diversion Network to be used for costs associated with the 

Summer Teen Travel Camp. 

 

Further, the amount of One Thousand Two Hundred Fifty Dollars ($1,250.00) is hereby 

appropriated as a supplemental appropriation to the Rochester Police Department operating 

budget. 

 

To the extent not otherwise provided for in this Resolution, the Finance Director is hereby 

authorized to establish and/or designate such accounts and or account numbers as are necessary to 

implement the transactions contemplated in this Resolution.  

 
 

01/02/2020

Page 241 of 247



 
 

Intentionally 
left blank… 

City Clerk’s Office 

 

01/02/2020

Page 242 of 247



mftROCHESTER 5 i City of Rochester Formal Council Meeting
Su

% AGENDA BILLYi

NOTE: Agenda Bills are due by 10 AM on the Monday the week before the City Council Meeting.

AGENDA SUBJECT

Seeking permission from Council to accept NH Juvenile Court Diversion Network funds in
the amount of $1,250.00.

COUNCIL ACTION ITEM ( ]
INFORMATION ONLY

FUNDING REQUIRED? YES ( ] NO

* IF YES ATTACH A FUNDING RESOLUTION FORM

FUNDING RESOLUTION FORM? YES @ NORESOLUTION REQUIRED? YES NO

AGENDA DATE Next January 2020 meeting
DEPT. HEAD SIGNATURE

DATE SUBMITTED 12/6/19
YES NO HATTACHMENTS * IF YES,ENTER THE TOTAL NUMBER OF

PAGES ATTACHED
COMMITTEE SIGN-OFF

COMMITTEE

CHAIR PERSON

DEPARTMENT APPROVALS
DEPUTY CITY MANAGER

CITY MANAGER

FINANCE & BUDGET INFORMATION
FINANCE OFFICE APPROVAL

SOURCE OF FUNDS StateGovemor's Commission Alcohol Fund
ACCOUNT NUMBER Fund 6128 Project 20XXX
AMOUNT $1,250.00

NOAPPROPRIATION REQUIRED YES

LEGAL AUTHORITY
Council action required.

01/02/2020

Page 243 of 247



SUMMARY STATEMENT
Seeking permission from Council to accept NH Juvenile Court Diversion Network
funds in the amount of $1,250.00. These funds are for the Juvenile Alcohol Grant
the State Governor has allotted us. This funding is used for prevention
programming during the Summer Teen Travel Camp; an extension of the
Rochester Teen Night Program. These funds help strengthen existing Teen
Programming and allow for our Juvenile Diversion program to participate in data
collection that is already being done at the State level, such data to be used in
national conversations on the use of SBIRT (Screening Brief Intervention and
Referral to Treatment) in juvenile justice. NH is one of the first States to
participate in this level of screening and intervention.

RECOMMENDED ACTION
Accept funds in the amount of $1,250.00.

01/02/2020

Page 244 of 247



AGENDA BILL - FUNDING RESOLUTION

EXHIBIT

Project Name: Requesting Council accept NH Juvenile Court Diversion Network funds in the amount of $1,250.00.

Date: 12/6/19

Fiscal Year: FY20

Fund (select):

SewerGF Water Arena

CIP Water ClP Sewer CIP Arena CIP

Special Revenue x

Fund Type: Lapsing Non-Lapsing x

Deauthorization
Fed State

Amount $
Local

Amount $Org # Object # Amount $Project #
1
2
3
4

Appropriation
Fed State

Amount $
Local

Amount $Amount $Org # Object # Project #
1 58900761282010 20XXX 1,250.00
2
3
4

Revenue
Fed State

Amount $
Local

Amount $Org # Object # Amount $Project #
1 6128002 402148 20XXX 1,250.00
2
3
4

DUNS # 07-989-9350 CFDA # N/A

Grant # SS-2O17-BDAS-03-COURT Grant Period: From July 1, 2018
To June 30,2019

If de-authorizing Grant Funding appropriations: (select one)

Reimbursement Request will be reduced Funds will be returned

01/02/2020

Page 245 of 247



 
 

Intentionally 
left blank… 

City Clerk’s Office 

 

01/02/2020

Page 246 of 247



Resolution Confirming Results of the December 6, 2019 Public Auction 

 

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

ROCHESTER, AS FOLLOWS: 

 

That the following result of the December 6, 2019 Public Auction is confirmed as follows: 

 

Property   Purchaser     Amount  
 

24 Cherokee Drive  Danziger Properties   $1,000.00 

 

   

 

 

01/02/2020

Page 247 of 247


	Rochester City Council Public Hearing Agenda 1-7-2020
	2. Resolution Changing Funding Source of CIP Appropriations  $2,051,373.08
	3. Resolution Authorizing Supplemental Appropriation Fund 1501 CIP from Gen Fund $1,520,000.00
	4. Resolution For Supplemental Appropriation & Borrowing Authority to DPW CIP Fund, Sewer Fund, & Water Fund $4,000,000.00
	5. Supplemental Appropriation to Rochester School Dept $1,335,993
	6. Amendment to Ch 275 Regarding Impact Fees
	7. Amendment to Ch 275 Regarding Conditional Uses within DC District
	8. Amendment to Ch 275 Regarding Residential Uses Within DC District

	Adjourned Regular City Council 1-7-2020 Agenda
	5. Acceptance of Minutes
	5.1 Regular City Council: December 3, 2019

	6. Communications from the City Manager
	6.1 Employee of the Month Award 
	6.2 City Manager's Report
	Contracts & Documents
	DPW
	Baseline Documentation - Conservation Easement - Watershed Parcels Farmington
	Colonial Pines Sewer Ext Phase 2 Change order
	Colonial Pines Phase 2 Amendment 4
	Colonial Pines Phase 3 Design Engineering Contract
	Colonial Pines Security Agreement
	CWSRF Loan Disbursement #7
	Geosyntec Consulting - Tech Services 2 year contract
	Wallace Street Ground Water Sampling & Reporting Contract
	Water Pipe Agreement - Highfields Common

	Economic Development
	CDBG CAP Weatherization - Furnace 
	CDBG CAP Weatherization - heater replacement
	CDBG CAP Weatherization - duct repair
	CDBG HDC Facade Program
	CDBG My Friend's Place release of funds
	CDBG Riverwalk Kayak Launch
	LDI Project Planning App

	Finance Department
	NHDES Biosolids Facility Amendment 
	NHDES Water Pump Station Supp

	Information Technology 
	Exactitude Arena Security Cameras
	Systems Engineering

	Legal Department
	Sale of 0 Broadway
	Sale of 0 Dora
	Sale of 0 Old Wakefield 
	Sale of 5 Lois
	Sale of 10 Lanai 
	Sale of 12 Downfield 
	Sale of 19 Main East Rochester
	Sale of 24 D'Amours
	Sale of 35 Linden


	Permissions & Permits
	Personnel Action Summary


	7.1 Mayoral Appointments/Nominations
	Jonathan Shapleigh

	9.7 Elections: Ward 3 Selectman 
	9.7.1 Annette Plaisted
	9.7.2 Robin Brown

	10. Reports of Committees
	10.3 Community Development
	10.3.1 Approval of new COAST bus stops along Washington Street

	10.5 Fidelity Committee
	10.7 Public Safety
	10.8 Public Works
	10.8.1 Resolution DHHS 2 year extension


	11. Old Business
	11.1 Resolution Changing Funding Source of CIP Approp. to Gen Fund $2,051,373.08
	11.2 Resolution Authorizing Supplemental Appropriation Fund 1501 CIP from Gen Fund $1,520,000.00
	11.3 Resolution For Supplemental Appropriation & Borrowing Authority to DPW CIP Fund, Sewer Fund, & Water Fund $4,000,000.00
	11.4 Amendment to Ch 275 Regarding Impact Fees
	11.5 Amendment to Ch 275 Regarding Conditional Uses within DC District
	11.6 Amendment to Ch 275 Regarding Residential Uses Within DC District
	11.7 Supplemental Appropriation to Rochester School Dept $1,335,993

	13. New Business
	13.1 Resolution 79-E Tax Relief 10 South Main
	13.2 Resolution Establishing Polling Places & Times for Feb 11, 2020 Primary
	13.3 Resolution Renumbering 68 Milton Road
	13.4 Resolution Accepting $1,250 from NH Juvenile Court Diversion Network
	13.5 Resolution COnfirming Results of the December 6, 2019 Public Auction



	AGENDA SUBJECT: New DPW Facility - Supplemental Appropriation  
	COUNCIL ACTION ITEM INFORMATION ONLY: 
	undefined: On
	undefined_2: Off
	FUNDING REQUIRED YES: On
	NO: Off
	RESOLUTION REQUIRED  YES NO: 
	undefined_3: On
	undefined_4: Off
	FUNDING RESOLUTION FORM YES NO: 
	undefined_5: On
	undefined_6: Off
	AGENDA DATE: December 3, 2019
	DEPT HEAD SIGNATURE: Peter C. Nourse, PE signature on File City clerks office
	DATE SUBMITTED: 11/22/19
	ATTACHMENTS YES NO: AB-FRF
	undefined_7: On
	undefined_8: On
	 IF YES ENTER THE  TOTAL NUMBER OF PAGES ATTACHED: 1
	COMMITTEE: Public Works & Buildings Committee
	CHAIR PERSON: Ralph Torr
	DEPUTY CITY MANAGER: 
	CITY MANAGER: 
	FINANCE OFFICE APPROVAL: 
	SOURCE OF FUNDS: BONDING 
	ACCOUNT NUMBER: funds General 50% Water 25% Sewer 25%
	AMOUNT: $4,000,000
	APPROPRIATION REQUIRED: YES
	APPROPRIATION REQUIRED YES NO: 
	LEGAL AUTHORITY: City Council Resolution 
	SUMMARY STATEMENT: This agenda bill requests a supplemental appropriation in the amount of $4,000,000 for the construction of the New DPW Facility at 209 Chestnut Hill Road.   This project has been in development for the past 5 years with original appropriations in the FY14 CIP.  A total of $18,600,000 has been appropriated to date with expenses totaling $2,638,146.38.  The remaining $15,961,853.62 is insufficient to complete the project.   On November 21, 2019 the bids were received with a low bid of $17.674,000 which includes alternates of $75,000 for the fuel island canopy and $74,000 for the fuel island fire suppression system.  In addition there are several items that were not bid and are included in this request which included electrical installations, access controls and security system for the building, the low voltage cabling for , testing and inspections by third parties  for various systems and materials, and the industries standard 8% construction contingency.   Total all anticipated costs $19,887,920.00Remaining Funds             $15,961,853.62Short Fall      $3,926,066.8 (Rounding to $4,000,000.00) During the FY2018 Budgeting Process the facility use was evaluated and the recommendation approved by City Council was for 50% General Fund and 25% each Water and Sewer Fund Split.  Recent staff evaluations support that split as well.    
	RECOMMENDED ACTION: 1. Resolution for Supplemental Appropriation authorizing $4,000,000.00 in bonding Authority for the New DPW Facility.  The resolution to stipulate 50% General Fund, 25% Water Fund and 25% Sewer Fund. 
	EXHIBIT: New DPW Facility Supplemental 
	Date: 11/22/19
	Fiscal Year: FY2020
	GF: 
	Water: 
	Sewer: 
	Arena: 
	CIP:  X   
	Water CIP: X
	Sewer CIP: X
	Arena CIP: 
	Special Revenue:   
	Lapsing: 
	NonLapsing:  X
	Org 1: 
	Object 1: 
	Project 1: 
	Fed Amount 1: 
	State Amount 1: 
	Local Amount 1: 
	Org 2: 
	Object 2: 
	Project 2: 
	Fed Amount 2: 
	State Amount 2: 
	Local Amount 2: 
	Org 3: 
	Object 3: 
	Project 3: 
	Fed Amount 3: 
	State Amount 3: 
	Local Amount 3: 
	Org 4: 
	Object 4: 
	Project 4: 
	Fed Amount 4: 
	State Amount 4: 
	Local Amount 4: 
	Org 1_2: 15013010
	Object 1_2: 772000
	Project 1_2: 20XXX
	Fed Amount 1_2: 
	State Amount 1_2: 
	Local Amount 1_2: 2,000,000.00
	Org 2_2: 55016010
	Object 2_2: 772000
	Project 2_2: 20XXX
	Fed Amount 2_2: 
	State Amount 2_2: 
	Local Amount 2_2: 1,000,000.00
	Org 3_2: 55026020
	Object 3_2: 772000
	Project 3_2: 20XXX
	Fed Amount 3_2: 
	State Amount 3_2: 
	Local Amount 3_2: 1,000,000.00
	Org 4_2: 
	Object 4_2: 
	Project 4_2: 
	Fed Amount 4_2: 
	State Amount 4_2: 
	Local Amount 4_2: 
	Org 1_3: 
	Object 1_3: 
	Project 1_3: 
	Fed Amount 1_3: 
	State Amount 1_3: 
	Local Amount 1_3: 
	Org 2_3: 
	Object 2_3: 
	Project 2_3: 
	Fed Amount 2_3: 
	State Amount 2_3: 
	Local Amount 2_3: 
	Org 3_3: 
	Object 3_3: 
	Project 3_3: 
	Fed Amount 3_3: 
	State Amount 3_3: 
	Local Amount 3_3: 
	Org 4_3: 
	Object 4_3: 
	Project 4_3: 
	Fed Amount 4_3: 
	State Amount 3_4: 
	Local Amount 4_3: 
	DUNS: 
	CFDA: 
	Grant: 
	From: 
	To: 
	Reimbursement Request will be reduced: 
	Funds will be returned: 
	AGENDA SUBJECT0: Amendments to Chapter 275-27.3. Impact Fees
	COUNCIL ACTION ITEM INFORMATION ONLY1: 
	undefined2: On
	undefined_23: Off
	FUNDING REQUIRED YES4: Off
	NO5: On
	RESOLUTION REQUIRED  YES NO6: 
	undefined_37: On
	undefined_48: Off
	FUNDING RESOLUTION FORM YES NO9: 
	undefined_510: Off
	undefined_611: On
	AGENDA DATE12: November 19, 2019
	DEPT HEAD SIGNATURE13: James Campbell signature on file City Clerks Office
	DATE SUBMITTED14: November 12, 2019
	ATTACHMENTS YES NO15: 
	undefined_716: On
	undefined_817: On
	 IF YES ENTER THE  TOTAL NUMBER OF PAGES ATTACHED18: 3
	COMMITTEE19: Planning Board
	CHAIR PERSON20: Nel Sylvain
	DEPUTY CITY MANAGER21: 
	CITY MANAGER22: 
	FINANCE OFFICE APPROVAL23: 
	SOURCE OF FUNDS24: 
	ACCOUNT NUMBER25: 
	AMOUNT26: 
	APPROPRIATION REQUIRED27: NO_2
	APPROPRIATION REQUIRED YES NO28: 
	LEGAL AUTHORITY29: Rochester Zoning Ordinance Section 275-3.5, RSA 674:16, RSA 674:18, and RSA 674.21
	SUMMARY STATEMENT30: The City Council had requested that the Planning Board produce methodologies for Impact Fees.  In accordance with state law, you cannot assess Impact Fees unless you have established methodologies.  In 2007, the City went through the process of producing the methodologies but did not adopt those methodologies.  The City Council approved money in the FY19 budget and the Planning Department hired Bruce Mayberry, the consultant that produced the methodologies in 2007, to update the methodologies.  The Planning Board has reviewed and approved the methodologies and also proposed amendments to the Impact Fee Ordinance.   The Planning Board has recommended that the City Council approve the proposed amendments.
	RECOMMENDED ACTION31: Approve the proposed amendments to Zoning Ordinance Chapter 275-27.3, Impact Fees.
	LEGAL AUTHORITY61: RSA 675:2; RSA 675:7
	APPROPRIATION REQUIRED YES NO60: 
	APPROPRIATION REQUIRED59: NO_2
	AMOUNT58: 
	ACCOUNT NUMBER57: 
	SOURCE OF FUNDS56: 
	FINANCE OFFICE APPROVAL55: 
	CITY MANAGER54: 
	DEPUTY CITY MANAGER53: 
	CHAIR PERSON52: Caroline McCarley, Mayor
	COMMITTEE51: Mayor's Ad Hoc
	 IF YES ENTER THE  TOTAL NUMBER OF PAGES ATTACHED50: 
	undefined_849: Off
	undefined_748: On
	ATTACHMENTS YES NO47: 
	DATE SUBMITTED46: November 25, 2019
	DEPT HEAD SIGNATURE45: Caroline McCarley, Mayor
	AGENDA DATE44: December 3, 2019
	undefined_643: On
	undefined_542: Off
	FUNDING RESOLUTION FORM YES NO41: 
	undefined_440: Off
	undefined_339: On
	RESOLUTION REQUIRED  YES NO38: 
	NO37: On
	FUNDING REQUIRED YES36: Off
	undefined_235: Off
	undefined34: On
	COUNCIL ACTION ITEM INFORMATION ONLY33: 
	AGENDA SUBJECT32: Amendment to Chapter 275, Section 20.2.K. (4) of the Zoning Ordinance
	RECOMMENDED ACTION63: First Reading and referral to December 16, 2019 Planning Board Meeting and January 20, 2019 City Council Workshop for Public Hearing
	SUMMARY STATEMENT62: Recent changes to the Zoning Ordinance for the Downtown Commercial District completely eliminated first floor residential uses on certain streets. This amendment seeks to allow for first floor residential uses on those streets with strict limitations. 
	AGENDA SUBJECT64: Amendment to Chapter 275, Section 20.2.K. (4) of the Zoning Ordinance
	COUNCIL ACTION ITEM INFORMATION ONLY65: 
	undefined66: On
	undefined_267: Off
	FUNDING REQUIRED YES68: Off
	NO69: On
	RESOLUTION REQUIRED  YES NO70: 
	undefined_371: On
	undefined_472: Off
	FUNDING RESOLUTION FORM YES NO73: 
	undefined_574: Off
	undefined_675: On
	AGENDA DATE76: December 3, 2019
	DEPT HEAD SIGNATURE77: Caroline McCarley, Mayor
	DATE SUBMITTED78: November 25, 2019
	ATTACHMENTS YES NO79: 
	undefined_780: On
	undefined_881: Off
	 IF YES ENTER THE  TOTAL NUMBER OF PAGES ATTACHED82: 
	COMMITTEE83: Mayor's Ad Hoc
	CHAIR PERSON84: Caroline McCarley, Mayor
	DEPUTY CITY MANAGER85: 
	CITY MANAGER86: 
	FINANCE OFFICE APPROVAL87: 
	SOURCE OF FUNDS88: 
	ACCOUNT NUMBER89: 
	AMOUNT90: 
	APPROPRIATION REQUIRED91: NO_2
	APPROPRIATION REQUIRED YES NO92: 
	LEGAL AUTHORITY93: RSA 675:2; RSA 675:7
	SUMMARY STATEMENT94: Recent changes to the Zoning Ordinance for the Downtown Commercial District completely eliminated first floor residential uses on certain streets. This amendment seeks to allow for first floor residential uses on those streets with strict limitations. 
	RECOMMENDED ACTION95: First Reading and referral to December 16, 2019 Planning Board Meeting and January 20, 2019 City Council Workshop for Public Hearing
	AGENDA SUBJECT01: Proposed Bus Stops Along Washington Street
	COUNCIL ACTION ITEM INFORMATION ONLY2: 
	undefined3: On
	undefined_24: Off
	FUNDING REQUIRED YES5: Off
	NO6: On
	RESOLUTION REQUIRED  YES NO7: 
	undefined_38: Off
	undefined_49: On
	FUNDING RESOLUTION FORM YES NO10: 
	undefined_511: Off
	undefined_612: On
	AGENDA DATE13: 1/7/2020
	DEPT HEAD SIGNATURE14: Mike Scala, on file
	DATE SUBMITTED15: 12/16/2019
	ATTACHMENTS YES NO16: 
	undefined_717: On
	undefined_818: Off
	 IF YES ENTER THE  TOTAL NUMBER OF PAGES ATTACHED19: 
	COMMITTEE20: Community Development Committee
	CHAIR PERSON21: Elaine Lauteborn
	DEPUTY CITY MANAGER22: 
	CITY MANAGER23: 
	FINANCE OFFICE APPROVAL24: 
	SOURCE OF FUNDS25: 
	ACCOUNT NUMBER26: 
	AMOUNT27: 
	APPROPRIATION REQUIRED28: NO_2
	APPROPRIATION REQUIRED YES NO29: 
	LEGAL AUTHORITY30: City Charter.
	SUMMARY STATEMENT31: The Cooperative Alliance for Seacoast Transportation (COAST) is requesting the addition of four bus stops along Washington Street as part of the COAST system redesign. The bus stops are to be placed on existing posts. Please see the attachment for the explanatory letter from COAST's director of operations, as well as photographs of the proposed bus stop locations. The Community Development Committee reviewed the proposed bus stop locations at its December 2019 meeting and voted to recommend approval of the bus stops.
	RECOMMENDED ACTION32: Approve the new bus stop locations on Washington Street.
	AGENDA SUBJECT33: NH HEALTH & HUMAN SERVICES - 2 year Lease extension amendment
	COUNCIL ACTION ITEM INFORMATION ONLY34: 
	undefined35: On
	undefined_236: Off
	FUNDING REQUIRED YES37: Off
	NO38: On
	RESOLUTION REQUIRED  YES NO39: 
	undefined_340: On
	undefined_441: Off
	FUNDING RESOLUTION FORM YES NO42: 
	undefined_543: Off
	undefined_644: On
	AGENDA DATE45: January 7,2020
	DEPT HEAD SIGNATURE46: Peter C. Nourse, Director of City Services
	DATE SUBMITTED47: December 27, 2019
	ATTACHMENTS YES NO48: 
	undefined_749: Off
	undefined_850: Off
	 IF YES ENTER THE  TOTAL NUMBER OF PAGES ATTACHED51: 
	COMMITTEE52: Public Works and Buildings Committee
	CHAIR PERSON53: Councilor Ralph Torr
	DEPUTY CITY MANAGER54: 
	CITY MANAGER55: 
	FINANCE OFFICE APPROVAL56: 
	SOURCE OF FUNDS57: 
	ACCOUNT NUMBER58: 
	AMOUNT59:  
	APPROPRIATION REQUIRED60: YES
	APPROPRIATION REQUIRED YES NO61: 
	LEGAL AUTHORITY62: City Council Resolution
	SUMMARY STATEMENT63: The NH Health and Human Service Current Lease agreement is expiring on 4/30/19. The State of NH process requires City Council or Governing Body approval for a lease  amendment/extension.  The State has requested a 2 year extension through 4/30/2022 in order to continue operations until a new facility is located.  This amendment will also increase their per square foot rates by 2.5% as follows:Current Office space is 18,000 sq ft at $15.61 per ft = $280,980 Current Storage space is 1750 sq ft at $3.12 per ft = $5,460Current total annual Revenue is $286,440 or $23,870 Monthly The 2.5% increase is to the square foot cost $15.61 x 2.5%=$16.00 and $3.12x2.5 %=$3.20 New Rate Office space is 18,000 sq ft at aprox $16.00 per ft = $288,000 New Rate Storage space is 1750 sq ft at aprox $3.20 per ft = $5,600per State of NH new prorate amount is $24,466.67 for a total annual Revenue amount of  $293,600.04.  
	RECOMMENDED ACTION64: 1.  Resolution / full City Council vote to authorize the the City Manager enter into a lease amendment with the State of NH for an additional 24 months at a 2.5% increase. 
	AGENDA SUBJECT012: RSA 79-E  10 South Main Street
	COUNCIL ACTION ITEM INFORMATION ONLY3: 
	undefined4: On
	undefined_25: Off
	FUNDING REQUIRED YES6: Off
	NO7: On
	RESOLUTION REQUIRED  YES NO8: 
	undefined_39: On
	undefined_410: Off
	FUNDING RESOLUTION FORM YES NO11: 
	undefined_512: Off
	undefined_613: On
	AGENDA DATE14: January 7, 2020
	DEPT HEAD SIGNATURE15: 
	DATE SUBMITTED16: December 30, 2019
	ATTACHMENTS YES NO17: 
	undefined_718: On
	undefined_819: Off
	 IF YES ENTER THE  TOTAL NUMBER OF PAGES ATTACHED20: 
	COMMITTEE21:  
	CHAIR PERSON22:  
	DEPUTY CITY MANAGER23: 
	CITY MANAGER24: 
	FINANCE OFFICE APPROVAL25: 
	SOURCE OF FUNDS26: 
	ACCOUNT NUMBER27: 
	AMOUNT28: 
	APPROPRIATION REQUIRED29: NO_2
	APPROPRIATION REQUIRED YES NO30: 
	LEGAL AUTHORITY31: City Charter Section 4:  Except as herein provided otherwise, the City Council shall have all powers conferred by law upon City Council, Boards of Mayor or Alderman, and the Selectman of Towns so far as applicable to Cities.
	SUMMARY STATEMENT32: RSA 79-E (Community Revitalization Tax Relief Incentive) is a legislative proposal that encourages investment in the downtown and village centers with a tax incentive modeled on NH statute (Barn Bill).  Its goals are to encourage the rehabilitation and active use of underutilized buildings and in doing so, to -promote strong local business-promote smart, sustainable growth, as an alternative to sprawl, in accordance with the purpose and objectives of RSA Ch. 9-B. 10 South Main StreetPurchase of this building requires a substantial amount of of deferred interior and exterior maintenance to be addressed to it can operated responsibly.-historic restoration of façade by replacing existing windows and adding new windows that maintain the character of the original look of the building.-new HVAC equipment-interior renovations -structural repairs-safety and fire protection upgrades-electrical, plumbing and mechanical upgrades
	RECOMMENDED ACTION33: Approve the application for RSA 79-E for 22 South Main Street, allowing tax relief for this building for a period of time determined by the Rochester City Council in accordance with Section 79-Ef.  Economic Development recommends the full 11 years that are eligible. Section 79-E:5 Duration of tax relief period     - Substantial rehabilitation tax relief incentive up to 5 years     - Additional tax relief incentive for new residential units up to 2 years     - Additional tax relief for rehabilitation of historic places up to 4 years
	AGENDA SUBJECT34: 68 Milton Rd Readdressing 
	COUNCIL ACTION ITEM INFORMATION ONLY35: 
	undefined36: On
	undefined_237: Off
	FUNDING REQUIRED YES38: Off
	NO39: On
	RESOLUTION REQUIRED  YES NO40: 
	undefined_341: On
	undefined_442: Off
	FUNDING RESOLUTION FORM YES NO43: 
	undefined_544: Off
	undefined_645: On
	AGENDA DATE46: January 7, 2020
	DEPT HEAD SIGNATURE47: 
	DATE SUBMITTED48: December 18, 2019
	ATTACHMENTS YES NO49: 
	undefined_750: On
	undefined_851: Off
	 IF YES ENTER THE  TOTAL NUMBER OF PAGES ATTACHED52: 3
	COMMITTEE53: E-911 Committee 
	CHAIR PERSON54: Tim Wilder 
	DEPUTY CITY MANAGER55: 
	CITY MANAGER56: 
	FINANCE OFFICE APPROVAL57: 
	SOURCE OF FUNDS58: 
	ACCOUNT NUMBER59: 
	AMOUNT60: 
	APPROPRIATION REQUIRED61: NO_2
	APPROPRIATION REQUIRED YES NO62: 
	LEGAL AUTHORITY63: City of Rochester, NH General Ordinance Chapter 223 Sections 11.A - 11.B & New Hampshire RSA's 231:133 & 231:133-a
	SUMMARY STATEMENT64: Due to past changes of the intersection of Old Milton Rd and Milton Rd a property ( Map 215, Lot 50) has an Old Milton Road address but only has access from Milton Road (Rte 125). For life safety reasons, this parcel is required to have a Milton Road address. In order for the change to comply with Standards put in place by the National Emergency Number Association three other property addresses must change. 66 Milton Road will become 68 Milton Road 68 Milton road will become 70 Milton Road 70 Milton Road will become 72 Milton RoadThe property owners of 66 and 70 Milton Road have already given voluntary consent to have their addresses changed.The property owners of 68 Milton Road have not responded to multiple attempts of mailing and phone calls, therefor a public hearing for City Council approval must be held to change the address.  ** Please see attached References** 
	RECOMMENDED ACTION65: Approve the renumbering of 68 Milton Road to comply with National and State Addressing Standards. 


